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D EPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

November 1, 2019 

TO THE CITIZENS OF THE TOWN OF APEX: 

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Town of Apex for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This report is issued to inform the citizens of Apex of the 
Town's fmancial condition at June 30th and how the financial resources of the Town were used 
during the fiscal year then ended. The report also fulfills the requirement of North Carolina state 
law that every local government has an annual audit of its financial statements performed by a 
certified public accountant. 

The Town of Apex management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of 
the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal 
control it has established for this purpose. The concept of internal controls assumes their costs 
should not exceed their anticipated benefits, and their objective is to provide reasonable, rather 
than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatements. 

Joyce and Company, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an urunodified ("clean") opinion on 
the Town of Apex's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019. The independent 
auditor's report is located at the front of the financial section of this report. 

This letter of transmittal should be read in conjunction with Management's Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A), which immediately follows the independent auditor's report in the Financial 
Section. MD&A provides a narrative overview and analysis of the basic fmancial statements. 

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT 

The Town of Apex, incorporated in 1873, is located in central North Carolina, less than 10 miles 
from Raleigh, the state capital. From its humble beginnings as a small railroad stop (the name 
"Apex" comes from being the highest point on the rail line), the Town has grown to a population 
of58,135 and a land area of23.6 square miles . 

The Town operates under a Council-Manager form of government. Policy-making and legislative 
authority rest with the Town Council, consisting of the mayor and five other members. All are 
elected on a town-wide basis to a four year term, with three members elected every two years. The 
Council appoints the Town Manager, who is responsible for hiring department heads and 
managing day to day operations. 

TOWNOFA..PEX 
The Peak olGood Living 

PO Box 250 Apex, NC 27502 I (919) 249-3400 I www.apexnc.org 
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The Town provided a full range of services during the 20 19 fiscal year including police, fire 
protection, sanitation, water, sewer, and electric services, construction and maintenance of streets 
and infrastructure, and recreational activities and events. Various other local entities such as The 
Wake County Public School System, WakeMed Apex Healthplex, and The Wake County Public 
Libraries do not meet established criteria for inclusion as part of the Town as a repOlting entity 
and are therefore excluded from this report. 

State law requil'es that the Town Council approve an 8lillual budget prior to July I. The budget 
ordinance authorizes all flOancial transactions of the Town except those authorized by a project 
ordinance or conducted through a trust or agency fund. The budget is prepared by fund and 
department. Department heads may transfer resources within a department and the Town Manager 
may transfer between departments, but any change which increases or decreases a fund's overall 
budget requires approval of the Council. 

LOCAL ECONOMY 

Economic activity and the construction industry remain very strong although some aspects did 
drop a bit from the exceptionally high levels of the prior year. Revenues for building permits and 
inspection fees were $4,6 million, down 12% from the prior year. The Town issued 1,726 permits 
for new residential construction this year, an increase of 175 permits or 11.28% from the previous 
year. Total construction value for those permits was up by $6.2 milliou or 1.77%. Commercial 
construction decreased. The Town issued 40 commercial building permits, 23 fewer than the 
previous year. The total value of those pennits decreased from $82 .2 million to $23 .1 million. 
Overall, new construction (residential and commercial) totaled 1,766 permits with a value of 
$378.8 million, compared with 1,614 permits and $431.77 million in the preceding year. 

Due to the residential growth in Apex, property taxes have come to provide a greater share of the 
Town's revenues. In 2009, total ad valorem tax revenue was $14.2 million as compared to $29.5 
million in 2019. The 201 9 fiscal year tax rate was 41.5 cents per $100, as compared to 34 cents 
this time 10 years ago but our tax revenue has more than doubled. Construction and development 
within the Town is continuing to support the growth in tax base and thus the tax revenue. The 
appraised value of the Town's tax base as of January 1,2019 was $7.8 billion compared to $4.2 
billion ten years earlier. 

During the 2019 fiscal year other economically sensitive revenues were also strong. Sales tax 
collections increased by 8.9% and other state collected local revenues continued to increase. 
Within all major revenue categories, compared to 2009 results, there has been a significant 
increase. 

Apex continues to benefit from its location, which makes it a residential and retail center for 
employees of Research Triangle Park (RTP). RTP is primarily dependent on flrms in relatively 
stable, growing industries such as technology, healthcare, and financial services. In addition, the 
Town's proximity to Raleigh, with several universities and the state government complex, also 
serves to provide a stable employment base. Because of the presence of these major employers, 
the local unemployment rate has stayed below the state and national figures. 

The Town provided a full range of services during the 2019 fi scal year including police, fi re 
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within the Town is continuing to support the growth in tax base and thus the tax revenue. The 
appraised value of the Town's tax base as of January 1,2019 was $7.8 billion compared to $4.2 
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Looking back over the past 10 years, the Town's total General Fund revenues and expenditures 
have more than doubled. Much of this increase is understandable, as the Town's population has 
grown 66.6% in the same period. The most obvious trend during this timeframe has been the 
continued emphasis on public safety. The costs to provide these services have climbed from $9.8 
million in 2009 to $21.4 million in 2019. 

Since moving from largely volunteer depal1ments to Town provided services, the Town has 
assumed a greater responsibility for Fire Protection using more full time employees. This increase 
is supported by the Town's steady population growth and commitment for citizen's safety and 
wellbeing. In September 2015 Money Magazine named Apex the best place to live in America. 

LONG-TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

The Town, for many years now, has maintained solid cash reserves and fairly modest debt levels. 
This has enabled the Town to proceed with some major projects financed by various types oflong­
telm debt. During the past year the Town has undertaken a number of street and parks projects. 
The Town has an agreement with Cary to undertake a number of water and sewer projects. No 
new debt was issued by the Town during the 2019 fiscal year. Voters have authorized the Town 
to issue general obligation bonds for park and recreational facilities and street and sidewalk 
improvements that have not yet been issued. The authorized but unissued amounts are $28 million 
and $12 million respectively. 

The Town continues to have capital and operational needs in a number of areas due to growth. 
The Town's goal is to maintain a minimum of25% of expenditures in unassigned fund balance in 
the General Fund. Funds in excess of that amount are available to be used for one time 
expenditures, such as smaller improvements or construction projects. At June 30,2019, the Town's 
unassigned fund balance was $26 million, or roughly 48.9% of the year's General Fund 
expenditures. 

MAJOR INITIATIVES 

In addition to addressing major needs in the Water and Sewer Fund, the Town is also evaluating 
its options to finance park and recreation projects, public safety projects, street and sidewalk 
improvements and electric utility projects. 

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded 
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Apex for its 
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. This was the twenty 
fifth consecutive year that the Town has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently 
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organized comprehensi ve annual financial repoli. This report must satisfy both generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for 
a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annual fll1ancial report 
continues to meet the Celiificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are submitting 
it to the GFOA to detennine its eligibility for another certificate. 

The preparation of this report on a timely basis was made possible by the dedicated service and 
cooperation of Joyce and Company CPA, and the Town's Finance, Planning, and Construction 
Management departments . . We would like to extend special thanks to Suzanne Pannentier for her 
work and to the Mayor and Town Council for their support for maintaining the highest standards 
of professionalism in the management of the Town's fll1ances . 

. ~~ 
-""'fur:::e'w Havens 

Town Manager 
Vance Holloman 
Finance Officer 
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104 BracJy COllrt , Cary, North Carol in" 275 11 
Phone 9 19-466-0946 Fax 9 1 9-466-0947 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Certitled Public Accountants 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the gDvernmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which COllectively 
comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance Df internal control relevant tD the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errOL 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express opiniDns on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor ' s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opiniDn on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Apex, North Carolina as of June 30, 2019, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Members: American [nstitute of Certi ti ed Publi c Accountants· North Caro lina Association of Certitied Public Accountants 

J 
Joyce a nd 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Brady Court, Cary, North C(lro lin::l 27511 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 9 1 9-466-0947 

To th e Honorabl e Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Certitied Public Acco untants 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as 
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Town's bas ic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
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implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material mi sstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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appl icable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the finan cial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit invo lves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor 's judgment, including the assessment of the 
ri sks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation ofthe 
financial statements in order to des ign audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of express ing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes eva luating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonab leness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
financ ial statement presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
op inion. 

Opinion 
[n our opi nion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respect ive financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and 
the aggregate rem aining fund information of the Town of Apex, North Carolina as of June 30, 2019, and the 
respective changes in financial position and cash fl ows, where appropriate, thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Members: Ame rican [nstitute 0 f Certi fled Public Accountants· North Carolina Association of Certi tI ed Publ ic Accountants 
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Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting princip les generally accepted in the Un ited States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Ana lys is, the Other Postemployment Benefits' Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liabi lity 
and Related Ratios, T own of Apex's Contributions, Schedule of Investment Retmns, the Local Government 
Employees' Retirement System's Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and 
Contributions, and the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Schedules of the Changes in 
Total Pension Liability and Total Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential paJ1 of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have app lied certai n limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial staternents . We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 
Our audi t was conducted for the purpose of forming op inions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the basic financial statements of the Town of Apex, North Carolina. The combining and individual fund 
statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, statistical section, as we ll as the accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards as required by Title 2 Us. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Adm inistrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the 
State Single Aud it Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements . 

The combining and individual fun d statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financi al statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the aud iting procedures applied in th e audit of the basic financial statements and 
cel1ain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other add itional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Un ited 
States of Amer ica by us. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, the 
combining and ind iv idual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the bas ic financial statem ents as 
a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Govenunent Aud it ing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 1, 2019 on 
our considerat ion of Town of Apex's internal control over financial rep0l1ing and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agreements, and other matters. The purpose of 
the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial rep0l1ing or on compliance. 
That rep0l1 is an integral part of an aud it performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
cons idering Town of Apex's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

November 1, 2019 Cary, North Carolina 

Other Matters 
Required Supplementary Information 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Ana lysis, the Other Postemployment Benefits' Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 
and Related Ratios, Town of Apex's Contributions, Schedule ofTnvestment Retmns, the Local Government 
Employees ' Retirement System's Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and 
Contributions, and the Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance Schedules of the Changes in 
Total Pension Liability and Total Pension Liab ili ty as a Percentage of Covered Payroll be presented to supplement 
the bas ic financial statements. Such information, although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the basic financial statements of the Town of Apex, North Carolina. The combining and individual fund 
statements, budgetary schedu les, other schedules, statistical section, as well as the accompanying Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards as required by Title 2 Us. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and the 
State Sing le Audit Implementation Act are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part 
of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules, and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such 
information has been subjected to the audit ing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certa in add itional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other add itional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America by us. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures perfOlmed as described above, the 
combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, other schedules and the Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as 
a whole . 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
In accordance with Govenunent Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 1, 2019 on 
our consideration of Town of Apex's internal control over financial rep0l1ing and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agreements, and other matters. The purpose of 
the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial rep0l1ing and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial rep0l1ing or on compliance. 
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering Town of Apex's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

November I, 2019 Cary, North Carolina 
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MANAGEMENT'S 
DISCUSSION 

AND 
ANALYSIS 

As management of the Town of Apex, we offer readers of the Town's financial statements this narrative 
overview and analysis of the fmancial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. We 
encourage readers to read the infonnation presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the 
front of this report and the basic fmancial statements and accompanying notes to the financial statements, 
which follow this narrative. 

Financial Highlights 

• The Town's assets and deferred outflows exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at the close 
of the fiscal year by approx.imately $757 million (net position). Ofthis amount, $74 million 
(unrestricted net position) may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

• The Town' s total net position increased by $62.9 million from the prior year. The net position of 
the governmental activities increased 65.1 million while the net position of the business-type 
activities decreased $2.2 million. Approximately $69.2 million of street related and utility 
infrastructure was donated by developers with a value of $65.8 million for street and sidewalk 
related infrastructure and $3.4 mi ll ion for utility intiastructure. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Town's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of approximately $78 million, an increase of$7.1 million compared to the 
prior year. The total fund balance in the General Fund increased $5 million while the total fund 
balance in other governmental funds increased $2.1 million primarily due to fees and payments 
received that are designated for recreation and street projects. 

• At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund increased to $26 
million, or 48.9% oftotal General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year. 

• The Town of Apex's total debt decreased by $5 .9 million during the current fiscal year as the 
Town did not issue any additional debt. 

• The Town entered into a legal settlement for claims challenging the Town's authority to collect 
impact fees for water, sewer and transportation infrastructure. The Town agreed to repay water 
and sewer capital fees of$ 14.6 million and $698,574 of transportation impact fees . 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Apex's basic financial 
statements. The Town's basic financial statements consist of three components: 1) entity-wide financial 
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial 
statements present two different views of the Town throngh the use of entity-wide statements and fund 
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader's understanding of the financial condition oftbe Town of Apex. 

Basic Financial Statements 

The [tfst two statements (Exhibits I and 2) in the basic financial statements are the Entity-wide Financial 
Statements. The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. The next section 
of the basic financial statements is the Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes explain in detail 
some of the data contained in those statements. The Required Supplemental Information contains 
additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles. After the notes and the 
required supplemental information, additional Supplemental Information is provided. The other 
supplemental information shows details about the Town's individual funds , including budgetary 
information required by North Carolina General Statutes. 
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• At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund increased to $26 
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• The Town of Apex 's total debt decreased by $5 .9 million during the current fiscal year as the 
Town did not issue any additional debt. 

• The Town entered into a legal settlement for claims challenging the Town's authority to collect 
impact fees for water, sewer and transportation infrastructure. The Town agreed to repay water 
and sewer capital fees of $ 14.6 million and $698,574 of transportation impact fees. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Apex's basic financial 
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statements, 2) fund fmancial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. The basic financial 
statements present two different views of the Town through tile use of entity-wide statements and fund 
financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains other supplemental 
information that will enhance the reader 's understanding of the financial condition of the Town of Apex. 
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Statements. The next statements (Exhibits 3 through 8) are Fund Financial Statements. The next section 
of the basic financial statements is the Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes explain in detail 
some of the data contained in those statements. The Required Supplemental Information contains 
additional information required by generally accepted accounting principles. After the notes and the 
required supplemental information, additional Supplemental Information is provided. The other 
supplemental information shows details about the Town's individual funds, including budgetary 
information required by North Carolina General Statutes. 
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Entity-wide Financial Statements 

The entity-wide fmancial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of the 
Town's finances, similar in fennat to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The entity-wide 
statements provide short and long-term infonnation about the Town's financial status as a whole. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's assets and liabilities, w ith the 
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may 
serve as a usefu l indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town's net position changed during the 
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise 
to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., 
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave.) 

Both of the enti ty-wide fmancial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are 
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type 
activities). The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, public 
works, environmental protection, and cultural and recreational. The business-type activities of the Town 
are utility system services, specifically electricity and water and sewer. 

In accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board criteria for inclusion in the reporting 
entity, the Town of Apex has no component units that must be included in this report. 

The entity-wide fmancial statements are on Exhibits I and 2 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Town's most significant activities. A 
fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like all other governmental entities in North 
Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town 's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the Town 
can be divided into three categories: goverrmlental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds: Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the entity-wide financial statements. However, unlike the entity­
wide fmancial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows 
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such infonnation may be useful in evaluating the Town's near-term fmancial requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the entity-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the infonnation presented for governmentalfimds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the entity-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the Town's near-teml financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet (Exhibi t 3) and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances (Exhibit 4) provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. 

During the past fiscal year, the Town of Apex maintained eight individual governmental funds: the General 
Fund, one special revenue fund (to account for revenues which are restricted to a specific purpose), five 
capital projects funds (to account for construction projects spanning more than one annual budget year or 
funds set aside for future projects), and one permanent fund (to account for funds reserved for perpetual 
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care of a cemetery). The General Fund and the Recreation Capital Projects Fund are the only governmental 
funds considered to be major funds. The other governmental funds are considered to be nonmajor and their 
information is presented in the aggregate. 

The Town of Apex adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This 
budgetary statement includes both original and final amended budgets. 

The basic govenunental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits 3 through 5. Governmental 
funds considered to be nonmajor are presented as a single colunm in these statements. 

Proprietary Funds: The Town maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the entity-wide financial 
statements, only in more detaiL The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its electric and water and 
sewer related activities. Both the Electric Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund are classified as major 
funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally 
among the Town's various functions. Apex uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insurance 
for health and dental claims. Because thls fund predominately benefits the governmental rather than 
business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the entity-wide statements. 

The basic proprietary fund fmancial statements can be found on Exhibits 6 through 8 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the entity-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements are on pages 32-67 of this report. 

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the Town's progress in funding its 
obligations to provide pension benefits to police officers under the Law Enforcement Officers Special 
Separation Allowance under GASB Statement 73, retiree. health insurance under GASB Statement 75 and 
pension benefits to its employees through the Local Government Employees' Retirement System. 
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 68-73 of thls report. 

Entity-Wide Financial Analysis 

Entity-wide financial statements can provide an excellent overall view of the Town's transactions for the 
year and its financial condition at year end. In particular, comparing current year amounts with the 
previous year's figures can highlight areas in which the Town's fmances are improving or deteriorating. 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of the Town's financial condition. 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had a positive balance in both its governmental and 
business-type activities. Governmental activities net position increased by $65.1 million to $471.9 million 
during the year while business-type net assets decreased by $2.2 million to $284.9 million. The decrease in 
business-type net assets was due to the settlement of a legal claim resulting in repayment of $ 14.6 million 
of water and sewer capital fees collected in prior years. 

care of a cemetery). The General Fund and the Recreation Capital Projects Fund are the oilly governmental 
funds considered to be major funds. The other governmental funds are considered to be nonmajor and their 
information is presented in the aggregate. 

The Town of Apex adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison 
statement has been provided for the General FUild to demonstrate compliance with this budget. This 
budgetary statement includes both original and final amended budgets. 

The basic govermnental fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits 3 througb 5. Governmental 
funds considered to be nonmaj or are presented as a single column in these statements. 

Proprietary Funds: Tbe Town maintains two di fferellt types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the entity-wide financial 
statements, only in more detail . The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its electric and water and 
sewer related activities. Both the Electric Fund and tbe Water and Sewer Fund are classified as major 
funds. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally 
among the Town's various functions . Apex uses an internal service fund to account for its self-insurance 
for health and dental claims. Because this fund predominately benefits the governmental rather than 
business-type functions, it has been included within governmental activities in the entity-wide statements. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits 6 through 8 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes provide additional information tbat is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the entity-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the 
financial statements are on pages 32-67 of this report. 

Other Information: In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report 
includes certain required supplementary information concerning the Town's progress in funding its 
obligations to provide pension benefits to police officers under the Law Enforcement Officers Special 
Separation Allowance under GASB Statement 73, retiree.bealth insurance under GASB Statement 75 and 
pension benefits to its employees through the Local Government Employees' Retirement System. 
Required supplementary information can be found on pages 68-73 of this report. 

Entity-Wide Financial Analysis 

Entity-wide financial statements can provide an excellent overall view of the Town's transactions for the 
year and its financia l condition at year end. In particular, comparing current year amounts with the 
previous year's figures can highlight areas in which the Town's finances are improving or deteriorating. 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of the Town's financial condition. 
At the end oftbe current fiscal year, the Town had a positive balance in both its governmental and 
business-type activities. Governmental activities net position increased by $65. 1 million to $471.9 million 
during the year while business-type net asse ts decreased by $2.2 million to $284.9 million. The decrease in 
business-type net assets was due to the settlement of a legal claim resulting in repayment of $14.6 million 
of water and sewer capital fees collected in prior years. 
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The Town of Apex 
Net Position 

(in luillions) 

Govemmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 
20 19 2018 2019 2018 2019 2017 

Current and Other Assets $84.2 $75.2 $89.5 $81.9 $ 173.7 $ 157. 1 

Cap ital Assets 476.8 420.0 278.0 277.3 754.8 697.3 
Total Assets 561.0 495.2 367.5 359.2 928.5 854.4 

Deferred Outflows 8.5 4.4 2.2 1.3 10.7 5.7 

Long-Term Liabilities 84.5 79.5 58.9 60.1 143.4 139.6 
Other Liabi lities 10.9 9.8 25.5 12.6 36.4 22.4 

Total Liabilities 95.4 89.3 84.4 72.7 179 .8 162.0 
Deferred Inflows 2.2 2.8 0.4 0.6 2.6 3.4 

Net Position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 446.5 383.8 225.2 220.3 671.7 604.1 
Restricted I 1. 1 10.4 11.1 10.4 
Unrestricted 14.3 13.3 59.7 66.9 74.0 80.2 

Total Net Position $47 1.9 $407.5 $284.9 $287.2 $756.8 $694.7 

As is the case for many entities, the largest portion of the Town's net position ($671.7 million or 88.7%) is 
represented by its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment less any 
related debt sti ll outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets). These capital assets are used to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, they are not avai lable for future spending. And although the 
Town's net investment in its capital assets is reduced by the outstanding related debt, it should be noted that 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot 
be used to pay these related liabilities. 

Approximately $69.2 million of street related and utility infrastructure assets were donated from 
developers, valued at $65.8 million for street and sidewalk related infrastructure and $3.4 million for utility 
infrastructure. Most oftbe remainder of the Town's net assets ($74 million or 9.8%) are unrestricted, 
meaning they may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

During the 2019 fiscal year the Town established an irrevocable trust for payments of its other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability. In accordance with Goverrunental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions, the Town adjusted the measurement date for its OPEB plan to agree to the reporting date. As a 
result, beginning net position for the governmental activities decreased $624,4 11 and $122,782 for the 
business type activities. 

The Town of Apex 
Net Position 

( illlllillions) 

Govemmental Business-Ty pe 

Act ivit ies Activities Total 
20 19 20 18 20 19 20 18 20 19 20 17 

Current and Other Assets $84.2 $75.2 $89.5 $81.9 $ 173.7 $ 157. 1 

Cap ital Assets 476.8 420.0 278.0 277.3 754.8 697.3 
Total Assets 561.0 495.2 367.5 359.2 928.5 854.4 

Deferred Outflows 8.5 4.4 2.2 1.3 10.7 5.7 

Long-Term Liabilities 84.5 79.5 58.9 60. 1 143.4 139.6 
Other Liabi lities 10.9 9.8 25.5 12.6 36.4 22.4 

Total Liabilities 95.4 89.3 84.4 72.7 179.8 162.0 
Deferred Inflows 2.2 2.8 0.4 0.6 2.6 3.4 

Net Position: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 446.5 383.8 225.2 220.3 67 1.7 604.1 
Restricted I 1.1 10.4 11.1 10.4 
Unrestricted 14.3 13.3 59.7 66.9 74.0 80.2 

Total Net Position $47 1.9 $407.5 $284 .9 $287.2 $756.8 $694 .7 

As is the case for many entities, the largest portion of the Town 's net position ($67 1.7 million or 88.7%) is 
represented by its net investment in capital assets (e.g. land, buildings, machinery, and equipment less any 
related debt sti ll outstanding that was issued to acquire those assets). These capital assets are used to 
provide services to citizens; consequently, they are not avai lable for future spending. And a lthough the 
Town's net investment in its capital assets is reduced by the outstanding related debt, it should be noted that 
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets cannot 
be used to pay these related liabili ties. 

Approximately $69.2 million of street related and utility infrastructure assets were donated from 
developers, valued at $65.8 million for streel and sidewalk related infrastructure and $3.4 million for utility 
infrastructure. Most of the remainder of the Town 's net assets ($74 million or 9.8%) are unrestricted, 
meaning they may be used to meet the Town's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

During the 20 19 fiscal year the Town established an irrevocable trust for payments of its other 
postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability. In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions, the Town adjusted the measurement date for its OPEB plan to agree to the reporting date. As a 
result, beginning net position for the governmental activities decreased $624,411 and $ 122,782 for the 
business type activities. 
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The Town of Apex 
Changes ill Net Position 

(in millions) 

Governmental Bu siness -type 
Activities Activities Total 

20 19 20 18 20 19 20 18 20 19 20 18 
Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 
Charges for Services $ 14.0 $ 15.6 $58.2 $54.6 $72.2 $70.2 
Operating Grants and Contributions 2.9 4 .3 2 .9 4.3 
Capital Grants and Contributions 66.0 98. 1 14. 2 37.9 80.2 136.0 

General Revenues: 
Propeny Taxes 29.5 24.7 29.5 24. 7 
OtberTaxes 11.8 10.6 1 1.8 10.6 
Inves tment Earning;:; 1.6 0.6 1.5 0.7 3.1 1.3 
Other 3.7 3.5 0. 1 3.8 3.5 

Total Revenues 129.5 157.4 74.0 93.2 203.5 250.6 

Expenses: 
General Government 11.7 10.6 11.7 10.6 
Public Safety 2 1.0 2 1.1 21.0 21. 1 
Public Works 19.0 16.5 19.0 16.5 
Environmental Protection 4. 1 3.6 4 . 1 3.6 
Cultural and Recreation 6.4 5.7 6.4 5.7 
Interes t on Long-Term Debt 1.5 1.1 1.5 1.1 
Water and Sewer 24.5 22.3 24 .5 22.3 
Electric 37.0 34.3 37.0 34.3 
Special It em-Legal Sett lemnet 0.7 14.7 15.4 

Total Expenses 64.4 58.6 76.2 56.6 140.6 11 5.2 

Change io Net Position 65. 1 98.8 (2.2) 36.6 62.9 135.4 

Net Posit ion - Beginning of year 407.5 325.0 287.2 252. 1 694.7 577.1 
Res tatement GASB #75 (0.6) (16.3) (0. 1) ( 1.5) (0.7) ( 17.8) 
Net Posit ion - Begjnningofyear as restated 406.9 308.7 287. 1 250.6 694.0 559.3 

Net Position - End of year $472.0 $407.5 $284.9 $287.2 $756.9 $694.7 

Governmental activities: Revenues related to governmental activities decreased $27.9 million, or 18%. 
The majority of this decrease came from Capital Grants and Contributions which decreased by $32 million 
due to decreased grants for transportation projects and developer contributions. Tax revenues also 
increased by $4.8 million due to an increased tax base. Total expenses were up by $5.8 mill ion or 5.2%. 
While most areas experiencing higher operating costs, $2.8 million of the increase is due to increased 
depreciation upon Town infrastructure. The Town discontinued emergency medical services (EMS) 
operations at the end of the 20 18 fiscal year. Those services are now provided by Wake County. 

Business-type activities: Total business-type activity revenues decreased by $19.2 mill ion or 20% during 
the fiscal year. Capital contributions of water and sewer lines from developers decreased $ 13 million while 
capital reimbursement fees decreased $ 10.6 million from high prior year amounts. Charges for services 
increased $3.6 million or 6.6%. Electric rates were increased 2. 15% and sewer rates 4.3% at the beginning 
of the fisca l year. Spending for business-type activities increased $4.9 million or 8.7%. The greatest 
change being increases in electric power purchases, depreciation expense and operations. Increases in 
operations and power purchases were in line with customer growth of approximately 9%. 

The Town of Apex 
Changes in Net Position 

(in millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Act ivit ies Activities Total 

20 19 20 18 2019 20 18 20 19 20 18 
Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 
Charges for Services $14.0 $ 15.6 $58.2 $54.6 $72.2 $70.2 
Operating Grants and Contributions 2.9 4 .3 2.9 4.3 
Cap ital Grants and Contributions 66.0 98. 1 14.2 37.9 80.2 136.0 

General Revenues: 
Propeny Taxes 29.5 24 .7 29.5 24.7 
OlberTaxes 11 .8 10.6 11 .8 10.6 
ln ves tment Earnings 1.6 0.6 1.5 0.7 3 . 1 1.3 
Other 3.7 3.5 o.t 3.8 3.5 

Total Reven ues 129.5 157.4 74 .0 93 .2 203.5 250.6 

Expens es : 
General Government 11.7 10.6 11 .7 10 .6 
Public Safety 2 1.0 21.1 21.0 21. 1 
Public Works 19.0 16.5 19.0 16.5 
Environmental Protection 4 . 1 3.6 4 . 1 3.6 
Cultural and Recreation 6.4 5.7 6 .4 5.7 
Interes t on Long-Term Debt 1.5 1.1 1.5 1.1 
Water and Sewer 24.5 22.3 24.5 22.3 
Electric 37.0 34.3 37.0 34.3 
Special Item-Legal Settlemnet 0.7 14.7 15.4 

Total Expenses 64.4 58.6 76.2 56.6 140.6 115.2 

Cbange in Net Position 65. 1 98.8 (2.2) 36.6 62.9 135.4 

Net Position - Beginning of year 407.5 325.0 287.2 252. 1 694.7 577. 1 
Restatement GASB #75 (0.6) (16.3) (0.1) ( 1.5) (0.7) (17.8) 
Net Position - Beginning of year as restated 406.9 308.7 287.1 250.6 694.0 559.3 

Net Position- End of year $472.0 $407.5 $284.9 $287.2 $756.9 $694.7 

Governmental activities: Revenues related to governmental activities decreased $27.9 million, or 18%. 
The majority of this decrease came from Capital Grants and Contributions which decreased by $32 million 
due to decreased grants for transportation projects and developer contributions. Tax revenues also 
increased by $4.8 million due to an increased tax base. Total expenses were up by $5.8 mi ll ion or 5.2%. 
While most areas experiencing higher operating costs, $2.8 million of the increase is due to increased 
depreciation upon Town infrastructure. The Town discontinued emergency medical services (EMS) 
operations at the end of the 2018 fiscal year. Those services are now provided by Wake County. 

Business-type activities: Total business-type activity revenues decreased by $19.2 million or 20% during 
the fiscal year. Capital contributions of water and sewer lines from developers decreased $13 million while 
capital reimbursement fees decreased $10.6 million from high prior year amounts. Charges for services 
increased $3.6 million or 6.6%. Electric rates were increased 2.15% and sewer rates 4.3% at the beginning 
of the fiscal year. Spending for business-type activities increased $4.9 million or 8.7%. The greatest 
change being increases in electric power purchases, depreciation expense and operations. [nereases in 
operations and power purchases were in line with customer growth of approximately 9%. 
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Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Town of Apex uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds: The focus of the Town of Apex's governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
Town's financing requirements. Specifically, unassignedfund balance can be a useful measure of the 
Town's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. This is the portion of fund 
balance remaining after subtracting the amounts that have been restricted (usually by NC state law) or 
assigned (designated for a specific purpose by the Town's management). 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the T own of Apex. At the end of the fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $26.1 million, while total fund balance increased to 
$39.8 million. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned 
fund balance and tota l fund balance to total fund expenditures. As of June 30, 20 19, unass igned fund 
balance was 48.9% of the year 's expenditures (compared to 44.4% last year), while total fund balance 
represents 74.9% of that same amount (70.6% in 2018). 

The Town strives to maintain an unassigned fund balance of25% of expenditures. Amounts in excess of 
this minimum may be used for construction projects when the Town wishes to avoid the issuance of 
additional debt, for emergency work needed after natural disasters, or for maintaining a stable tax rate when 
economically dependent revenues (i.e. sales taxes) are less than budgeted amounts. The Town budgeted 
$6.9 million of fund balance for the 2018- 19 fiscal year to help meet the needs ofa fast growing 
community for vehicles, equipment and street improvements. Again, revenues ended better than anticipated 
and expenditures were less than anticipated and total fund balance increased by $5 million as a result of 
fiscal year operations. Total revenues were $ 1.6 million more than the final budget, primarily because 
higher than expected revenues from property, utility sales and sales taxes. In addition, total departmental 
expenditures ended the year $9.9 mill ion less than the final budget. 

The Recreation Capital Project Fund ended the fiscal year with a fund balance of $23.9 million, all 
restricted or committed to recreation improvements. Fund balance increased during the year by $3 million 
due to transfers from other funds, investment earnings and restricted revenues. The Fund expended $1.2 
million on capital projects during the fiscal year. 

At year end, the govermnental funds of Town of Apex reported a combined fund balance of $78 million, an 
increase of$7.2 million from the prior year. The increase resulted predominately from the General Fund 
and Recreation Capital Proj ect Fund increases discussed above and an increase in revenues designated for 
street projects. During the year the Town spent $1.7 million for streets projects. The General Fund, special 
revenue fund , and capital projects funds are included in this combined fund balance amount. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Town revised the budget on several 
occasions. Generally, budget amendments are made to recognize new funding amounts or to increase 
appropriations that become necessary for capital projects or to expand services. 

Overall, General Fund revenues increased by $4.6 million from the prior year, an increase of 8.5%. This 
increase came from increases in property taxes, sales taxes and garbage and recycling fees . Permits and 
fees fell by $.7 million or 13% from exceptionally high prior year amounts. The Town discontinued EMS 
services and therefore did not receive a $ 1.6 million grant from Wake County for that purpose. 

General Fund expenditures rose by $4 million, or 8.1 %. The majority of the increase came in expenditures 
for Public Safety, Administration and Parks and Recreation. The major initiatives of note were increased 
operating costs and capital outlay. 

Financial Analysis of the Town's Funds 

As noted earlier, the Town of Apex uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds: The focus of the Town of Apex ' s governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
Town's financing requirements. Specifically, unassignedJund balance can be a useful measure of the 
Town's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. This is the portion of fund 
balance remaining after subtracting the amounts that have been restricted (usuaUy by NC state law) or 
assigned (designated for a specific purpose by the Town's management). 

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the T own of Apex. At the end of the fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the General Fund was $26.1 million, while total fund balance increased to 
$39.8 million. As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned 
fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. As of June 30, 20 19, unassigned fund 
balance was 48.9% of the year's expenditures (compared to 44.4% last year), while total fund balance 
represents 74.9% of that same amount (70.6% in 20 18). 

The Town strives to maintain an unassigned fund balance of25% of expenditures. Amounts in excess of 
this minimum may be used for construction projects when the Town wishes to avoid the issuance of 
additional debt, for emergency work needed after natural disasters, or for maintaining a stable tax rate when 
economically dependent revenues (i.e. sales taxes) are less than budgeted amounts. The Town budgeted 
$6.9 million of fund balance for the 2018-19 fiscal year to help meet the needs o fa fast growing 
community for vehicles, equipment and street improvements. Again, revenues ended better than anticipated 
and expenditures were less than anticipated and total fund balance increased by $5 miUion as a result of 
fiscal year operations. Total revenues were $1.6 million more than the final budget, primarily because 
higher than expected revenues from property, utility sales and sales taxes. In addition, tota l departmental 
expenditures ended the year $9.9 million less than the fmal budget. 

The Recreation Capital Project Fund ended the fiscal year wi th a fund balance of $23.9 million, all 
restricted or committed to recreation improvements. Fund balance increased during the year by $3 million 
due to transfers from other funds, investment earnings and restricted revenues. The Fund expended $ 1.2 
million on capital projects during the fiscal year. 

At year end, tile governmental funds of Town of Apex reported a combined fund balance of $78 million, an 
increase of$7.2 million from the prior year. The increase resulted predominately from the General Fund 
and Recreation Capital Project Fund increases discussed above and an increase in revenues designated for 
street projects. During the year the Town spent $ 1.7 million for streets projects. The General Fund, special 
revenue fund, and capital projects funds are included in this combined fund balance amount. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Town revised the budget on several 
occasions. Generally. budget amendments are made to recognize new funding amounts or to increase 
appropriations that become necessary for capital projects or to expand services. 

Overall, General Fund revenues increased by $4.6 million from the prior year, an increase of 8.5%. This 
increase came from increases in property taxes, sales taxes and garbage and recycling fees . Permits and 
fees fell by $.7 milHon or 13% from exceptionally high prior year amounts. The Town discontinued EMS 
services and therefore did not receive a $ 1.6 million grant from Wake County for that purpose. 

General Fund expenditures rose by $4 million, or 8. 1 %. The majority of the increase came in expenditures 
for Public Safety, Administration and Parks and Recreation. The major initiatives of note were increased 
operating costs and capital outlay. 
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Proprietary Funds: The Town of Apex's proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of 
information found in the entity-wide statements but with each of the two funds broken out separately. 
Unrestricted net positions of the Electric and Water and Sewer Funds at the end of the fi scal year were 
$ 1 1.1 million and $49.9 million, respectively. The change in net position for the Electric Fund was an 
increase of$3.9 million and a decrease of $6.2 million in the Water and Sewer Fund. The decrease in the 
Water and Sewer Fund was due to settlement of legal claims related to water and sewer capital fees. 

[n the Electric Fund, operating revenues increased by $2 .4 million or 6.25% due to an increase in the 
number of customers and rates. Operating expenses increased by $2.8 million or 8.2% flat due to an 
increase in the cost of power, depreciation expense and an increase in the number of customers. 

In the Water and Sewer Fund, operating revenues increased by $1.1 million or 6.75% due to customer 
growth and increases in sewer rates. Operating expenses increased by $2.2 million or 10.6% predominately 
due to increases in depreciation expense and customer growth. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets: The Town of Apex's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business- type 
ac tivities as of June 30, 20 19, totaled $754.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets 
include buildings, streets and sidewalks, land, machinery and equipment including vehicles, park facil ities, 
utility plants, electric and water distribution systems, and wastewater collection systems. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the fo llowing additions (there were no significant 
demolitions or disposals): 

• Construction and additions in the govenunental-type activities of $74.4 million, 
• Electric distribution system improvements, additions, and other capital assets of $4.7 million, 
• Water and sewer system improvements, additions, and other capital assets of $9 .3 million. 

Town of Apex 
Capital Assets 

(in millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activi ties Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 201 9 2018 

Land $104.6 $93.3 $55. 1 $53. 1 $159.7 $146.4 
Construction in Progress 6.6 3.9 7.1 3. 1 13.7 

Total Non-Depreciable Assets 111.2 97.2 62.2 56.2 173.4 

Buildings and Improvements 48.4 47.6 15.1 15 .1 63.5 
Machinery and Equipment 8.5 7.0 3.9 3. 7 12.4 
Vehicles 13.6 11.4 5.5 4.9 19. 1 
Infrastructure 445.3 389.8 323.7 316.9 769.0 
Total Depreciable 515.8 455.8 348.2 340.6 864.0 
Accumulated Depreciation (150.2) (133.0) (132.4) (1 19.5) (282.6) 

Total Depreciable Assets, Net 365.6 322.8 215.8 . 22 1.1 581.4 

Total $476.8 $420.0 $278.0 $277.3 $754.8 

Addi tional information on the Town ' s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the Notes to the Financial 
Statements starting on page 43. 
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Proprietary Funds: The Town of Apex 's proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of 
information found in the entity-wide statements but with each of the two funds broken out separately. 
Unrestricted net positions of the Electric and Water and Sewer Funds at the end of the fiscal year were 
$ 1 1.1 million and $49.9 million, respectively. The change in net position for the Electric Fund was an 
increase of$3.9 million and a decrease of$6.2 million in the Water and Sewer Fund. The decrease in the 
Water and Sewer Fund was due to settlement of legal claims related to water and sewer capital fees. 

In the Electric Fund, operating revenues increased by $2.4 million or 6.25% due to an increase in the 
number of customers and rates. Operating expenses increased by $2.8 million or 8.2% flat due to an 
increase in the cost of power, depreciation expense and an increase in the number of customers. 

[n the Water and Sewer Fund, operating revenues increased by $1.1 million or 6.75% due to customer 
growth and increases in sewer rates. Operating expenses increased by $2.2 million or 10.6% predominately 
due to increases in depreciation expense and customer growth. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets: The Town of Apex's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business- type 
ac tivities as of June 30, 2019, totaled $754.8 million (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets 
include buildings, streets and sidewalks, land, machinery and equipment including vehicles, park facilities, 
utility plants, electric and water distribution systems, and wastewater collection systems. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include the fo llowing additions (there were no significant 
demolit ions or disposals): 

• Construction and additions in the govenunental-type activities of $74.4 million, 
• Electric distribution system improvements, additions, and other capital assets of $4.7 million, 
• Water and sewer system improvements, additions, and other capital assets of$9.3 million. 

Town of Apex 
Capital Assets 

(in millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 

Land $104.6 $93.3 $55. 1 $53. 1 $159.7 $146.4 
Construction in Progress 6.6 3.9 7.1 3. t 13.7 

Total Non-Depreciable Assets 111.2 97.2 62.2 56.2 173.4 

Buildings and Improvements 48.4 47.6 15.1 15.1 63.5 
Machinery and Equipment 8.5 7.0 3.9 3. 7 12.4 
Vehicles 13.6 11.4 5.5 4.9 19. 1 
Infrastructure 445 .3 389.8 323.7 316.9 769.0 
Total Depreciable 515.8 455.8 348.2 340.6 864.0 
Accumulated Depreciation (150.2) (133.0) (132.4) (119.5) (282.6) 

Total Depreciable Assets, Net 365.6 322.8 215.8 . 221.1 581.4 

Total $476.8 $420.0 $278.0 $277.3 $754.8 

Additional information on the Town' s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of the Notes to the Financial 
Statements starting on page 43 . 
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Long-term Debt: As oflune 30, 2019, the Town of Apex had total general obligation bonded debt 
outstanding of $67 million, including $2.6 million of deferred premium, electric revenue bonds outstanding 
of $2.9 million, and installment purchase re lated debt of $32.7 million. Of the general obligation bonds, 
$3 1.9 million, including $ 1.3 million of deferred premium, is being repaid from utility system revenues. 
The remainder of the Town's general obligation bonds, are being repaid from the General Fund. During 
the year, the Town issued no additional debt and retired debt of $5.9 million. 

General Obligation Bonds 
Revenue Bo nds 

In stallment Purchases 

Total 

Town of Apex O utstanding Debt 
(in millions) 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2019 2018 2019 2018 

$35. 1 $37.1 $31.9 $32.8 
2.9 3.4 

13.4 14.4 19.3 20.8 

$ 48.5 $ 51.5 $ 54.1 $ 57.0 

Total 
2019 2018 

$67.0 $69.9 
2.9 3.4 

32.7 35.2 

$ 102.6 $ 108.5 

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of goverrunent can 
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that Town's boundaries. 
The legal debt margin for Apex is $518 million. However, this statutory limit far exceeds the Town's 
realistic debt capacity. 

The Town had authorized and unissued debtor $40 million as of June 30, 2019. or that amount, $28 million 
was for parks and recreational facilities and 412 million for street and sidewalk improvements. Additional 
information regarding the Town of Apex's long-term debt can be found in Note 10 of this report beginning 
on page 58. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 

At June 30, 20 19, Apex's population was estimated at 58,135. Single family residential construction was 
up over 12.3% for the fiscal year compared to the prior year based upon construction value. Construction 
activity remains strong in the area. The Town's economic outlook will largely be dependent on the overall 
national economy. 

Employment opportunities are derived from within the Town as well as from Raleigh, the state capital, and 
RTP. which employs over 50,000 in high-technology fields. In addition, the Raleigh-Durham area also 
contains several colleges and universities and major health care facil ities. These employers have 
historically been relatively stable and less sensitive to economic downturns. As a result, the unemployment 
rate has historically been lower than the state and national averages. At year end the rate for Apex was 
3.3% versus the statewide rate of4.4% and the U.S. rate of3.8%. Because of the highly specialized nature 
of many of the citizens' employment, income levels in Wake County have also have been historically above 
the state and national averages. 

Long-term Debt: As ofJune 30, 2019, the Town of Apex had total general obligation bonded debt 
outstanding of $67 million, including $2.6 million of deferred premium, electric revenue bonds outstanding 
of$2.9 million, and installment purchase related debt of$32.7 million. Of the general obligation bonds, 
$3 1.9 million, including $ 1.3 million of deferred premium, is being repaid from utility system revenues. 
The remainder of the Town's general obligation bonds, are being repaid from the General Fund. During 
the year, the Town issued no additional debt and retired debt of $5.9 million. 

General Obligation Bonds 
Revenue Bo nds 
In stallment Purchases 

Tota l 

Town of Apex Outstanding Debt 
(in millions) 

Governmental Bus ines s-type 
Activities Activities 

2019 2018 2019 2018 

$35. 1 $37. 1 $3 1.9 $32.8 
2.9 3.4 

13.4 14.4 19.3 20.8 

$ 48.5 $ 51.5 $ 54.1 $ 57.0 

Total 
2019 2018 

$67.0 $69.9 
2.9 3.4 

32.7 35.2 

$ 102.6 $ 108.5 

North Carolina general statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can 
issue to 8 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that Town 's boundaries. 
The legal debt margin for Apex is $5 18 million. However, this statutory limit far exceeds the Town's 
realistic debt capacity. 

The Town had authorized and unissued debt or $40 million as ofJune 30, 20 19. Of that amount, $28 million 
was for parks and recreational facilities and 412 million for street and sidewalk improvements. Additional 
information regarding the Town of Apex's long-term debt can be found in Note 10 of this report beginning 
on page 58 . 

Economic Factors and Next Year 's Budgets and Rates 

At June 30, 20 19. Apex's population was estimated at 58,135. Single family residential construction was 
up over 12.3% for the fiscal year compared to the prior year based upon construction value. Construction 
activity remains strong in the area. The Town's economic outlook will largely be dependent on the overall 
national economy. 

Employment opportunities are derived from within the Town as well as from Raleigh, the state capital, and 
RTP. which employs over 50,000 in high-technology fields. In addition, the Raleigh-Durham area also 
contains several colleges and universities and major health care facilities. These employers have 
historically been relatively stable and less sensitive to economic downturns. As a result, the unemployment 
rate has historically been lower than the state and national averages. At year end the rate for Apex was 
3.3% versus the statewide rate of4.4% and the U.S. rate of3.8%. Because of the highly specialized nature 
of many of the citizens' employment, income levels in Wake County have also have been historically above 
the state and national averages. 
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Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 

Governmental Funds: The General Fund' s budget is $65 million. The Town's tax base increased from 
$6.99 billion at January 1, 2018 to $7.82 billion at January 1,20 19 as a result of growth. The Town's tax 
rate remained at 41.5 cents per $100. Revenues estimates for property taxes are 12% above the prior year 
budget. Most other revenues were estimated to continue at or slightly below the levels seen during 2018-19. 
Sales tax collected for the 2018-19 fiscal year were 8.9% higher than the prior year and the budget projects 
a 6% increase over that amount. The Town's current 2019-20 budget pT(~iects construction and 
development related revenues to be lower than the final figures for 2018-19 contained in this report. There 
were modest changes in other charges and fees. 

The budget includes 34 new positions in the General Fund, 18 of those positions are in public safety and 4 
are in public works. Total budgeted revenues were up 11 % from the original 2018-19 budget to $61 
million. The adopted budget appropriates $2.3 million of fund balance. 

Proprietary Funds: The Town expects continued growth in the number of customers. Rates for sewer 
service were increased by 4% and rates for electric services were increased by 1.65%. Revenues in both 
funds are expected to increase from the prior year and keep pace with increased expenditures. The budget 
for the Electric Fund is $43.5 million which is a 9% increase from the original budget adopted in the prior 
year. The Water and Sewer Fund's budget is at $23 .5 million which is a 10% increase from the original 
budget adopted in the prior year. Apex remains committed to a number of water and sewer system 
improvements over the next several years with the Town ofeary. Annually. the Town reviews revised 
estimates of the costs of these pr~iects and the projected revenues and expenses of the Water and Sewer 
Fund's to identifY that sufficient capital will be available for project completion. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town's finances for those with an interest in this area. 
Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information 
should be directed to the Finance Director, Town of Apex, Post Office Box 250, Apex, North Carolina 
27502. 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020 

Governmental Funds: The General Fund's budget is $65 million. The Town's tax base increased from 
$6.99 billion at January I. 20 18 to $7.82 billion at January 1,2019 as a result of growth. The Town's tax 

rate remained at 41.5 cents per $100. Revenues estimates for property taxes are 12% above the prior year 
budget. Most other revenues were estimated to continue at or slightly below the levels seen during 2018- 19. 
Sales tax collected for the 2018-19 fiscal year were 8.9% higher than the prior year and the budget projects 
a 6% increase over that amount. The Town's current 2019-20 budget prqjects construction and 
development related revenues to be lower than the final figures for 2018-19 contained in this report. There 
were modest changes in other charges and fees. 

The budget includes 34 new positions in the General Fund, 18 of those positions are in public safety and 4 
are in public works. Total budgeted revenues were up 11% from the original 20 18-19 budget to $61 
million. The adopted budget appropriates $2.3 million of fund balance. 

Proprietary Funds: The Town expects continued growth in the number of customers. Rates for sewer 
service were increased by 4% and rates for electric services were increased by 1.65%, Revenues in both 
funds are expected to increase from the prior year and keep pace with increased expenditures. The budget 
for the Electric Fund is $43.5 million which is a 9% increase from the original budget adopted in the prior 
year. The Water and Sewer Fund's budget is at $23 .5 million which is a 10% increase from the original 
budget adopted in the prior year. Apex remains committed to a number of water and sewer system 
improvements over the next several years with the Town ofeary. Annually. the Town reviews revised 
estimates of the costs of these prqjects and the projected revenues and expenses of the Water and Sewer 

Fund's to identifY that sufficient capital will be available for project completion. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town's finances for those with an interest in this area. 
Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional information 
should be directed to the Finance Director, Town of Apex, Post Office Box 250, Apex, North Carolina 
27502. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2019 
Exhibit 1 

2019 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 58,015,576 $ 76,741,233 $ 134,756,809 
Taxes receivables (net) 136,392 136,392 
Accounts receivable (net) 425 ,067 9,392,932 9,8 17,999 
Due from other governments 4,872,266 4,872,266 
Internal balances (26,272) 26,272 
Prepaid items 203 ,455 203,455 
Security deposits 35, 100 35, 100 
Inventories 21,339 1,93 1,238 1,952,577 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 20,438 ,706 1,485,997 21,924,703 
Note receivable 75,000 75,000 

Capital assets: 

Land, improvements, and construction in progress 111 ,184,548 62,304,500 173,489,048 
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 365,615,185 215,669,464 58 1,284,649 

Total assets 560,996,362 367,551,636 928,547,998 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPEB deferrals 2,063 ,354 405,730 2,469,084 
Pension deferrals 6,445,641 1,839,792 8,285,433 

Total deferred outflows of resources 8,508,995 2,245,522 10,754,517 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 6,358,969 21,376,292 27,735,261 
Accrued interest payable 26 1,644 168,265 429,909 
Customer deposits 705,451 705,451 
Current portion of long-term liabilities 4,2 12,732 3,286,508 7,499,240 

Total current liabilities 10,833,345 25,536,516 36,369,861 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due in more than one year 84,497,960 58,922,612 143,420,572 

Total liabilities 95,331,305 84,459,128 179,790,433 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Prepaid taxes and fees 90,970 90,970 
OPEB deferrals 1,943,493 382 ,160 2,325,653 
Pension deferrals 206,928 37,358 244,286 

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,241,391 419,518 2,660,909 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 446,503 ,697 223,903,110 670,406,807 
Restricted for: 

Nonexpendable 
Perpetual Care 697,418 697,418 

Expendable 
Stabilization by State Statute 8,926,329 8,926,329 
Public Safety 294,254 294,254 
Construction Management Inspections 1,209,88 1 1,209,88 1 

Umestricted 14,301 ,082 61,015,402 75,316,484 
Total net position $ 471 ,932,66 1 $ 284,918 ,512 $ 756,851,173 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these frnancial statements. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

June 30, 2019 
Exhibit 1 

2019 
Governmental Business-type 

Activities Activities Total 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 58,015,576 $ 76,741,233 $ 134,756,809 
Taxes receivables (net) 136,392 136,392 
Accounts receivable (net) 425 ,067 9,392,932 9,8 17,999 
Due from other governments 4,872,266 4,872,266 
Internal balances (26,272) 26,272 
Prepaid items 203 ,455 203 ,455 
Security deposits 35,100 35, 100 
Inventories 21,339 1,93 1,238 1,952,577 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 20,438,706 1,485,997 21,924,703 
Note receivable 75,000 75,000 

Capital assets: 

Land, improvements, and construction in progress 111 ,184,548 62,304,500 173,489,048 
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 365,6 15,185 215,669,464 58 1,284,649 

Total assets 560,996,362 367,551,636 928,547,998 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPEB deferrals 2,063 ,354 405,730 2,469,084 
Pension deferrals 6,445,641 1,839,792 8,285,433 

Total deferred outflows of resources 8,508,995 2,245,522 10,754,5 17 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 6,358,969 21 ,376,292 27,735,261 
Accrued interest payable 26 1,644 168,265 429,909 
Customer deposits 705,451 705,451 
Current portion of long-term liabilities 4,2 12,732 3,286,508 7,499,240 

Total current liabilities 10,833,345 25,536,516 36,369,861 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due in more than one year 84,497,960 58,922,612 143,420,572 

Totalliabilities 95,33 1,305 84,459,128 179,790,433 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Prepaid taxes and fees 90,970 90,970 
OPEB deferrals 1,943,493 382 ,160 2,325,653 
Pension deferrals 206,928 37,358 244,286 

Total deferred inflows of resources 2,241,391 419 ,5 18 2,660,909 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 446,503 ,697 223,903,110 670,406,807 
Restricted for: 

Nonexpendable 
Perpetual Care 697,418 697,418 

Expendable 
Stabilization by State Statute 8,926,329 8,926,329 
Public Safety 294,254 294,254 
Construction Management Inspections 1,209,88 1 1,209,88 1 

Umestricted 14,301,082 61 ,015,402 75,316,484 
Total net position $ 471 ,932,661 $ 284,918 ,512 $ 756,851,173 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these flllancial statements. 
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Exhibit 2 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
Governmenta! Act ivities: 

Genera l government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Environmental protection 
Cultural and recreation 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Electric 
Water and Sewer 

Total business-type activities 
Total 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Program Revenues Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Charges for Operating Grants Capital Grants Governmental Business-type 

Expenses Services and Contributions and Contributions Activities Activities Total 

$ 11,745,656 $ 5,080, 186 $ $ $ (6,665,470) $ $ (6,665,470) 
21,0 19,198 1,607,931 (19,411,267) (1 9,41 1,267) 
18 ,983,578 219,682 1,257,391 65,813,640 48,307,135 48,307, 135 
4,147,390 4,193,005 45,615 45,615 
6,394,976 4,538,664 138,349 (1,7 17,963) (1,717 ,963) 
I !51 0,226 (1.5 10,226} (1,510,226) 

63,801,024 14z03 1z537 2,865,3'2 65,95 1,989 19,047,824 19,047,824 

37,0 17,407 40,806,930 3,789,523 3,789,523 
24,462,359 17,407,409 14,23 1!202 7z176z252 7,176,252 
61,479,766 58,214,339 14,,3 1,,0, 10,965,775 10,965,775 

$ 125,280,790 $ 72,245,876 $ 2,865,322 $ 80,183,191 19,047,824 10,965,775 30,013,599 

General revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 29,497,621 29,497,62! 
Other taxes 

Local option sales 11,038,256 I J ,038,256 
Motor vehicle licenses 791,488 791,488 

Miscel laneous 82 ,208 82,208 

Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,260,783 3,260,783 

Unrestricted investment earnings 1,620,582 1,453,580 3,074,162 

Miscellaneous 474,460 58,781 533,241 

Total general revenues 46,765,398 1,512,361 48,277,759 

Specia l item: Legal settlement (698,574) (14,658,099) (15,356,673) 

Change in net position 65,114,648 (2,179,963) 62,934,685 

Net position-beginning of year (as previously stated) 407,442,424 287,221,257 694,663,681 

Adjustment to beginning net position {624,411 ) (l2,,782~ {747.l93) 

Net position-beginning of year (as restated) 406,818,013 287,098,475 693,916,488 

Net position-end of year $ 471,932,661 $ 284,9 18,512 $ 756,851,173 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia l statements. 

E:thibit 2 

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS 
Governmental Activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Environmental protection 
Cultural and recreation 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Electric 
Water and Sewer 

Total busi ness-type activities 
Total 

$ 

$ 

Expenses 

11,745,656 
21,019,198 
18,983,578 
4,147,390 
6,394,976 
1.510,226 

63,801.024 

37,017,407 
24,462,359 
61,479,766 

$ 

125,280,790 $ 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF ACnVITIES 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Chluges for 
Services 

5,080,186 

219,682 
4, 193,005 
4,538,664 

141°3 11537 

40,806,930 
17,407,409 
58,214,339 

$ 

72,245,876 $ 

Program Revenues 

Operating Grants 
and Contributions 

1,607,931 
1,257,39 1 

21865,322 

$ 

Capital Grants 
and Contributions 

65,813,640 

138,349 

65,95 1,989 

14,23 1,202 
14,?3 1,?02 

2,865,322 $ ~~d,80:;,,~18c:3.:, 1,;;9kl 

General revenues: 

Taxes: 
Property taxes, levied for general purpose 
Other taxes 

Local option sales 
Motor vehicle licenses 
Miscellaneous 

Unrestricted intergovernmental 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Special item: Legal settlement 
Change in net position 

Net position-beginning oryear (as previous ly stated) 
Adjustment to beginning net position 
Net position-beginning oryear (as restated) 

Net position-end oryear 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financia l statements. 

Net (E:tpense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

$ (6,665,470) $ $ (6,665,470) 
(19,4 11 ,267) (19,411,267) 
48,307,135 48,307,135 

45,615 45,615 
(1,7 17,963) (1,717,963) 
(1.5 I 0.226} (1,510.226) 
19,047.824 19.047,824 

3,789,523 3,789,523 
711761252 7,176,252 

10,965.775 10.965.775 
19,047,824 10,965,775 30,013,599 

29,497,621 29,497,621 

11,038,256 11,038,256 
79! ,488 791,488 

82,208 82,208 
3,260,783 3,260,783 
1,620,582 1,453,580 3,074,162 

474,460 58,781 533,241 

46,765,398 1,512,361 48,277,759 

(698,574) (14,658,099) (15,356,673) 

65,114z648 p,179,963) 6? ,934,685 

407,442,424 287,221,257 694,663.68 1 

{624,411 ) (l2?782~ F47,193) 

406,818.013 287,098,475 693.916,488 

$ 471,932,661 $ 284.918,512 $ 756,851,173 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 20 19 

Exhibi t 3 
Major Funds 

Recreation 
Otber Tota l 

General 
Capital Projects 

Governmental Governmenta l 
Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 38,472,086 $ 6,643,690 $ 12,899,800 $ 58,015,576 
Restricted cash 1,504,135 17,313, 160 1,62 1,411 20,438,706 
Receivables, net 

Taxes 60,101 76,291 136,392 
Accounts 4 10,064 410,064 

Due from other governments 4,845,506 26,760 4,872,266 
Due from other funds 66,792 66,792 
Prepaid items 141 ,576 141,576 
Inventories 21,339 21,339 

Total assets $ 45,521,599 $ 23,983,6 10 $ 14,597,502 $ 84,102,7 11 

LLABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabi lities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5,610,622 $ 11 2,377 $ 220,836 $ 5,943,835 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Property taxes receivable 64,520 .64,520 
Prepaid taxes 13,305 13,305 
Greenway credits 77,665 77,665 

Total deferred inflows of resources 77,825 77,665 155,490 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 

Perpetual care 697,41 8 697,418 
Prepaid items 141,576 141 ,576 
lnventories 21,339 21,339 

Restricted 
Stabilization by Slate Statute 8,926,329 8,926,329 
Pub li c Safety 294,254 294,254 
Construction Management Inspections 1,209,88 1 1,209,88 1 
Street improvements 923,993 923,993 
Recreation improvements 17,313, 160 17,313,160 

Committed 
Library maintenance 119,675 11 9,675 
Street improvements 2,054,8 12 2,054,8 12 
Recreation improvements 6,558,073 6,558,073 
Public Safety improvements 2,874,757 2,874,757 
Perpetual care 424,786 424,786 
LEO pension obligation 850,255 850,255 

Assigned 
Recreation improvements 4,303,694 4,303,694 
Street improvements 2,899,866 2,899,866 
Subsequent year's expenditures 2,327,200 2,327,200 

Unassigned 26,062,3 18 26,062,3 18 
Total fund balances 39,833, 152 23,871,233 14,299,001 78,003,386 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 45,521,599 $ 23,983,610 $ 14,597,502 $ 84, 102,711 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
BALANCE SHEET 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Exhibit 3 
Major Funds 

Recreation 
Otber Tota l 

General 
Capital Projects 

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Funds 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equiva lents $ 38 ,472,086 $ 6,643,690 $ 12,899,800 $ 58,0 15,576 
Restri cted cash 1,504,135 17,313, 160 1,62 1,411 20,438,706 
Receivables, net 

Taxes 60,101 76,291 136,392 
Accounts 4 10,064 410,064 

Due from other governments 4,845,506 26,760 4,872,266 
Due from other funds 66,792 66,792 
Prepaid items 141 ,576 141,576 
Inventories 21,339 21,339 

Total assets $ 45,521,599 $ 23,983,6 10 $ 14,597,502 $ 84,102,7 11 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabi lities: 
Accounts payable and accrued liabi lities $ 5,6 10,622 $ 112,377 $ 220,836 $ 5,943,835 

Deferred inflows of resources: 
Property taxes receivable 64,520 64,520 
Prepaid taxes 13,305 13 ,305 
Greenway credits 77,665 77,665 

Total deferred inflows of resources 77,825 77,665 155,490 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 

Perpetual care 697,41 8 697,418 
Prepaid items 141,576 141 ,576 
lnventories 21,339 21,339 

Restricted 
Stabilization by State Statute 8,926,329 8,926,329 
Pub li c Safety 294,254 294,254 
Construction Management Inspections 1,209,88 1 1,209,88 1 
Street improvements 923,993 923,993 
Recreation improvements 17,313, 160 17,313,160 

Committed 
Library maintenance 119,675 11 9,675 
Street improvements 2,054,8 12 2,054,8 12 
Recreation improvements 6,558,073 6,558,073 
Public Safety improvements 2,874,757 2,874,757 
Perpetual care 424,786 424,786 
LEO pension ob ligation 850,255 850,255 

Assigned 
Recreation improvements 4,303,694 4,303,694 
Street improvements 2,899,866 2,899,866 
Subsequent year's expenditures 2,327,200 2,327,200 

Unassigned 26,062,318 26,062,3 18 
Total fund balances 39,833, 152 23,871,233 14 ,299,00 1 78,003,386 

Tota l liabilities, deferred inflows of 
resources and fund balances $ 45,52 1,599 $ 23,983,6 10 $ 14,597,502 $ 84, 102,711 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Exhib it 3 

Fund balances-total governmental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities In the statement 
of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activit ies are not 
fmancial resources and therefore are not reported in 
the governmental funds 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not 
reported in the funds 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are not 
reported in the funds 

Notes receivable are not reported in the funds 

Long-term liabi lities, including bonds payable are not due 
and payable in the current period and therefore are 
not reported in the governmental funds 

Government bonds and notes payable 
Premiums on refunding bonds 
Net pension liability LGERS 
Net pension liability LEO 
OPEB liabi lity 
Compensated absences 

An internal service fund is used by the Town to charge the costs of 
insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of this fund are 
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 

Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceptible to 
full accrual on the entity~wide statements 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in 
the funds 

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not reported in 
the funds 

Other liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 

Accrued interest payable 

Net position of governmental activities 

$ 626,978,765 
( 150, 179,032) 

(47,208,310) 
(1 ,324,879) 
(7,699,715) 
(2,560,742) 

(28,351,955) 
(1,565,091) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 

$ 78,003,386 

476,799,733 

6,445,641 

2,063,354 

75,000 

(88,710,692) 

(396,214) 

64,5 18 

(206,928) 

(1,943,493) 

(261,644) 

$ 471,932,661 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSIT ION 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Jun. 30, 2019 

Exhibit 3 

Fund balances-total governmental funds 

Amounts repOIted for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported in 
the governmental funds 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not 
reported in the funds 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPES are not 
reported in the funds 

Notes receivable are not reported in the funds 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable are not due 
and payable in the current period and the refore are 
not reported in the governmental funds 

Government bonds and notes payable 
Premiums on refunding bonds 
Net pension liability LGERS 
Net pension liability LEO 
OPEB liability 
Compensated absences 

An internal service fund is used by the Town to charge the costs of 
insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of this fund are 
included in governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position 

Deferred revenue in governmental funds is susceptible to 
fu ll accrual on the entity-wide statements 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in 
the funds 

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPES are not reported in 
the funds 

Other liabilities are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 

Accrued interest payable 

Net posi tion of governmental activities 

$ 626,978,765 
(150,179,032) 

(47,208,310) 
(1,324,879) 
(7,699,7 15) 
(2,560,742) 

(28,351,955) 
(1,565,091) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancial statements. 

$ 78,003,386 

476,799,733 

6,445,641 

2,063,354 

75,000 

(88,710,692) 

(396,214) 

64,5 18 

(206,928) 

(1,943,493) 

(261 ,644) 

$ 471,932,661 



24

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For tbe Year Ended June 30,2019 

Exbibit 4 
Major Funds 

Recreation 
Otber Total 

General 
Capital Projects 

Governmental Governmental 
Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Ad va lorem taxes $ 29,525,234 $ $ $ 29,525,234 
Other taxes and licenses 11,120,464 790,883 11,911,347 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,260,783 3,260,783 
Restricted intergovernmental 2,865,322 138,349 10,910 3,014,58 1 
Permits and fees 5,080,026 3,669,178 8,749,204 
Sales and services 5,282,372 5,282,372 
Investment earnings 817,271 502,612 300,699 1,620,582 
Miscellaneous 592,037 4,323 596,360 

Total revenues 58,543,509 640,961 4,775,993 63,960,463 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 10,372,330 10,372,330 
Public safety 18,421 ,390 18,421,390 
Public works 5,891,391 2,550 5,893,94 1 
Environmental protection 3,897,747 3,897,747 
Cultural and recreational 4,383,989 4,383,989 

Capital outlay 5,633,864 1,154,566 1,773,8 52 8,562,282 
Debt service: 

Principal 2,903,793 2,903,793 
fIlterest 1,666,072 1,666,072 
Total expenditures 53,170,576 1,154,566 1,776,402 56,101,544 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 5,372,933 (513,605) 2,999,591 7,858,919 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers from other funds 2,465,982 3,25 1,000 4,849,613 10,566,595 
Transfers to other funds (2,143,900) (300,000) (8,122,695) (10,566,595) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 322,082 2,951,000 (3 ,273,082) 

SPECIAL ITEM: 
Legal settlement (698,574) (698,574) 

Net change in fund balances 4,996,441 2,437,395 (273,491) 7,160,345 

Fund balances-beginning of year 34,836,711 21,433,838 14,572,492 70,843,041 

Fund balances-end of year $ 39,833,152 $ 23,871,233 $ 14,299,001 $ 78,003,386 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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GOVERN~ffiNTALFUNDS 
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Exhibit 4 
Maior Funds 

Recreation 
Other Total 

General 
Capita l Projects 

Governmenta l Govern mental 
Funds Funds 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes $ 29,525,234 $ $ $ 29,525,234 
Other taxes and licenses 11,120,464 790,883 11 ,911,347 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 3,260,783 3,260,783 
Restricted intergovernmental 2,865,322 138,349 10,910 3,014,581 
Permits and fees 5,080,026 3,669,178 8,749,204 
Sales and services 5,282,372 5,282,372 
Investment earnings 817,271 502,612 300,699 1,620,582 
Miscellaneous 592,037 4,323 596,360 

Total revenues 58,543,509 640,961 4,775,993 63,960,463 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

General government 10,372,330 10,372,330 
Public safety 18,421,390 18,421,390 
Public works 5,891,391 2,550 5,893,94 1 
Environmental protection 3,897,747 3,897,747 
Cultural and recreational 4,383,989 4,383,989 

Capital outlay 5,633,864 1,154,566 1,773,8 52 8,562,282 
Debt service: 

Principal 2,903,793 2,903,793 
mterest 1,666,072 1,666,072 
Total expenditures 53,170,576 1,154,566 1,776,402 56,101,544 

Excess of revenues over (under) 
expenditures 5,372,933 (513,605) 2,999,591 7,858,919 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers from other funds 2,465,982 3,25 1,000 4,849,613 10,566,595 
Transfers to other funds (2,143,900) (300,000) (8,122,695) (10,566,595) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 322,082 2,951,000 (3,273,082) 

SPECIAL ITEM: 
Legal settlement (698,574) (698,574) 

Net change in fund balances 4,996,441 2,437,395 (273,491) 7,160,345 

Fund balances-beginning of year 34,836,711 21 ,433,838 14,572,492 70,843,041 

Fund balances-end of year $ 39,833,152 $ 23,871,233 $ 14,299,001 $ 78,003,386 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECONCILIATION OFTHE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Exhibi t 4 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement 

of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Less current year depreciation 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Developer's contributed capital and donations 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., 
sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net position. 

The issuance of debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while 
the repayment of principal of long-tenll debt consumes the current financial resources 
of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. This 
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and 

related items. 
Amortization of bond premium 
Principal payments 
Change in accrued interest payable 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the funds 

Deferred in flows of resources related to OPEB are not reported in the funds 

Benefit payments paid for the LEOSSA are not included on the Statement of Activities 

Net gain of internal service funds determined to be governmental-type 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activi ti es do not require the use of current 

financial resources and, therefore, arc not reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds. 

Change in deferred revenues 
Change in compensated absences 
Pension expense LGERS 
Pension expense LEO 
OPEB expense 

Total changes in net position of governmental acti vi ties 

$ 8,562,282 
(1 7,404,747) 

102,468 
2,903,793 

53,378 

(27,047) 
(I 16,976) 

(2, 144,238) 
(263,592) 

(1,836,676) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

$ 7,160,345 

(8,842,465) 

65,802,730 

(121,900) 

3,059,639 

1,710,287 

(274,725) 

73,580 

935,686 

(4,388,529) 

$ 65, 114,648 
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RECONCILIATIO N OFTHE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AN D CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATE~IENT OF ACTIVITI ES 

For the YC3r Ended June 30, 2019 
Exhibit 4 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because: 

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement 
of Activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense. 

Expenditures for capital assets 
Less current year depreciation 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the funds. 

Developer's contributed capital and donations 

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., 
sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net position. 

The issuance of debt provides current financia l resources to governmental funds, while 
the repayment of principal of long-tenn debt consumes the current financial resources 
of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. This 
amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and 
related items. 

Amortization of bond premium 
Principal payments 
Change in accrued interest payable 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not reported in the funds 

Deferred in fl ows of resources related to OPEB are not reported in the funds 

Benefit payments paid for the LEOSSA are not included on the Statement of Activities 

Net gain of internal service funds determined to be governmental-type 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not requi re the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, arc not reported as expenditures in governmental 
funds . 

Change in deferred revenues 
Change in compensated absences 
Pension expense LGERS 
Pension expense LEO 
OPEB expense 

Total changes in net posi tion of governmental activities 

$ 8,562,282 
(17,404,747) 

102,468 
2,903,793 

53,378 

(27,047) 
(1 16,976) 

(2,144,238) 
(263,592) 

(1,836,676) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statementS. 

$ 7, 160,345 

(8,842,465) 

65,802,730 

(121,900) 

3,059,639 

1,7 10,287 

(274,725) 

73,580 

935,686 

(4,388,529) 

$ 65, 114,648 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Exhibit 5 

Geoeral Fund 
Variance with 
Final Budget -

Positive 
Original Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES : 
Ad valorem taxes $ 28,988,700 $ 28,988,700 $ 29,525,234 $ 536,534 
Other taxes and licenses 11 ,075,000 lI ,075,OOO lI , I20,464 45,464 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 2,946,800 2,946,800 3,260,783 313,983 
Restricted intergovernmental 2,574,100 2,574,100 2,865 ,322 291,222 
Pennits and fees 4,158,200 5,368,200 5,080,026 (288,174) 
Sales and services 4,912,900 4,912,900 5,282,372 369,472 
investment earnings 200,400 655,400 815,23 1 159,83 1 
Miscellaneous 394,800 402,414 592,037 189,623 

Total revenues 55 ,250,900 56,923,514 58,541,469 1,617,955 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 12,95 1,500 14,234,192 11 ,173,102 3,061,090 
Public safety 23,963,900 25,078, 179 21 ,392,11 1 3,686,068 
Public works 7,556,500 8,84 1,829 6,435,074 2,406,755 
Solid Waste 4,004,700 4,217,055 4,085,268 131,787 
Cultural and recreation 5,541,000 6,142,296 5,515 ,15 6 627,140 

Debt service: 
Principal 2,923,800 2,923,800 2,903,793 20,007 
interest and fees 1,700,300 1,683,300 1,666,072 17,228 
Total expenditures 58,641,700 63,120,651 53,170,576 9,950,075 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,390,800) (6,197,137) 5,370,893 11 ,568,030 

OTH ER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer from other funds 1,887,800 2,465,982 2,465,982 
Transfer to other funds (754,400) (2,456,845) (2,143,900) 31 2,945 
Contingency (100,000) (100,000) 100,000 
Fund balance appropriated 2,357,400 6,986,574 (6,986,574) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 3,390,800 6,895,711 322,082 (6,573,629) 

SPECIAL ITEM: 
Legal settlement (698,574) (698,574) 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 4,994,401 $ 4,994,401 

Fund balance - beginning of year 34,730,391 

Fund balance - end of year 39,724,792 

A legally budgeted Fire Capital Reserve fund is 
consolidated in the General Fund for reporting purposes: 

Investment earnings 2,040 
Fund balance - beginning of year 106,320 
Fund balance - end of year (Exhibit 4) $ 39,833,152 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancia l statements. 
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General Fund 
Variance wi th 
Final Budget -

Positive 
Ori~nal Final Actual Amounts (Negative) 

REVENUES: 
Ad valorem taxes $ 28,988,700 $ 28,988,700 $ 29,525 ,234 $ 536,534 
Other taxes and licenses 11 ,075,000 11 ,075,000 11 ,120,464 45,464 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 2,946,800 2,946,800 3,260,783 313,983 
Restricted intergovernmental 2,574,100 2,574,100 2,865,322 29 1,222 
Pennits and fees 4,158,200 5,368,200 5,080,026 (288, 174) 
Sales and services 4,912,900 4,9 12,900 5,282,372 369,472 
lnvestment earnings 200,400 655,400 815,23 1 159,83 1 
Miscellaneous 394,800 402,414 592,037 189,623 

Total revenues 55,250,900 56,923,514 58,541,469 1,617,955 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current: 

General government 12,95 1,500 14,234,192 11,173,102 3,061,090 
Public safety 23,963,900 25,078,179 2 1,392,111 3,686,068 
Public works 7,556,500 8,841,829 6,435,074 2,406,755 
Solid Waste 4,004,700 4,217,055 4,085,268 13 1,787 
Cultural and recreation 5,541,000 6,142,296 5,5 15 ,156 627,140 

Debt service: 
Principal 2,923,800 2,923,800 2,903,793 20,007 
lnterest and fees 1,700,300 1,683,300 1,666,072 17,228 
Total expenditures 58,641,700 63,120,651 53,170,576 9,950,075 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,390,800) (6, 197,137) 5,370,893 11,568,030 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 
Transfer from other funds 1,887,800 2,465,982 2,465,982 
Transfer to other funds (754,400) (2,456,845) (2,143,900) 312,945 
Contingency ( 100,000) (100,000) 100,000 
Fund balance appropriated 2,357,400 6,986,574 (6,986,574) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 3,390,800 6,895,711 322,082 (6,573,629) 

SPECIAL ITEM: 
Legal settlement (698,574) (698,574) 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 4,994,401 $ 4,994,401 

Fund balance - beginning of year 34,730,391 

Fund balance - end of year 39,724,792 

A legally budgeted Fire Capital Reserve fund is 
consolidated in the General Fund for reporting purposes: 

Invesnnent earnings 2,040 
Fund balance - beginning of year 106,320 
Fund balance - end of year (Exhibit 4) $ 39,833,152 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these fmancia l statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITIO N 

PROPRI ETARY FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Exhibit 6 

Enter(!rise Funds 
Water and Internal 

Electric Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 9,92 1,710 66,8 19,523 $ 76,741,233 $ 
Accounts receivable (net) - billed 4,254,563 1,728,768 5,983,33 I 15,003 
Accounts receivable - unbilled 2,426,80 1 982,800 3,409,601 
Due from other funds 9,696 16,576 26,272 
Inventories 1,680,804 250,434 1,93 1,238 
Prepaid items 6 1,880 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,485,997 1,485,997 

Total current assets 18,293,574 71,284,098 89,577,672 76,883 

Noncurrenl assets: 
Depos it 35,100 

Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 3,359,723 58,944,777 62,304,500 
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 36,856,7 18 178,812,746 2 15,669,464 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 40,216,441 237 ,757,523 277,973 ,964 

Total noncurrent assets 40,216,441 237,757,523 277,973,964 35 ,100 
Total assets 58,510,015 309,041,621 367,551,636 111,983 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPES deferrals 194,636 2 11 ,094 405,730 
Pension deferra ls 827,43 I 1,012,361 1,839,792 

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,022,067 1,223,455 2,245,522 

LIAB ILITI ES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,481 ,260 17,895,032 21,376,292 4 15, 132 
Due to other funds 93,065 
Customer deposits 705,45 I 705,451 
Accrued interest payable 13,090 155, 175 168,265 
Bonds and notes payable 535,000 2,488,695 3,023,695 
Compensated absences 107,299 155,514 262,8 13 

Total current liabilities 4,842, 100 20,694,4 16 25,536,5 16 508, \ 97 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 72,634 88,355 160,989 
Net OPEB liability 2,528,985 2,823,618 5,352,603 
Bonds and notes payable 2,342,000 48,705,159 5 1,047,159 
Net pension liability 1,06 1,413 1,300,448 2,361,861 

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,005,032 52,917,580 58,922,612 
Total liabilities 10,847,132 73,611,996 84,459,128 508,197 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPEB deferrals 183,329 198,83 1 382,160 
Pension deferrals 18,282 19,076 37,358 

Total deferred inflows of resources 20 1,611 217,907 419,5 18 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capita l assets 37,339,44 1 186,563,669 223,903,110 
Unrestricted 11, 143,898 49,871,504 6 1,015,402 (396,2 14) 

Total net position $ 48,483,339 $ 236,435 ,173 $ 284,918,5 12 $ (396,2 14) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Enter(! rise Funds 
Water and Internal 

Electric Fund Sewer Fund Totals Service Fund 
ASSETS 
Current assets: 

Cash and casb equivalents $ 9,92 1,710 66,819,523 $ 76,74 1,233 $ 
Accounts receivable (net) - bllled 4,254,563 1,728,768 5,983,33 I 15,003 
Accounts receivable - unbilled 2,426,80 1 982,800 3,409,601 
Due from other funds 9,696 16,576 26,272 

Inventories 1,680,804 250,434 1,93 1,238 
Prepaid items 61,880 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,485 ,997 1,485,997 

Total current assets 18,293,574 71,284,098 89,577,672 76,883 

Noncurrenl assets: 
Deposit 35,100 

Capital assets: 
Land and construction in progress 3,359,723 58,944,777 62,304,500 
Other capital assets, net of deprec iation 36,856,718 178,8 12,746 2 15,669,464 
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 40,216,441 237,757,523 277,973,964 

Total noncurrent assets 40,216,44 1 237,757,523 277,973,964 35,100 
Total assets 58,510,015 309,041,62 1 367,551,636 111 ,983 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPEB deferrals 194,636 211 ,094 405,730 

Pension deferrals 827,43 I 1,012,361 1,839,792 
Total deferred outflows of resources 1,022,067 1,223,455 2,245,522 

LlAB I LlTi ES 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,481,260 17,895,032 21,376 ,292 415,1 32 
Due to other funds 93,065 
Customer deposits 705,45 1 705,451 
Accrued interest payable 1l,090 155,175 168,265 

Bonds and notes payable 535,000 2,488,695 3,023,695 
Compensated absences 107,299 155,514 262,8 13 

Total current liabilities 4,842,100 20,694,416 25,536,5 16 508, 197 

Noncurrent Li abilities: 
Compensated absences 72,634 88,355 160,989 
Net OPES liability 2,528,985 2,823,618 5,352,603 

Bonds and notes payable 2,342,000 48,705,159 5 1,047, 159 
Net pensioo Liability 1,061 ,413 1,300,448 2,361,861 

Total noncurrent liabilities 6,005,032 52,917,580 58,922,612 
Total liabilities 1O,847,1l2 73,611,996 84,459,128 508, 197 

DEfERRED lNFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
OPES deferrals 183,329 198,83 1 382, 160 
Pension deferrals 18,282 19,076 37,358 

Total deferred inflows of resources 201,6 11 217,907 419,5 18 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capita l assets 37,339,441 186,563,669 223,903,110 

Unrestricted 11 , 143,898 49,871,504 61,015,402 (396,214) 
Total net position $ 48,483,339 $ 236,435,173 $ 284,918,5 12 $ (396,2 14) 

The accompanying nOles are ao integral part of these fmancial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Exhibit 7 

Enteq~rise Funds 
Water and Internal 

Electric Fund Sewer Fund Tota ls Service Fund 
OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services $ 36,541,592 16,477,807 $ 53,019,399 $ 5,343,655 
Water and sewer taps 507,825 507,825 
Other operating revenues 4,265,338 421,777 4,687,115 

Total operating revenues 40,806,930 17,407,409 58,214,339 5,343,655 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Electric operations 8,304,085 8,304,085 
Electric power purchases 25,984,245 25,984,245 
Water and sewer operations 12,253,770 12,253,770 
Depreciation 2,608,624 10,648,851 13,257,475 
Health and dental claims 3,626,171 
Health and dental administrative fees 78 1,798 
Total operating expenses 36,896,954 22,902,621 59,799,575 4,407,969 

Operating income (loss) 3,909,976 (5,495,2 12) ( 1,585,236) 935,686 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment earnings 190,305 1,263,275 1,453,580 
Interest expense (120,453) (1,559,738) (1,680,191) 
Gain on sale of capital assets 58,781 58,781 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 69,852 (237,682) (167,830) 
Income before transfers and contributions 3,979,828 (5,732,894) (1,753,066) 935,686 

Capital contributions 14,231 ,202 14,231 ,202 
Legal settlement ( 14,658,099) ( 14,658,099) 

Change in net position 3,979,828 (6,159,791) (2, 179,963) 935,686 

Total net position - beginning of year (as 
previously stated 44,562,412 242,658,845 287,221,257 ( 1,331,900) 

Adjustment to beginning net position (58,901) (63,881) (122,782) 
Total net position - beginning of year (as 

restated) 44,503,511 242,594,964 287,098,475 (1,331,900) 

Total net position - ending $ 48,483 ,339 $ 236,435,173 $ 284,918,512 $ (396,214) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Water and sewer taps 507,825 507,825 
Other operating revenues 4,265,338 421,777 4,687,115 

Total operating revenues 40,806,930 17,407,409 58,214,339 5,343,655 
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Total operating expenses 36,896,954 22,902,621 59,799,575 4,407,969 

Operating income (loss) 3,909,976 (5,495,2 12) (1,585,236) 935,686 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment earnings 190,305 1,263,275 1,453 ,580 
Interest expense (120,453) (1,559,738) (1,680,191) 
Gain on sale of capital assets 58,781 58,781 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 69,852 (237,682) (167,830) 
Income before transfers and contributions 3,979,828 (5,732,894) (1,753,066) 935,686 

Capital contributions 14,231 ,202 14,23 1,202 
Legal settlement ( 14,658,099) ( 14,658,099) 

Change in net position 3,979,828 (6, 159,791) (2, 179,963) 935,686 

Total net position - beginning of year (as 
previously stated 44,562,412 242,658,845 287,221,257 (1,331,900) 

Adjustment to beginning net posi tion (58,901) (63,881) (122,782) 
Total net position - beginning of year (as 

restated) 44,503 ,511 242,594,964 287,098,475 (1,331,900) 

Total net position - ending $ 48,483,339 $ 236,435,173 $ 284,918,512 $ (396,214) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

STATEMENT OF CAS H FLOWS 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Fo r the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 20 19 

Exhibit 8 
Business-Type Activities 

Enter~ rise Fund s 
Water and In ternal 

Electric Fu nd Sewer Fu nd Totals Service Fund 
CASli FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACT IVITIES 

Cash received from customers $ 40,372,847 $ 17,241,344 $ 57,6 14,19 1 $ 5,412,893 
Cash paid for goods and services (30,123,247) (9,137,782) (39,261,029) (4,788,205) 
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services (3,9 12, 102) (4,923,625) (8,83 5,727) 
Increase in customer depos its 5,413 5,413 

Net cash prov ided by operating activities 6,342,911 3, 179,937 9,522,848 624,688 

NONCAPIT AL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Lega l settlement (99,998) (99,998) 
Interfund loan repayment (advances) 70,147 119,920 190,067 (673,278) 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapitai financing activities 70,147 19,922 90,069 (673,278) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FINANCING ACTlVlTlES 

Acqu isition and construction of capital assets (4,704,238) (5,878, 126) (10,582,364) 
Sale of capital assets 131 ,59 1 131 ,591 
Capacity and capital reimbursement fees 10,836,8 12 10,836,812 
Principal paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (516,000) (2,339,444) (2,855 ,444) 
Interest paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts (122,801) (1,614,294) (1,737,095) 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities (5,343,039) 1,136,539 (4,206,500) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTlVlTIES 

lnterest 190,305 1,263,275 1,453,580 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,260,324 5,599,673 6,859,997 (48,590) 

Balances-begiruung of the year 8,661,386 62,705,847 71,367,233 48,590 
Balances-end of the year $ 9,921,710 $ 68,305,520 $ 78 ,227,230 $ 

RECONC ILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACT IVITIES 

Operating income (loss) S 3,909,976 $ (5,495,212) $ (1,585,236) S 935,686 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 2,608,624 10,648,851 13,257,475 

Changes in assets and liabi lities: 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (434,083) ( 166,065) (600, 148) 69,238 
Increase in prepaid expenses (4,525) 
(Increase) decrease in inventory (304,203) (91,664) (395,867) 
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources for pensions (318,958) (399,241) (718,199) 
[ncrease in nel pension liability 402,800 504,187 906,987 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources for pensions (17,095) (21,397) (38,492) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued Uabilities 288,376 (2,044,079) (1 ,755 ,703) (375,71 1) 
Increase in accrued compensated absences 8,476 28,264 36,740 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources for OPES (136,949) (146,634) (283,583) 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resouces for OPES (42,800) (53,851 ) (96,651) 
Increase in net OPES liability 373,334 416,778 790,112 
Increase in customer deposits 5,413 5,4 13 

Total adjustments 2,432,935 8,675, 149 11 ,108,084 (310,998) 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities S 6,342,911 $ 3, 179,937 S 9,522,848 $ 624,688 

NON-CAS H INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVIT IES 

Contributions of capital assets $ $ 3,394,390 $ 3,394,390 $ 

(3,394,390) (3,394,390) Acquisition of capital assets through capital contributions 
Net effect of non-cash contributions $ ======~$=======-$=======" $======= 

The accompanying notes are an integral pan of these financial statements. 

TOWN OF APEX, NO RTH CAROLI NA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

PROPRI ETARY FUNDS 

For the Fisca l Vear Ended June 30, 2019 

Exhibit 8 
Business-Type Activities 

CASli FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Cash received from customers $ 

Cash paid for goods and services 
Cash paid to or on behalf of employees for services 
lncrease in customer deposits 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

NONCAPIT AL FINANClNG ACT IVITIES 

Legal settlement 
Interfund loan repayment (advances) 

Net casb provided (used) by Doncapital financing activities 

CAStl FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

FL'IANCING ACTIVITIES 

Acqu isition and construction of capital assets 
Sale of capital assets 
Capacity and capital reimbursement fees 
Principal paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts 
Interest paid on bond maturities and equipment contracts 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Interest 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Balances-beginning of the year 
Balances-end of the year $ 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCO~IE TO NET 

CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating income (loss) S 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to nel cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation 

Changes in assets and liabi li ties: 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivab le 
Increase in prepaid expenses 
(Inc rease) decrease in inventory 
Decrease in deferred outflows of resources for pensions 
Increase in net pension liability 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources for pensions 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and accrued li abilities 
Increase in accrued compensated absences 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources for OPEB 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resouces for OPEB 
Increase in net OPEB liability 
Increase in customer deposits 

Total adjustments 
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 

NON-CASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANC ING ACTIVITIES 

Contributions of cap iral assets $ 

Electric Fund 

40,372,847 

(30, 123,247) 

(3 ,9 12,102) 

5,413 

6,342,911 

70,147 

70,147 

(4,704,238) 

(516,000) 
(122,801) 

(5,343,039) 

190,305 

1,260,324 

8,661,386 
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3,909,976 
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(304,203) 

(3 18,958) 
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$ 

$ 
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$ 
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Water and 
Sewer Fund 

17,241,344 $ 

(9, 137,782) 

(4,923,625) 

3, 179,937 

(99,998) 

119,920 

19,922 

(5,878, 126) 

131,59 1 

10,836,812 
(2,339,444) 

(1,614,294) 

1,136,539 

1,263,275 

5,599,673 

62,705,847 
68,305,520 $ 

(5,495,2 12) $ 

10,648,851 

( 166,065) 
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(399,24 1) 

504,187 

(21,397) 

(2,044,079) 

28,264 

( 146,634) 

(53,851 ) 

416,778 

8,675, 149 
3, I 79,937 $ 

3,394,390 $ 
(3,394,390) Acquisition of capital assets through capital contributions 

Net effect of non-cash contributions $~===$ - $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Exhibit 9 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
June 30, 2019 

Restricted for postemployment benefits 

$ 

$ 

Other Post­
Employment 

Benefits 
Trust Fund 

250,000 

250,000 

Exhibit 9 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 

LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
June 30, 2019 

Restricted for postemployment benefits 

$ 

$ 

Other Post­
Employment 

Benefits 
Trust Fund 

250,000 

250,000 
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Exhibit 10 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions 

DEDUCTIONS 

Net position, end of year 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLlNA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
June 30, 2019 

$ 

$ 

Other Post­
Employment 

Benefits 
Trust Fund 

250,000 

250,000 

Exhibit 10 

ADDITIONS 
Contributions 

DEDUCTIONS 

Net position, end of year 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUND 
June 30, 2019 

$ 

$ 

Other Post­
Employment 

Benefits 
Trust Fund 

250,000 

250,000 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANC[AL STATEMENTS 

June 30,20 [9 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF S[GNIF[CANT ACCOUNTING POLlC[ES 

The financial statements of the Town of Apex have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the more significant 
accounting policies: 

(a) Reporting Entity 

The Town, a political subdivision of Wake County, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor 
and a five member Town CounciL There are no component units which are required to be included in these 
financial statements. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include all the 
nonfiduciary activities of the overall government. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund 
financial statements. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double cQunting of internal activities. 
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other non­
exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the 
different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town' s governmental activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and therefore, are clearly 
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of 
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's funds, 
including the internal service and pension trust funds. Separate statements for each fund category­
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary- are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate colullll1. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated 
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives 
up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. 
Other non-operating revenues are from ancillary activities such as investment earnings. In addition, acreage 
and capacity fees are considered contributed capital and are restricted until used for capital improvements. 

The Town reports the following major governmentalfunds: 
General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources are 
ad valorem taxes, state-shared revenues, grants, building pennits and fees, refuse collection charges and 
various other taxes and fees. The primary expenditures are for public safety, streets, sanitation, parks and 
recreation, and general governmental services. Additionally, the Town has legally adopted a Fire Capital 
Reserve Fund. Under GASB 54 guidance the Fire Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated in the General Fund. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of the Town of Apex have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles as applicable to govenunents. The following is a summary of the more significant 
accounting policies: 

(a) Reporting Entity 

The Town, a political subdivision of Wake County, is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor 
and a five member Town Council. There are no component units which are required to be included in these 
financial statements. 

(b) Basis of Presentation 

Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities include all the 
nonfiduciary activities of the overall government. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund 
financial statements. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double cQunting of internal activities. 
These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town. 
Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other non­
exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external 
parties. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the 
different business-type activities of the Town and for each function of the Town's governmental activities. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and therefore, are clearly 
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and charges paid by the recipients of 
goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the 
operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program 
revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the Town's funds, 
including the internal service and pension trust funds. Separate statements for each fund category­
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary- are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate colunlll. All remaining governmental and 
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated 
with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives 
up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions. 
Other non-operating revenues are from ancillary activities such as investment earnings. In addition, acreage 
and capacity fees are considered contributed capital and are restricted until used for capital improvements. 

The Town reports the/ollowing major governmentalfimds: 
General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The primary revenue sources are 
ad valorem taxes, state-shared revenues, grants, building pennits and fees, refuse collection charges and 
various other taxes and fees. The primary expenditures are for public safety, streets, sanitation, parks and 
recreation, and general governmental services. Additionally, the Town has legally adopted a Fire Capital 
Reserve Fund. Under GASB 54 guidance the Fire Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated in the General Fund. 



33

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The budgetary comparison for the Fire Capital Reserve Fund bas been included in the supplemental 
information. 

Recreation Capital Project Fund - The Recreation Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial 
resources to be used for projects related to the construction or improvement of recreation facilities in the 
Town. 

The Town reports the following major proprietary fimds: 
Electric Fund - The Electric Fund is used to account for electric operations. The Electric Fund is composed of 
two sub-funds: Electric Operations and the Electric Substation Project Fund, which are consolidated for 
frnancial reporting purposes. 

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for water and sewer operations. The 
Water and Sewer Fund is composed of four sub-funds: Water and Sewer Operations, Water and Sewer Project 
Fund, Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Fund, Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund and Water and Sewer 
HB463 Capital Reserve Fund, which are consolidated for financial reporting purposes. 

The Town reports the/allowing nonmajor governmental funds: 
Special Revenue Fund - The Eva Perry Library Fund is used to account for resources that are set aside to be 
used for future specific purposes. . 

Capital Proiect Funds - Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The Town has 
four non-major Capital Project Funds: the Street Improvements Capital Project Fund, the Recreation Capital 
Project Reserve Fund, the Transportation Capital Project Reserve Fund and the General Capital Projects Fund. 

Permanent Fund - The Cemetery Permanent Fund is used to account for perpetual care of the municipal 
cemetery. 

Additionally, the Town reports thefollowingfimd types: 
Internal Service Fund - The Health and Dental Fund is used to account for health and dental claims of 
employees and certain retirees. 

Trust Fund - Trust funds are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and 
beneficiaries of defined benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, or other postemployment benefit 
plans. The Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Fund accounts for the Town's contributions for bealtbeare 
coverage provided to qualified retirees. 

(c) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the year 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprietmy and Fiducimy Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary 
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The 
government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The budgetary comparison for the Fire Capital Reserve Fund bas been included in the supplemental 
infonnation. 

Recreation Capital Project Fund - The Recreation Capital Project Fund is used to account for financial 
resources to be used for projects related to the construction or improvement of recreation facilities in the 
Town. 

The Town reports the following major proprietmy fimds: 
Electric Fund - The Electric Fund is used to account for electric operations. The Electric Fund is composed of 
two sub-funds: Electric Operations and the Electric Substation Project Fund, which are consolidated for 
fmancial reporting purposes. 

Water and Sewer Fund - The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for water and sewer operations. The 
Water and Sewer Fund is composed of four sub-funds: Water and Sewer Operations, Water and Sewer Project 
Fund, Wastewater Treatment Plant Project Fund, Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund and Water and Sewer 
HB463 Capital Reserve Fund, which are consolidated for financial reporting purposes. 

The Town reports the/allowing nonmajor governmental funds: 
Special Revenue Fund - The Eva Perry Library Fund is used to account for resources that are set aside to be 
used for future specific purposes. . 

Capital Project Funds - Capital project funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the 
acquisition or construction of major facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The Town has 
four non-major Capital Project Funds: the Street Improvements Capital Project Fund, the Recreation Capital 
Project Reserve Fund, the Transportation Capital Project Reserve Fund and the General Capital Projects Fund. 

Pennanent Fund - The Cemetery Permanent Fund is used to account for perpetual care of the municipal 
cemetery. 

Additionally, the Town reports thefollowingfimd types: 
Internal Service Fund - The Health and Dental Fund is used to account for health and dental claims of 
employees and certain retirees. 

Trust Fund - Trust funds are used to report resources that are required to be held in trust for the members and 
beneficiaries of defmed benefit pension plans, defined contribution plans, or other postemployment benefit 
plans. The Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Fund accounts for the Town's contributions for healtbcaTe 
coverage provided to qualified retirees. 

(c) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained during the year 
using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 

Government-wide, Proprietwy and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements. The government-wide, proprietary 
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The 
government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund fmancial statements are reported using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

receives) value without direc tly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants 
and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fi scal year for which the 
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfi ed. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general 
revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund 's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town 's enterprise 
fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town also recognizes as operating revenue the 
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the 
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, 
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General 
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term 
debt and acquisitions under capitaiieases are reported as other financing sources. 

The Town considers all revenues ava ilable if they are collected within 90 days after year end, except for 
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not 
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially past 
due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of 
September 1, 2013 , State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collec tion ofproperty taxes on 
registered motor vehicles in North Carolina. Effec tive with this change in the law, the State o f North Carolina 
is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all 
municipalities and special tax districts. Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes 
are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior 
to September I , 2013 and for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these fmancial statements 
and are offset by deferred inflows of resources. 

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities sales tax, collected and held by the 
State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered shared revenue 
for the Town of Apex because the tax is levied by Wake County and then remitted to and distributed by the 
State. Most intergovernmenta l revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally 
they are no t measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as 
unearned revenues. Under the tenns of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination 
of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus, when program 
expenses are incurred , there is both res tricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants 
and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the 
taxes are levied. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or 
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally 
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general 
revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with 
a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town's enterprise 
fund are charges to customers for sales and services. The Town also recognizes as operating revenue the 
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the water and sewer system. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the 
current fmancial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, 
and compensated absences, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General 
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term 
debt and acquisitions under capitai ieases are reported as other financing sources. 

The Town considers all revenues avai lable if they are collected within 90 days after year end, except for 
property taxes. Ad valorem property taxes receivable are not accrued as revenue because the amount is not 
susceptible to accrual. At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles are materially past 
due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the operations of the current year. Also, as of 
September 1,20 13, State law altered the procedures for the assessment and collection of property taxes on 
registered motor vehicles in North Caro lina. Effective with tbis cbange in the law, the State of North Carolina 
is responsible for billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all 
municipalities and special tax districts. Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered. The billed taxes 
are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are received. Uncollected taxes that were billed in periods prior 
to September I , 2013 and for limited registration plates are shown as a receivable in these [Ulancial statements 
and are offset by deferred inflows of resources. 

Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities sales tax, collected and held by the 
State at year-end on behalf of the Town are recognized as revenue. Sales taxes are considered shared revenue 
for the Town of Apex because the tax is levied by Wake County and then remitted to and distributed by the 
State. Most intergovernmental revenues and sales and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally 
they are not measurable until received in cash. Grant revenues which are unearned at year-end are recorded as 
unearned revenues. Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town funds certain programs by a combination 
of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, and general revenues. Thus. when program 
expenses are incurred, there is both restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program. It 
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Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by 
categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

(d) Budgetary Data 

Budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes. An almual budget ordinance is adopted for 
the General, special revenue, permanent, capital reserve capital projects and enterprise funds. All annual 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Project ordinances, which may cover more than one year, are adopted 
for the remaining capital project funds. The enterprise fund projects are consolidated with their respective 
operating fund for reporting purposes. The Town's Health and Dental Fund, an internal service fund, operates 
under a financial plan that was adopted by the governing board at the time the Town 's budget ordinance was 
approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. 

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level for all annually budgeted funds and at the 
object level for the multi-year funds. The Town Manager is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer 
appropriations between functional areas within a fund. Any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund 
must be approved by the Town Council. During the year several amendments to the original budget became 
necessary. Material amendments were made to the budget of the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund to 
appropriate additional fund balance in support of transportation and utility projects and a legal settlement. The 
budget ordinance must be adopted by July I of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim 
budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

(e) Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

1. Deposi ts and Investments 

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated official depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 
159-31. The Town may designate as an official depository any bank or savings association whose principal 
office is located in North Carolina. The Town may also establish time deposits in the fonn of NOW accounts, 
Super NOW and money market accounts, and certificates of deposits. 

State law G.S. 159-30(c) authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully 
guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; 
bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non­
guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and banker's acceptances; and the 
North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The Town's investments are reported at fair value. The 
securities of the NCCMT Government Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) external investment pool is measured 
at amortized cost, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at 
fair value. 

General Statue 159-30.1 allows the Town to establish and fund an irrevocable trust for the purpose of paying 
post-employment benefits (OPEB) for which the Town is liable. The Town Other Postemployment Benefit 
(OPEB) Trust was established May 21, 2019 and as ofJune 30, 2019 had transfers totaling $250,000 from the 
General Fund, Electric Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund. 

The North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT) is a SEC registered money market mutual fund 
allowable by G.S. I 59-30(c)(8). The NCCMT Government Portfolio is a 2a-7 fund maintaining an AAAm 
rating from S&P. The NCCMT Term Portfolio is a bond fund, has no rating and has a duration of .11 years. 
Both the NCCMT Government and Term Portfolios are reported at fair value. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

is the Town's policy to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by 
categorical block grants, and then by general revenues. 

(d) Budgetary Data 

Budgets are adopted as required by North Carolina General Statutes. An annual budget ordinance is adopted for 
the General, special revenue, permanent, capital reserve capital projects and enterprise funds. All annual 
appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Project ordinances, which may cover more than one year, are adopted 
for the remaining capital project funds. The enterprise fund projects are consolidated with their respective 
operating fund for reporting purposes. The Town's Health and Dental Fund, an internal service fund, operates 
under a fInancial plan that was adopted by the governing board at the time the Town 's budget ordinance was 
approved, as is required by the General Statutes. All budgets are prepared using the modifIed accrual basis of 
accounting. 

Expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations at the fund level for all annually budgeted funds and at the 
object level for the multi-year funds. The Town Manager is authorized by the budget ordinance to transfer 
appropriations between functional areas within a fund. Any revisions that alter total expenditures of any fund 
must be approved by the Town Council. During the year several amendments to the original budget became 
necessary. Material amendments were made to the budget of the General Fund and Water and Sewer Fund to 
appropriate additional fund balance in support of transportation and utility projects and a legal settlement. The 
budget ordinance must be adopted by July I of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an interim 
budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted. 

(e) Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity 

1. Deposits and Investments 

All deposits of the Town are made in board-designated offlcial depositories and are secured as required by G.S. 
159-31. The Town may designate as an official depository any bank or savings association whose principal 
offlce is located in North Carolina. The Town may also establish time deposits in the fonn of NOW accounts, 
Super NOW and money market accounts, and certificates of deposits. 

State law G.S. I 59-30(c) authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or obligations fully 
guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of the State of North Carolina; 
bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public authority; obligations of certain non­
guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of commercial paper and banker's acceptances; and the 
North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT). The Town's investments are reported at fair value. The 
securities of the NCCMT Govermnent Portfolio, a SEC-registered (2a-7) external investment pool is measured 
at amortized cost, which is the NCCMT's share price. The NCCMT Term Portfolio's securities are valued at 
fair value. 

General Statue 159-30.1 allows the Town to establish and fund an irrevocable trust for the purpose of paying 
post-employment benefits (OPEB) for which the Town is liable. The Town Other Postemployment BenefIt 
(OPEB) Trust was established May 21,2019 and as of June 30, 2019 had transfers totaling $250,000 from the 
General Fund, Electric Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund. 

The North Carolina Capital Management Trust (NCCMT) is a SEC registered money market mutual fund 
allowable by G.S. I 59-30(c)(8). The NCCMT Government Portfolio is a 2a-7 fund maintaining an AAAm 
rating from S&P. The NCCMT Term Portfolio is a bond fund, has no rating and has a duration of .11 years. 
Both the NCCMT Government and Term Portfolios are reported at fair value. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Ownership of the STIF is determined on a fair market valuation basis as of fi scal year end in accordance with 
the STlF operating procedures. STIF investments are valued by the custodian using Level 2 inputs which in this 
case involves inputs - other than quoted prices - included within Levell that are either directly or indirectly 
observable for the asset or liability. The STfF is valued at $1 per share. The STfF portfolio is unrated and had a 
weighted average maturity at June 30, 2019 of 1.3 years. Under the authority ofG.S. 147-69.3, no unrealized 
gains or losses of the STIF are distributed to participants of the fund. 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and maximize investment 
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposi ts and are considered cash and cash 
equivalents. 

3. Restricted Assets 

Certain police and fire safety moneys are classified as restricted because its use is restricted by donors or state 
and federal law. Money from the sale of cemetery plots is restricted for use in cemetery perpetual care. 
Unspent inspection funds are also classified as restricted cash because then can be expended only for the 
purposes outlined in State Statute (G.S. 160A-414). The unexpended bond and note proceeds in the Recreation 
Capital Project Fund and the Street Improvement Capital Project Fund are class ified as restricted assets because 
their use is completely restricted for the purpose for which the debt was originally issued. Amounts received 
for Capital Reimbursement fees are restricted until spent for future capital improvements or debt service on 
existing capital assets. 

Restricted assets at June 30, 2019 consist of: 

General Fund 
Public Safety 
General Government - lnspections 

Street Lrnprovement Capital Project Fund 
Future projects 

Recreation Capital Project Fund 
Future projects 

Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 
Capital Reimbursement 

Cemetery Fund 
Enviromental Services 

Total Restricted Cash 

4. Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

$ 294,254 
1,209,881 

923,993 

17,313,160 

1,485,997 

697,418 

$ 21 ,924,703 

In accordance with State law (G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a), the Town levies ad valorem taxes on property 
other than motor vehicles on July 1 ", the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1" (lien 
date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6th . These taxes are based on the assessed 
values as of the previous January pt. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Ownership of the STIF is determined on a fair market valuation basis as of fi scal year end in accordance with 
the STIF operating procedures. STIF investments are valued by the custodian using Level 2 inputs which in this 
case involves inputs - other than quoted prices - included within Level l that are either directly or indirectly 
observable for the asset or liability. The STIF is valued at $1 per share. The STIF portfo lio is unrated and had a 
weighted average maturity at June 30,2019 of 1.3 years. Under the authority ofG.S. 147-69.3 , no unrealized 
gains or losses of the STIF are distributed to participants ofthe fund . 

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and maximize investment 
income. Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand deposits and are considered cash and cash 
equivalents. 

3. Restricted Assets 

Certain police and fire safety moneys are classified as restricted because its use is restricted by donors or state 
and federal law. Money from the sale of cemetery plots is restricted for use in cemetery perpetual care. 
Unspent inspection funds are also classified as restricted cash because then can be expended only for the 
purposes outlined in State Statute (G.S. 160A-414). The unexpended bond and note proceeds in the Recreation 
Capital Project Fund and the Street Improvement Capital Project Fund are classified as restricted assets because 
their use is completely restricted for the purpose for which the debt was originally issued. Amounts received 
for Capital Reimbursement fees are restricted until spent for future capital improvements or debt service on 
existing capital assets. 

Restricted assets at June 30, 2019 consist of: 

General Fund 
Public Safety 
General Govemment - lnspect ions 

Street lrnprovement Capital Project Fund 
Future projects 

Recreation Capital Project Fund 
Future projects 

Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 
Capital Reimbursement 

Cemetery Fund 
Enviromental Services 

Total Restricted Cash 

4 . Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 

$ 294,254 
1,209,881 

923,993 

17,3 13,160 

1,485,997 

697,418 

$ 21,924,703 

In accordance with State law (G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a), the Town levies ad valorem taxes on property 
other than motor vehicles on July 1 ", the beginning of the fiscal year. The taxes are due on September 1" (lien 
date); however, interest does not accrue until the following January 6th . These taxes are based on the assessed 
values as of the previous January pl. 
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Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained on the ad valorem taxes receivable in the General Fund and 
on utility receivables in the Electric Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund. This amount is estimated by 
analyzing the percentage of receivables that are written off in prior years. The direct write-off method is used 
by the Town on all other types of receivables. Under this method, all accounts considered uncollectible at June 
30, 20 19 have been charged against operations. 

6. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

The inventories of the Town are valued at cost (weighted average), which approximates market. The Town's 
General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as used rather than 
when purchased. The inventories of the Town' s enterprise funds consist of materials and supplies held for 
subsequent use. The cost of these inventories is expensed when consumed rather when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect amounts applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as 
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. 

7. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of$5,000 or more and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Donated capital assets received prior to June 30, 2015 are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 30, 20 15 are 
recorded at acquisition va lue. All other purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or 
estimated historical cost. General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July I , 2003 consist of the road 
network assets and Water and Sewer, as well as Electric assets that were acquired or received substantial 
improvements subsequent to July I , 1980 and are reported at estimated historical cost using deflated 
replacement cost. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred. 
Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows: 

Item 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 
Electric, Water and Sewer Systems 
Buildings and Improvements 
Land improvements 
Equipment and Furniture 

8. Deferred Outflowsllnflows of Resources 

Life 
30 years 

3- 10 years 
30-40 years 
10-30 years 

10 to 33 years 
5 to 8 years 

In addition to assets, the statement of financia l position will sometimes report a separate section fo r deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or 
expenditure until then. The Town has two items that meet this criterion, pension deferrals and other post­
employment benefits (OPEB) deferrals for the 20 19 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the statement of 
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of ne t position that applies 
to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Town has three items that meets the 
criterion for this category - prepaid taxes, pension and OPEB deferrals . 
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NOle I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

5. Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 

An allowance for doubtful accounts is maintained on the ad valorem taxes receivable in the General Fund and 
on utility receivables in the Electric Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund. This amount is estimated by 
analyz ing the percentage of receivables that are written off in prior years. The direct write-off method is used 
by the Town on all other types of receivables. Under this method, all accounts considered uncollectible at June 
30, 20 19 have been charged against operations. 

6. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

The inventories of the Town are va lued at cost (weighted average), whicb approximates market. The Town's 
General Fund inventory consists of expendable supplies that are recorded as expenditures as used rather than 
when purchased. The inventories of the Town' s enterprise funds consist of materials and supplies held for 
subsequent use. The cost of these inventories is expensed when consumed rather when purchased. 

Certain payments to vendors reflect amounts applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as 
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased. 

7. Capital Assets 

Capital assets are defined by the government as assets witb an initial, individual cost of$5,OOO or more and an 
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Donated capital assets received prior to June 30, 20 15 are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Donated capital assets received after June 30, 20 l5 are 
recorded at acquisition value. All other purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or 
estimated historical cost. General infras tructure assets acquired prior to July I , 2003 consist of tbe road 
network assets and Water and Sewer, as well as Electric assets that were acquired or received substantial 
improvements subsequent to July I , 1980 and are reported at estimated historical cost using deflated 
replacement cost. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred. 
Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis as follows: 

Item 
Infrastructure 
Vehicles and Motorized Equipment 
Electric, Water and Sewer Systems 
Buildings and Improvements 
Land improvements 
Equipment and Furniture 

8. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

Life 
30 years 

3- 10 years 
30-40 years 
10-30 years 

10 to 33 years 
5 to 8 years 

In addition to assets , the statement of financia l position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows of Resources, represents a 
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an expense or 
expenditure until then. The Town has two items that meet this criterion, pension deferrals and other post­
employment benefits (OPEB) deferrals for the 20 19 fiscal year. In addition to liabilities, the statement of 
financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies 
to a future period and so will not be recognized as revenue until then. The Town bas three items that meets the 
criterion for tItis category - prepaid taxes, pension and OPEB deferrals. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

9. Long-tenn Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financ ial statements, long­
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

In the fund financial s tatements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other fmancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

10. Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy of the Town allows employees to carry forward each December 31 of up to thirty (30) days 
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. The Town's policy for compensatory 
time provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned compensatory time, which is vested. For the Town's 
government-wide and proprietary funds, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary­
related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of 
using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal 
year has been designated as a current liability in the government-wide fmandal statements. 

The Town's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not 
vest but any unused s ick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length 
of service for retirement purposes. Since the Town has no obligation for the sick leave until it is actually taken, 
no accrual for sick leave has been made. 

11. Net positionlFund Balances 

Net position 
Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements is classified as invested in net 
capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are 
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
imposed by law through state statute. 

Fund Balances 
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to 
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The goverrnnental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Non-spendable Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable fonn or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

9. Long-term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long­
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the reporting 
period in which they are incurred. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing 
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other fmancing sources while discounts on debt 
issuances are reported as other fmancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual net 
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 

10. Compensated Absences 

The vacation policy of the Town allows employees to carry forward each December 31 of up to thirty (30) days 
earned vacation leave with such leave being fully vested when earned. The Town's policy for compensatory 
time provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned compensatory time, which is vested. For the Town's 
government-wide and proprietary funds , an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary­
related payments are recorded as the leave is earned. The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of 
using accumulated compensated time. The portion of that time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal 
year has been designated as a current liability in the government-wide fmandal statements. 

The Town's sick leave policy provides for unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave. Sick leave does not 
vest but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may be used in the determination of length 
of service for retirement purposes. Since the Town has no obligation for the sick leave until it is actually taken, 
no accrual for sick leave has been made. 

11. Net position/Fund Balances 

Net position 
Net position in government-wide and proprietary fund flllancial statements is classified as invested in net 
capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted. Restricted net position represent constraints on resources that are 
either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or 
imposed by law through state statute. 

Fund Balances 
Tn the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications designed to 
disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 

The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 

Non-spendable Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

CemetelY pelpetual care - Cemetery resources that are required to be retained in perpetuity for 
maintenance of the cemetery. 

Prepaid items - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end 
balance of prepaid items, which are not spendable resources. 

inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end 
balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources. 

Restricted Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance restricted by or subject to externally enforceable legal 
restrictions, including. but not limited to creditors, grantors, contributors , or other governments through 
enabling legislation. 

Restricted/or Stabilization by State Statute - North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of government 
from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several statutes enacted by the 
North Carolina State Legislature in the 1930's that were designed to improve and maintain the fiscal 
health of local government units. Restricted by State statute (RSS), is calculated at the end of each fiscal 
year for all annually budgeted funds. The calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) provides a fonnula for detennining 
what portion of fund balance is available for appropriation. The amount of fund balance not available for 
appropriation is what is known as "restricted by State statute". Appropriated fund balance in any fund 
shall not exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and deferred 
revenues arising from cash receipts, as those figures stand at the close of the fiscal year next preceding the 
budget. Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon which a restriction is "imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation." RSS is reduced by inventories and prep aids as 
they are classified as nonspendable. Outstanding Encumbrances are included within RSS. RSS is included 
as a component of Restricted Net position and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance sheet. 

Restricted for public safety - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for certain public 
safety expenditures. 

Restrictedfor inspections -Inspection portion offund balance that is restricted by State Statute 
[G.s. 160A-414)]. 

Restricted for street improvements - portion of fund balance is unexpended debt proceeds and restricted 
until used for capital improvement for which the debt was issued. 

Restricted for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance is unexpended debt proceeds and 
restricted until used for capital improvement for which the debt was issued. 

Committed Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by a 
resolution approved by majority vote ofa quorum of the Town of Apex's Town Council (highest level of 
decision-making authority). The governing body can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal 
year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a 
similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. 
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Note 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

CemetelY pelpetual care - Cemetery resources that are required to be retained in perpetuity for 
maintenance of the cemetery. 

Prepaid items - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end 
balance of prepaid items, which are not spendable resources. 

inventories - portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the year-end 
balance of ending inventories, which are not spendable resources. 

Restricted Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance restricted by or subject to externally enforceable legal 
restrictions, including, but not limited to creditors, grantors, contributors , or other governments through 
enabling legislation. 

Restricted/or Stabilization by State Statllte - North Carolina G.S. 159-8 prohibits units of government 
from budgeting or spending a portion of their fund balance. This is one of several statutes enacted by the 
North Carolina State Legislature in the 1930's that were designed to improve and maintain the fiscal 
health of local government units. Restricted by State statute (RSS), is calculated at the end of each fiscal 
year for all annually budgeted funds. The calculation in G.S. 159-8(a) provides a fonnula for determining 
what portion of fund balance is available for appropriation. The amount of fund balance not available for 
appropriation is what is known as "restricted by State statute". Appropriated fund balance in any fund 
shall not exceed the sum of cash and investments minus the sum of liabilities, encumbrances, and deferred 
revenues arising from cash receipts, as those figures stand at the close of the fiscal year next preceding the 
budget. Per GASB guidance, RSS is considered a resource upon which a restriction is "imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation." RSS is reduced by inventories and prep aids as 
they are classified as nonspendable. Outstanding Encumbrances are included within RSS. RSS is included 
as a component of Restricted Net position and Restricted fund balance on the face of the balance sheet. 

Restricted for public safety - portion of fund balance that is restricted by revenue source for certain public 
safety expenditures. 

Restrictedfor impections -Inspection portion offund balance that is restricted by State Statute 
[G.s. J60A-414)]. 

Restricted for street improvements - portion of fund balance is unexpended debt proceeds and restricted 
until used for capital improvement for which the debt was issued. 

Restricted for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance is unexpended debt proceeds and 
restricted until used for capital improvement for which the debt was issued. 

Committed Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by a 
resolution approved by majority vote ofa quorum of the Town of Apex's Town Council (highest level of 
decision-making authority). The governing body can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal 
year, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a 
similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. 
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Note 1 ~ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Committed for cemetelY perpetual care - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for 
maintenance of the cemetery. 

Committed/or street improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for street capital 
improvements. 

Committed for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for 
recreational capital improvements. 

Committed for public safety improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for general 
capital improvements. 

Committed/or librmy maintenance ~ portion of fund balance committed by the Council for Perry Library 
expenditures. 

Committed/or LEO pension obligation ~ portion of fund balance that will be used for the Law 
Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance obligations. 

Assigned Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance that reflect a government's intended use of resources. 
Assignments are created, amended, or eliminated by the Town Council through budget ordinances or 
amendments to previously approved budget ordinances. 

Assigned for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance budgeted by the Council for recreation 
capital improvements. 

Assigned/or street improvements - portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Council for 
street improvements. 

Assigned for subsequent years expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next 
year 's budget that is not already classified in restricted or committed. 

Unassigned Fund Balance 

The portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes or other 
funds. 

The Town has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which states unassigned fund 
balance will be at least 25% of expenditures. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be 
spent from restricted fund balance first , followed by committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned. For 
programs with multiple revenue sources, the Town uses the following hierarchy; bond proceeds first, then 
federal funds, State funds, local non-town funds , and finally Town funds. The Finance Director has the 
authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the Town. 

Defined Benefit Pension and OPEB Plans 

The Town participates in two cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plans that are 
administered by the State; the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), the 
Law Enforcement Officers ' Special Separation Allowance (LEOSSA) (collectively, the "state-administered 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANC[AL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 [9 

Note 1 ~ SUMMARY OF S[GNIF[CANT ACCOUNTING POLlC[ES (continued) 

Committed for cemetelY perpetual care - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for 
maintenance of the cemetery. 

Committed/or street improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for street capital 
improvements. 

Committed for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for 
recreational capital improvements. 

Committed for public safety improvements - portion of fund balance committed by the Council for general 
capital improvements. 

Committed/or Iibrwy maintenance ~ portion of fund balance committed by the Council for Perry Library 
expenditures. 

Committed/or LEO pension obligation ~ portion of fund balance that wi ll be used for the Law 
Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance obligations. 

Assigned Fund Balance 

This classification includes amounts of fund balance that reflect a government's intended use of resources. 
Assignments are created, amended, or eliminated by the Town Council through budget ordinances or 
amendments to previously approved budget ordinances. 

Assigned for recreation improvements - portion of fund balance budgeted by the Council for recreation 
capital improvements. 

Assigned/or street improvements - portion of fund balance that has been budgeted by the Council for 
street improvements. 

Assigned for subsequent years expenditures - portion of fund balance that is appropriated in the next 
year's budget that is not already classified in restricted or corrunitted. 

Unassigned Fund Balance 

The portion of fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes or other 
funds. 

The Town has adopted a minimum fund balance policy for the General Fund which states unassigned fund 
balance will be at least 25% of expenditures. For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be 
spent from restricted fund balance first , followed by committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned. For 
programs with multiple revenue sources, the Town uses the following hierarchy; bond proceeds first, then 
federal funds, State funds, local non-town funds , and finally Town funds. The Finance Director has the 
authority to deviate from this policy if it is in the best interest of the Town. 

Defmed Benefit Pension and OPEB Plans 

The Town participates in two cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plans that are 
administered by the State; the Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System (LGERS), the 
Law Enforcement Officers ' Special Separation Allowance (LEOSSA) (collectively, the "state-administered 
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Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

defIned benefIt pension plans") , and one other postemployment benefIt plan (OPEB), the Healthcare BenefIts 
Plan (HCB). For purposes of measuring the net pension asset or liabil ity, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
positions of the state-administered defined benefit pension plans and additions to/deductions from the state­
administered defined benefit pension plans' fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by the state-administered defIned benefIt pension plans. For this purpose, plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. The Town's employer 
contributions are recognized when due and the Town has a legal requirement to provide the contributions. 
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the state­
administered defined benefIt pension plans. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the HCB and additions to/deductions from the HCB's fiduciary net position have been determined 
on the same basis as they are reported by the HCB. For this purpose, the HCB recognizes benefIt payments 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit tenns. Investments for all plans are reported at fair value. 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits - All of the Town's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under 
the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with 
securities held by the Town's agent in the Town's name. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, 
all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the 
State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are 
considered to be held by the Town's agent in the Town's name. The amount of the pledged collateral is based 
on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest 
bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their 
pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits. The State Treasurer does not confrnn this infonnation with the 
Town or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the 
Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exis ts for under-collateral ization, and this risk may increase in 
periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of 
financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Town 
has no fonnal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce 
standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for 
compliance. The Town complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating offIcial depositories and 
verifying that deposits are properly secured. 

At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the Town's deposits was $5 1,269,335 and the bank balance was 
$5 I ,920,021. Of the bank balance, $1,262,846 was covered by Federal depository insurance and $50,657, 175 
was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. At June 30, 2019, the Town had $1,725 of petty cash 
on hand. 

Investments - at June 30, 20 19, the Town's investments consisted of the following: 

Valuation 
Measurement 

Investments by Type Method Book Value Maturity Rating 
NC Capital Management Trust Fair Value 

Government Portfolio Level I $ 49 ,922,718 N/A AAArn 
NC Capital Management Trust Fair Value 

Term Portfolio Level I 55 ,737,734 .11 Years Unrated 
Total $ 105,660,452 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

defIned benefIt pension plans"), and one other postemployment benefIt plan (OPEB), the Healthcare BenefIts 
Plan (HCB). For purposes of measuring the net pension asset or liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
positions of the state-administered defined benefit pension plans and additions to/deductions from the state­
administered defined benefit pension plans' fiduciary net positions have been determined on the same basis as 
they are reported by the 'state-administered defIned benefIt pension plans. For this purpose, plan member 
contributions are recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. The Town's employer 
contributions are recognized when due and the Town has a legal requirement to provide the contributions. 
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the state­
administered defined benefIt pension plans. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred 
outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position of the HCB and additions to/deductions from the HCB's fIduciary net position have been determined 
on the same basis as they are reported by the HCB. For this purpose, the HCB recognizes benefIt payments 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments for all plans are reported at fair value. 

Note 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

Deposits - AJI of the Town's deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods. Under 
the Dedicated Method, all deposits exceeding the federal depository insurance coverage are collateralized with 
securities held by the Town's agent in the Town' s name. Under the Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, 
all uninsured deposits are collateralized with securities held by the State Treasurer's agent in the name of the 
State Treasurer. Since the State Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are 
considered to be held by the Town's agent in the Town's name. The amount of the pledged colliaeral is based 
on an approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for interest 
bearing deposits. Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer the adequacy of their 
pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits . The State Treasurer does not corrfrnn this information with the 
Town or the escrow agent. Because of the inability to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the 
Town under the Pooling Method, the potential exists for under-collateralization, and this risk may increase in 
periods of high cash flows. However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of 
financial stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method. The Town 
has no fonnal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State Treasurer to enforce 
standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial institutions and to monitor them for 
compliance. The Town complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories and 
verifying that deposits are properly secured. 

At June 30, 2019, the carrying amount of the Town's deposits was $51 ,269,335 and the bank balance was 
$5 I ,920,021. Of the bank balance, $1,262,846 was covered by Federal depository insurance and $50,657,175 
was covered by collateral held under the pooling method. At June 30, 2019, the Town had $1 ,725 of petty cash 
on hand. 

Investments - at June 30, 2019, the Town's investments consisted of the following: 

Valuation 
Measurement 

Investments by Type Method Book Value Maturity Rating 
NC Capital Management Trust Fair Value 

Government Portfolio Levell $ 49,922,718 N/A AAAm 
NC Capital Management Trust Fair Value 

Term Portfolio Levell 55,737,734 .11 Years Unrated 
Total $ 105,660,452 
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Note 2 - DEPOS ITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant infonnation 
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets. Level of fair 
value hierarchy: Level I: Debt securities valued using directly observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets. 

Interest Rate Risk: The Town has a policy limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising fro m increasing 
interest rates by limiting maturities of investments to three years or less from the date of purchase. 

Credit Risk: The Town has no fonnal policy regarding credit risk, but has internal management procedures 
that limits the Town's investment to the provisions afG.S. 159-30 and restricts the purchase of securities to the 
highest possible rating whenever particular types of securi ties are rated. The Town's investment in the NC 
Capital Management Trust Government Portfolio carried a rating of AAArn by Standard and Poor's as of June 
30,20 19. The Town's investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Tenn 
Portfolio is authorized to invest in obligations of the U.S. government and agencies, and in high grade money 
market instruments as permitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. 

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the fa ilure of the 
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party. The Town has no fonnal policy on custodial credit risk, but management 
procedures are that the Town shall utilize a third party custodial agent for book entry transactions, all of which 
shall be held in the Town's name. 

Note 3 - RECEIVABLES - ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

The amounts shown on the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position for receivables for the year ended 
June 30, 20 19 are net of the following allowances for doubtful accounts: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Electric Fund 
Water and Sewer Fund 

Allowance for Uncollectible: 
Property Taxes receivable 
Utility Receivables 
Utility Receivables 

$ 103,475 
55,879 
24,200 

T otal $ 183,554 
~~-

The Town entered into a loan agreement with Capital Area Preservation, Inc. (CAP) on September 9,20 15 for 
the purpose of establishing a loan with CAP for the preservation ofa historical house in the amount is $75,000. 
The loan is a period of two years, with an extension for an additional one year at the sole discretion of the 
Town and is payable and due at the end of the loan tenn or upon sale of the property to a third party, 
whichever comes first. The loan is non-interest bearing for the initial tenn of the loan and if the loan is still 
outstanding, then interest shall accrue at four percent per year. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOT ES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 2 - DEPOS ITS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

All investments are measured using the market approach: using prices and other relevant information 
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or a group of assets. Level of fair 
value hierarchy: Level I : Debt securities valued using directly observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets. 

interest Rate Risk: The Town has a policy limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising fro m increasing 
interest rates by limiting maturities of investments to three years or less from the date of purchase. 

Credit Risk: The Town has no fonna l policy regarding credit risk, but bas internal management procedures 
that limits the Town's investment to the provisions ofG.S. 159-30 and restricts the purchase of securities to the 
highest possible rating whenever particular types of securities are rated. The Town's investment in the NC 
Capital Management Trust Government Portfolio carried a rating of AAAm by Standard and Poor' s as of June 
30,20 19. The Town's investment in the NC Capital Management Trust Term Portfolio is unrated. The Term 
Portfolio is authorized to invest in obliga tions of the U.S. goverrnnent and agencies, and in high grade money 
market ins truments as permitted under North Carolina General Statutes 159-30 as amended. 

Custodial Credit Risk: For an investment, the custodial risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty, the Town wi ll not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party. The Town has no fonnal policy on custodial credit risk, but management 
procedures are that the Town shall utilize a third party custodial agent for book entry transactions, all of which 
shall be held in the Town's name. 

Note 3 - RECEIVABLES - ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS 

The amounts shown on the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Net Position for receivables for the year ended 
June 30, 20 19 are net of the following a llowances for doubtful accounts: 

Fund 
General Fund 
Electric Fund 
Water and Sewer Fund 

A Uowance for Uncollectible: 
Property Taxes receivable 
Ut ili ty Receivables 
Utility Receivables 

$ 103,475 
55,879 
24,200 

Totat $ 183,554 
=....;.-

The Town entered into a loan agreement with Capital Area Preservation, Inc. (CAP) on September 9, 20 15 for 
the purpose of establishing a loan with CAP for the preservation ofa historical house in the amount is $75,000. 
The loan is a period of two years, with an extension for an additional one year at the sole discretion of the 
Town and is payable and due at tile end of the loan term or upon sale of the property to a third party, 
whichever comes fIrst. The loan is non-interest bearing for the initial tenn ofthe loan and if the loan is still 
outstanding, then interest shaLl accrue at four percent per year. 
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Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 93,230,085 $ 11 ,3 17, 130 $ $ 104,547,2 15 
Construction in progress 3,928,586 2,956,917 248,170 6,637,333 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 97,158,67 1 14,274,047 248 ,170 111 ,184,548 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 47,611,241 833 ,279 48,444,520 
Other improvements 389,832,246 55 ,477 ,910 445,31 0, 156 
Equipment and furniture 6,969,668 1,604,107 86,5\0 8,487,265 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 11 ,422 ,403 2,423 ,839 293 ,966 13,552,276 

455 ,835,558 60,339, 135 380,476 515,794,2 17 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 17,931,273 1,574,309 19 ,505 ,582 
Other improvements 103,78 1,3 14 14,087,379 117,868,693 
Equipment and furniture 3,605, 11 3 56 1,887 64,024 4, 102,976 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 7,715,162 1,181,173 194,554 8,701,781 

Total accumulated depreciation 133,032,862 $ 17,404,748 $ 258,578 150,179,032 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 322,802,696 365,615,185 

Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 4 19,96 1,367 $ 476,799,733 

Depreciation expense was charged to 
functions/programs as follows: 

General government $ 925,606 
Public safety 1,544,419 
Public works 12,882,944 
Environmental protection 200,895 
Cultural and recreational . 1,850,884 

Total $ 17,404,748 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balances Increases Decreases Balances 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 93 ,230,085 $ 11,3 17,130 $ $ 104,547,2 15 
Construction in progress 3,928,586 2,956,917 248, 170 6,637,333 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 97,158,67 1 14,274,047 248 ,170 111 ,184,548 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings 47,611,24 1 833 ,279 48,444,520 
Other improvements 389,832,246 55 ,477,910 445 ,3 10,156 
Equipment and furniture 6,969,668 1,604,107 86,510 8,487,265 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 11,422 ,403 2,423,839 293 ,966 13,552,276 

455 ,835,558 60,339,135 380,476 515,794,2 17 
Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 17,93 1,273 1,574,309 19 ,505 ,582 
Other improvements 103,78 1,3 14 14,087,379 117,868,693 
Equipment and furniture 3,605, 113 56 1,887 64,024 4, 102,976 
Velticles and motorized equipment 7,7 15,162 1,181,173 194,554 8,70 1,78 1 

Total accumulated depreciation 133,032 ,862 $ 17,404,748 $ 258,578 150,179,032 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 322,802,696 365,6 15,185 

Governmental activity capital assets, net $ 4 19,96 1,367 $ 476,799,733 

Depreciation expense was charged to 
functions/programs as follows: 

General government $ 925 ,606 
Public safety 1,544,419 
Public works 12,882,944 
Environmental protection 200,895 
Cultural and recreational · 1,850,884 

Tota l $ 17,404,748 
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Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Bus in ess activiti e s Beginning Ending 

ELECTRIC FUND Balances Increases Decreases Balances 
Capital assets not being deprec iated: 

Land $ 2,798,6 14 $ 28,394 $ $ 2,827,008 
Construction in progress 42,7 15 490,000 532,7 15 
Total capita l assets not being depreciated 2,84 1,329 5 18,394 3,359,723 

Cap ital assets being dep reciated: 

Utility improvements 5 1,353,133 3,701 ,444 55,054,577 
Building and land improvements 6,780,804 6,780,804 
Equip ment and furniture 976, 109 128 ,750 1,104,859 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,235,528 355,650 2,59 1,178 
Total cap ital assets being depreciated 6 1,345,574 4,185 ,844 65,53 1,4 18 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Utility improvements 21,069,330 1,732,758 22,802,088 
Building and land improvements 2,467,40 1 636,944 3, 104,345 
Equipment and furniture 753,980 47,806 80 1,786 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,775,365 191 , 116 1,966,48 1 
Total accumulated depreciat ion 26,066,076 2,608,624 28,674,700 

Total capita l assets being dep reciated, net 35,279,498 $ 1,577,220 $ 36,856,7\8 

Cap ita l assets , net $ 38, 120,827 $ 40,2 16,44 1 

Begilming Ending 
WATER AN D SEWER FUN D Balances Increases Decreascs Balances 
Capital asscts not bcmgdcp rcciatcd: 

Land $ 50,258, 162 $ 2,072,289 $ $ 52,330,451 
Construct ion in progress 3,127,558 3,486,768 6,614,326 
Total cap ital assets not beingdepreciatcd 53,385,720 5,559,057 58,944,777 

Cap ital assets being dep reciated: 
Utility improvements 262, 128,306 3,00 1,286 72,057 265,057,535 
Building and land improvements 8,280,776 62,498 8,343,274 
Intangibles 3,490,000 3,490,000 
Equipment and furniture 2,65 1,7 10 330,377 180,439 2,80 1,648 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,675,775 3 19,297 127, 102 2,867,970 
Total capital assets being depreciated 279,226,567 3,7 13,458 379,598 282,560,427 

Less accumulated depreciat ion for: 
Uti lity imp rovements 85,325,920 9,901 ,735 60,404 95,167,251 
Building and land improvements 1,237,7 16 271 ,616 1,509,332 
Intangibles 3,490,000 3,490,000 
Equipment and furniture 1,683 ,725 175 ,398 119,282 1,739,841 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,668 ,258 300,102 127, 103 1,84 1,257 
Total accumulated dep reciation 93 ,405 ,6 19 10,648,85 1 306,789 103,747,681 

Total capita l assets being dep reciated. net 185,820,948 $ (6,935,393) $ 72 ,809 178,8 12,746 

Cap ital assets, net $ 239,206,668 $ 237,757,523 
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Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Bus in ess activities Beginning Ending 
ELECT RIC !'UNO Balances Increases Decreases Balances 
Cap ita l assets not bemg depreciated: 

Land $ 2,798,6 14 $ 28,394 $ $ 2,827,008 
Construction in progress 4 2,7 15 490,000 532,7 15 
Total capita l assets not being depreciated 2,84 1,329 5 18,394 3,3 59,723 

Cap ital assets being dep reciated : 
U t il ity improvements 5 1,353, 133 3,701 ,444 55,054 ,577 
Bui ld ing and land improvements 6,780,804 6,780,804 
Equip ment and furn iture 976, 109 128,750 1,104 ,859 
Vehicles and mo torized equ ip ment 2,235,528 355,650 2,59 1,178 
T otal cap ita l assets being depreciated 6 1,345,574 4 ,185,844 65,53 1,4 18 

Less accumulated dep rceiat ion for: 
Ut il ity imp rovements 21,069,330 1,732,758 22,802,088 
Bui ld ing and land imp rovements 2,467,40 1 636,944 3, 104,345 
Equip ment and furnit ure 753,980 47,806 80 1,786 
Vehicles and mo torized equip ment 1,775,365 19 1, 116 1,966,48 1 
T otal accumulated depreciation 26,066,076 2,608,624 28,674,700 

Total cap ita l assets being dep reciated. net 35,279,498 $ 1,577,220 $ 36,856,7 18 

Cap ital assets. net $ 38,120,827 $ 40,2 16,44 1 

8cgiIming Ending 
WATER AND S EWER FUND Balances increases Decreases Balances 
Capital assets not being dep reciated : 

Land $ 50,258, 162 $ 2,072,289 $ $ 52,330,45 1 
Const ruct io n in progress 3, 127,558 3,486,768 6,614,326 
T otal cap ita l assets not being dep reciated 53,385,720 5,559,057 58,944,777 

Cap ital assets being dep reciated : 
U tility improvements 262, 128,306 3,00 1,286 72,057 265,057,535 
Build ing and land improvement s 8,280,776 62,498 8,343,274 
Intangibles 3,490,000 3,490,000 
Equipment and fumiture 2,65 1,71 0 330,377 180,439 2,80 1,648 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 2,675,775 3 19,297 127, 102 2,8 67,970 
Total capita l assets being deprecia ted 279,226,567 3,7 13,458 379,598 282,560 ,427 

Less accumulated dep reciat ion fo r: 
Uti lity imp rovements 85,325,920 9,90 1,735 60,404 95,167,25 1 
Build ing and land imp rovements 1,237,7 16 27 1,6 16 1,509,332 
Intangibles 3,490,000 3,490,000 
Equipment and furniture 1,683 ,725 175 ,398 119,282 1,739,84 1 
Vehicles and motorized equipment 1,668 ,258 300,102 127, 103 1,84 1,257 
T mai accumulated dep reciat ion 93,405,6 19 10 ,648,85 1 306,789 103,747,68 1 

Total capital assets being dep reciated, net 185,820,948 $ (6,935,393) $ 72,809 178,8 12,746 

Cap ital assets, net $ 239,206,668 $ 237,7 57,523 
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Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Construction Commitments 

At June 30, 2019, the Town had contractual commitments as follows: 

Project 
Street Improvements Projects 
Recreation Capital Projects 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects 
Water/ Sewer Capital Projects 
Electric Substation Capital Project 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS 

(a) Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

1. Plan Description 

$ 

Spell t to Date 
3,790,322 $ 
2,437,005 

154,592 
6,459,734 

532,715 

Remaining 

Commitment 
233,565 

1,798,563 
951 ,068 
968,998 
210,000 

The Town of Apex is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental Employees' Retirement 
System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defmed benefit pension plan administered by the State of 
North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers 
(LEOs) of participating local government entities. Article 3 of North Carolina G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of 
the plan is vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members - nine appointed by the 
Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the 
State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio members. The Local Governmental 
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes fmancial statements and required supplementary 
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as 
1.85% of the member's average final compensation times the member's years of creditable service. A 
member's average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member's four highest consecutive 
years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five 
years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of 
creditable service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years 
of creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for fIrefighters). Survivor 
benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days 
of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 
years of creditable service for fIrefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or have 
completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly 
Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. The plan does not provide for 
automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five 
years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan members 
are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an officer. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 I 9 

Note 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 

Construction Commitments 

At June 30, 2019, the Town had contractual commitments as follows: 

Project 
Street Impro vements Projects 
Recreation Capital Projects 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Projects 
Water/ Sewer Capital Projects 
Electric Substation Capital Project 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS 

(a) Local Governmental Employees' Retirement System 

1. Plan Description 

$ 
Spell t to Date 

3,790,322 $ 
2,437,005 

154,592 
6,459,734 

532,715 

Remaining 

Commitment 
233,565 

1,798,563 
951 ,068 
968,998 
210,000 

The Town of Apex is a participating employer in the statewide Local Governmental Employees' Retirement 
System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defmed benefit pension plan administered by the State of 
North Carolina. LGERS membership is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers 
(LEOs) of participating local government entities. Article 3 of North Carolina G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the 
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. Management of 
the plan is vested in the LGERS Board ofTrnstees, which consists of \3 members - nine appointed by the 
Governor, one appointed by the State Senate, one appointed by the State House of Representatives, and the 
State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-offic io members. The Local Governmental 
Employees' Retirement System is included in the Comprehensive Armual Financial Report (CAFR) for the 
State of North Carolina. The State's CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary 
information for LGERS. That report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 
Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454, or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 

Benefits Provided. LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined as 
1.85% of the member's average final compensation times the member's years of creditable service. A 
member's average final compensation is calculated as the average of a member's four highest consecutive 
years of compensation. Plan members are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five 
years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of 
creditable service. Plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years 
of creditable service or at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for fIrefighters). Survivor 
benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 days 
of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of age (15 
years of creditable service for fIrefighters and rescue squad members who are killed in the line of duty) or have 
completed five years of service and have reached age 60. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly 
Survivor's Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. The plan does not provide for 
automatic post-retirement benefit increases. Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 

LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 55 with five 
years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service. LEO plan members 
are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 15 years of creditable service as an officer. 
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Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries af LEO members who die while in active service or 
within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of creditable service 
regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed 
five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable 
service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's 
Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. 

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only 
by the North Carolina General Assembly. Town of Apex employees are required to contribute 6% of their 
compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of 
Trustees. The Town of Apex's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2019, was 
8.50% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 7.75% for general employees and firefighters, 
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to fmance 
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the Town of 
Apex were $2, 136,423 for the year ended June 30, 20 19. 

Refunds afContributions ~ Town employees who have tenrunated service as a contributing member of 
LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at 
least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service 
tenrtination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual's right 
to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS. 

Pellsion Liabilities, Pensioll Expellse, and Deferred Outflows of Resources alltl Deferretllnj10ws of 
Resources Related to Pellsions 

At June 30, 2019, the Town reported a liabi lity of$1 0,061 ,576 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 3 1,2017. The total pension 
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2018 utilizing update procedures 
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Town's long-term share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the 
projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially 
detennined. At June 30, 2018, the Town's proportion was 0.42412%, which was an increase ofO.02275% 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Town recognized pension expense of$2,768, 153. At June 30, 2019 the 
Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

Survivor benefits are available to eligible beneficiaries arLEO members who die while in active service or 
within 180 days of their last day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of creditable service 
regardless of age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have completed 
five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or have completed 15 years of creditable 
service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty. Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor's 
Alternate Benefit for life or a return of the member's contributions. 

Contributions. Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be amended only 
by the North Carolina General Assembly. Town of Apex employees are required to contribute 6% of their 
compensation. Employer contributions are actuarially determined and set annually by the LGERS Board of 
Trustees. The Town of Apex 's contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2019, was 
8.50% of compensation for law enforcement officers and 7.75% for general employees and firefighters, 
actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance 
the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year. Contributions to the pension plan from the Town of 
Apex were $2,136,423 for the year ended June 30, 20 19. 

Refunds ajContributions - Town employees who have tenninated service as a contributing member of 
LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions. By state law, refunds to members with at 
least five years of service include 4% interest. State law requires a 60 day waiting period after service 
tennination before the refund may be paid. The acceptance of a refund payment cancels the individual's right 
to employer contributions or any other benefit provided by LGERS. 

Pellsion Liabilities, Pensioll Expetlse, amI Deferred Outflows of Resources alld Deferred Illflows of 
Resources Related to Pensiolls 

At June 30, 2019, the Town reported a liabi lity of$ 1 0,061 ,576 for its proportionate share of the net pension 
liability. The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2018. The total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of December 3 1,20 17. The total pension 
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 20 18 utilizing update procedures 
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. The Town's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a 
projection of the Towo's long-tenn share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the 
projected future payroll covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, ac tuarially 
detemlined. At June 30, 2018, the Town's proportion was 0.42412%, which was an increase ofO.02275% 
from its proportion measured as of June 30, 20 17. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Town recognized pension expense of $2,768,153. At June 30, 2019 the 
Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 
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Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between Town 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 1,552,262 
2,669,954 

1,38 1,155 

74,425 

2,136,423 

$ 7,814,219 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 52,086 

77,503 

$ 129,589 

$2,136,423 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date, before the fiscal year end, will be recognized as a decrease of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
Total 

$ 

$ 

2,657,586 
1,735,755 

334 ,354 
820,512 

5,548,207 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31 , 2017 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.0 percent 
3.5 percent 
7.00 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law 
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on 
published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the U.S. population. The healthy 
mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included 
in the measurement. 

The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current 
and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical 
performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between Town 
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 

Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 1,552,262 
2,669,954 

1,381,155 

74,425 

2,136,423 

$ 7,814,219 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 52,086 

77,503 

$ 129,589 

$2,136,423 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date, before the fiscal year end, will be recognized as a decrease of the net 
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Yeor ended June 30: 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
Total 

$ 

$ 

2,657,586 
1,735,755 

334 ,354 
820,512 

5,548,207 

Actuarial Assumptions. The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was 
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

3.0 percent 
3.5 percent 
7.00 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, law 
enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The current mortality rates are based on 
published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions ofthe U.S. population. The healthy 
mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January 1, 2010 through December 31, 2014. 

Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are therefore not included 
in the measurement. 

The projected long-ternl investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through review of current 
and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant whitepapers, and historical 
performance of investment strategies. Fixed income return projections reflect current yields across the U.S. 
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Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors 
and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of 
the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and strategies' return 
projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic 
real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return 
Fixed Income 
Global Equity 
Real Estate 
Alternatives 
Credit 
Inflation Protection 

Total 

29.0% 
42.0% 

8.0% 
8.0% 
7.0% 
6.0% 
100% 

1.4% 
5.3% 
4.3% 
8.9% 
6.0% 
4.0% 

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2017 
asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The 
long-term nominal rates ofretum underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real 
rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation 
assumption of3.05%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, 
actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to detennine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00 percent) or one 
percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate: 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability (asset) 

1% Decrease 
(6.00%) 

$ 24,168 ,779 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.00%) 

$ 10,061 ,576 

1 % Increase 
(8.00%) 

$ (1 ,726,622) 

Pension plan jiduciQ}Y net position. Detailed infomlation about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Armual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 5 ~ PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

Treasury yield curve and market expectations of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors 
and over multiple year horizons. Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of 
the equity risk premium and the fixed income return projections. Other asset categories and strategies' return 
projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis. These projections are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset 
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic 
real rates of return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2019 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected Real 

Rate of Return 
Fixed Income 
Global Equity 
Real Estate 
Alternatives 
Credit 
Inflation Protection 

Total 

29.0% 
42.0% 

8.0% 
8.0% 
7.0% 
6.0% 
100% 

1.4% 
5.3% 
4.3% 
8.9% 
6.0% 
4.0% 

The information above is based on 30 year expectations developed with the consulting actuary for the 2017 
asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement Systems, including LGERS. The 
long-tenn nominal rates ofretum underlying the real rates of return are arithmetic annualized figures. The real 
rates of return are calculated from nominal rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-tenn inflation 
assumption of3.05%. All rates of return and inflation are annualized. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, 
actuarially detennined. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to 
be available to make all projected future benefit payments of the current plan members. Therefore, the long­
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit 
payments to detennine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate 
of 7.00 percent, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension asset or net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.00 percent) or one 
percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate: 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability (asset) 

1% Decrease 
(6.00%) 

$ 24,168 ,779 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.00%) 

$ 10,061,576 

I % Increase 
(8.00%) 

$ (1 ,726,622) 

Pension plan jiduciaJy net position. Detailed infonnation about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is 
available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. 
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Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

(b) Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance 

I. Plan Description 

The Town of Apex administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation Allowance), a singie­
employer defined benefit pension plan tllat provides retirement benefits to the Town 's qualified sworn law 
enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service or have 
attained 55 years of age and have completed fi ve or more years of creditable service. The Separation Allowance 
is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the 
officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or 
retirement allowances that may be authorized by the General Assembly. Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 
assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. 

All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December 
3 1,20 17, the Separation AJlowance's membership consisted of: 

Retirees receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

2 
78 
80 

Basis of Accounting: The Town has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. 
Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the tenus of the 
plan. 

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the following criteria which are 
outlined in GASB Statement 73. At June 30, 2019, $850,255 of committed net position was available to pay 
Separation Allowance obligations. 

3. Actuarial Assumptions 

The entry age nonnal method was used in the December 3 I , 20 I 7 valuation. The total pension liability in the 
December 3 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was detennined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to 
all periods included in the measurement: 

Discount rate 
Projected salary increases 

Includes inflation at 

3.64 percent 

3.50 to 7.35 percent, including inflation aod productivity factor 

2.50 percent 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is the weekly average of the Bond Buyer General 
Obligation 20-year Municipal Bond Index determined at the end of each month. 

Mortality rates are based on the RP-20 14 Mortality tables projected to the valuation date using MP-20 15, 
projected forward generatiooally from the valuation date using MP-2015. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30,2019 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

(b) Law Enforcement Officers Special Separation Allowance 

I. Plan Description 

The Town of Apex administers a public employee retirement system (the Separation Allowance), a single­
employer defined benefit pension plan that provides retirement benefits to the Town 's qualified sworn law 
enforcement officers under the age of 62 who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service or have 
attained 55 years of age and have completed five or more years of creditable service. The Separation Allowance 
is equal to .85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation most recently applicable to the 
officer for each year of creditable service. The retirement benefits are not subj ect to any increases in salary or 
retirement allowances that may be authorized by tbe General Assembly. Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 
assigns the autbority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the Nortb Carolina General Assembly. 

All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance. At December 
31,2017, the Separation Allowance's membership consisted of: 

Retirees receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

2 
78 
80 

Basis of Accounting: Tbe Town bas chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay as you go basis. 
Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the modified accrual basis of 
accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
plan. 

The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the following criteria which are 
outlined in GASB Statement 73. AtJune 30, 2019, $850,255 of committed net position was available to pay 
Separation Allowance obligations. 

3. Actuarial Assumptions 

The entry age normal method was used in the December 31,2017 valuation. The total pension liability in the 
December 31 , 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to 
all periods included in the measurement: 

Discount rate 

Projected salary increases 
Includes inflation at 

3.64 percent 

3.50 to 7.35 percent, including inflation and productivity factor 

2.50 percent 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is the weekly average of the Bond Buyer General 
Obligation 20-year Municipal Bond Index detennined at the end of eacb month. 

Mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Mortality tables projected to tile va luation date using MP-2015, 
projected forward generationally from the valuation date using MP-20 15. 
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Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

4. Contributions 

The Town is required by Article 120 of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen 
to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go basis through appropriations 
made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no contributions made by employees. 
The Town's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina 
General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through investment 
earnings. The Town paid $147,161 as benefits came due for the reporting period. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30,2019, the Town reported a total pension liability of $2,560,742. The total pension liability was 
measured as of December 31, 2018 based on a December 31, 20 17 actuarial valuation. The total pension 
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of December 30, 2018 utilizing update procedures 
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 20 19, the Town recognized pension 
expense of$263,592. 

At June 30, 20 19 the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
the pension from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Town benefit payments and administrat ive costs subsequent to 
the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 

$ 

296,495 
101 ,139 

73,580 

471 ,214 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 
114,697 

$ 114,697 

$73,580 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease of the net pension liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 
Total 

$ 

$ 

55, 11 9 
55,119 
55,119 
58,077 
46,920 
12,583 

282,937 

Sensitivity of the Town 's total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the 
Town's total pension liabi lity calculated using the discount rate of3.64%, as well as what the Town 's total 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

4. Contributions 

The Town is required by Article 12D of G. S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits and has chosen 
to fund the amounts necessary to cover the benefits earned on a pay as you go basis through appropriations 
made in the General Fund operating budget. There were no contributions made by employees. 
The Town's obligation to contribute to this plan is established and may be amended by the North Carolina 
General Assembly. Administration costs of the Separation Allowance are financed through investment 
earnings. The Town paid $147,161 as benefits came due for the reporting period. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, alld Deferred Outflows of Resources alld Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30,2019, the Town reported a total pension liabili ty of $2,560,742. The total pension liability was 
measured as of December 31 , 20 18 based on a December 31 , 2017 actuarial valuation. The total pension 
liability was then rolled forward to the measurement date of December 30, 2018 utilizing update procedures 
incorporating the actuarial assumptions. For the year ended June 30, 20 19, the Town recognized pension 
expense of$263,592. 

At June 30, 20 19 the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
the pension from the following sources: 

D ifferences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Town benefit payments and administrative costs subsequent to 
the measurement date 

Total 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 296,495 
101 ,139 

73,580 
$ 471 ,2 14 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 
114,697 

$ 114,697 

$73,580 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a decrease o f the net pens ion liability in the year ended 
June 30, 2020. 

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 

Thereafter 
Total 

$ 

$ 

55, 11 9 
55,1 19 
55,1 19 
58,077 
46,920 
12,583 

282,937 

Sensitivity of the Town 's total p ension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the 
Town's tota l pension liability calculated using the discount rate of3.64%, as well as what the Town 's total 
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Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.64 
percent) or one percentage point higher (4.64 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease 
(2. 64%) 

Cun·ent 
Discount Rate 

(3.64%) 
1% Increase 

(4.64%) 
Total pension liability $ 2,78 1,609 $ 2,560,742 $ 2,358,82 1 

The plan currently uses mortali ty tables that vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The 
current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the 
U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liabili ty 
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Beginning balance 
Service cost 
[nterest on total pension liabi lity 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 
Ending balance ofthe total pension liability 

$ 

$ 

2,248,394 
\38,637 
69,277 

320,220 
(103,589) 
(112,197) 

2,560,742 

The ac tuarial assumptions used in the December 3 1, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an ac tuarial 
experience study for the period January 1,20 I 0 through December 31, 20 14. 

(c) Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Following is information related to the proportionate share and pension expense for all pension plans: 

LGERS LEOS SA TOTAL 
Pension Expense $ 2,768, 153 $ 263,592 $ 3,031,745 
Pension Liability 10,06 1,576 2,560,742 12,622,3 [ 8 
Proportionate share ofthe net pension liability .424[2% N/A 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,552,262 296,495 1,848,757 
Changes of assumptions 2,669,954 101 ,139 2,77 1,093 
Net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on plan investments 1,38 1,155 1,38 1,155 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 74,425 74,425 

Benefit payments and administrative costs paid 
subsequent to the measurement date 2, 136,423 73,580 2,2 10,003 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual experience 52,086 52,086 
Changes of assumptions 114,697 114,697 
Changes in proportion and differences between 

contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 77,503 77,503 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGA nONS (continued) 

pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.64 
percent) or one percentage point higher (4.64 percent) than the current rate: 

1% Decrease 
(2.64%) 

Cun'ent 
Discount Rate 

(3.64%) 

1% Increase 
(4.64%) 

Total pension liability $ 2,781,609 $ 2,560,742 $ 2,358,821 

The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy). The 
current mortality rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the 
U.S. population. The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality improvements. 

Schedule of Changes in Total Pension Liability 
Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation Allowance 

Beginning balance 
Service cost 
Interest on total pension liability 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Benefit payments 
Ending balance of the total pension liability 

$ 

$ 

2,248,394 
138,637 
69,277 

320,220 
(103,589) 
(112 ,197) 

2,560,742 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period January 1,20 I 0 through December 31,2014. 

(c) Total Expense, Liabilities, and Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

Following is information related to the proportionate share and pension expense for all pension plans: 

LGERS LEOS SA TOTAL 
Pension Expense $ 2,768,153 $ 263,592 $ 3,031,745 
Pension Liability 10,061,576 2,560,742 12,622,318 
Proportionate share of the net pension liability .42412% N/A 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual experience 1,552,262 296,495 1,848,757 
Changes of assumptions 2,669,954 10 1,139 2,77 1,093 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings on plan investments 1,38 1,155 1,381 ,155 
Changes in proportion and differences between 

contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 74,425 74,425 

Benefit payments and administrative costs paid 
subsequent to the measurement date 2,136,423 73 ,580 2,210,003 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual experience 52,086 52,086 
Changes of assumptions 114,697 114,697 
Changes in proportion and differences between 

contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 77,503 77,503 
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June 30, 2019 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

(d) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 

1. Plan Description 

The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension plan 
administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to 
law enforcement officers employed by the Town. Article 5 ofG. S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and 
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law 
Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The State's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 
40 I(k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, or by calling (9 19) 98 1-5454. 

2. Funding Policy 

Article 12E ofG. S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent of each 
officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make 
voluntary contributions to the plan. The Town made contributions of$251 ,274 for the reporting year. 

(e) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for all Other Employees 

All other employees of the Town (excludes Law Enforcement Officers) are members of the Town's 401 (k) plan, a 
defined contribution pension plan as described above. Participation begins six months after the date of employment. In 
a defmed contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. 

The Town contributes each month an amount equal to five percent of eligible employees ' salary. The Town made 
contributions of $1 ,094,965 for the reporting year. 

Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT 

Healtltcare Benefits 

1. Plan Description 

The Town administers a single-employer defined healthcare benefit (HCE) plan to cover retirees of the Town who 
participate in the North Carolina Local Government Employees' Retirement System and have met the minimum 15 year 
service requirement with the Town. Employees who have 15-19 years of service at retirement will receive 50% of the 
benefits. Employees with 20-24 years of continuous creditable service with the Town will receive 75% of the benefits 
and those who have 25 or more years of continuous creditable service with the Town at the time of their retirement will 
receive full benefits. The Town's retirees can also purchase coverage for their dependents at the Town's group rates as 
long as they had dependent coverage at the time of retirement. The Town Council may amend the benefit provisions. 
A separate report was not issued for the plan. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 5 - PENSION PLAN OBLIGATIONS (continued) 

(d) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers 

1. Plan Description 

The Town contributes to the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a defined contribution pension plan 
administered by the Department of State Treasurer and a Board of Trustees. The Plan provides retirement benefits to 
law enforcement officers employed by the Town. Article 5 ofG. S. Chapter 135 assigns the authority to establish and 
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. The Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law 
Enforcement Officers is included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North 
Carolina. The State's CAFR includes the pension trust fund financial statements for the Internal Revenue Code Section 
40 I (k) plan that includes the Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for Law Enforcement Officers. That report may be 
obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1410, or by calling (919) 98 1-5454. 

2. Funding Policy 

Article 12E ofG. S. Chapter 143 requires the Town to contribute each month an amount equal to five percent of each 
officer's salary, and all amounts contributed are vested immediately. Also, the law enforcement officers may make 
voluntary contributions to the plan. The Town made contributions of$251,274 for the reporting year. 

(e) Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for all Other Employees 

All other employees of the Town (excludes Law Enforcement Officers) are members of the Town's 40 I (k) plan, a 
defined contribution pension plan as described above. Participation begins six months after the date of employment. In 
a defmed contribution plan, benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings. 

The Town contributes each month an amount equal to five percent of eligible employees ' salary. The Town made 
contributions of $1 ,094,965 for the reporting year. 

Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT 

Healtltcare Benefits 

1. Plan Description 

The Town administers a single-employer defined healthcare benefit (HCR) plan to cover retirees of the Town who 
participate in the North Carolina Local Government Employees' Retirement System and have met the minimum 15 year 
service requirement with the Town. Employees who have 15-19 years of service at retirement will receive 50% of the 
benefits. Employees with 20-24 years of continuous creditable service with the Town will receive 75% of the benefits 
and those who have 25 or more years of continuous creditable service with the Town at the time of their retirement will 
receive full benefits. The Town's retirees can also purchase coverage for the ir dependents at the Town's group rates as 
long as they had dependent coverage at the time of retirement. The Town Council may amend the benefit provisions. 
A separate report was not issued for the plan. 
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Note 6 ~ OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

Retired Employees' Years of Creditable Service 

Less than 15 years 

15 - 20 years 

20 ~ 24 years 

25+ years 

2. Plan Membership 

Coverage 0 ffered 

Not eligible for coverage 

50% employee coverage 

75% employee coverage 

100% employee coverage 

At June 30, 2017, the date of the last actuarial valuation (used in these calculations), membership of the plan consisted 
of the following: 

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 
Tenninated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

3. Benefits Provided 

General 
EmEloyees 

32 

360 
392 

Law 
Enforcement 

Officers 
4 

85 
89 

The HCB Plan provides healthcare benefits for retirees. The Town pays the full cost of post retirement health insurance 
for qualified retirees until the earlier of age 65 , covered under Medicare coverage, or covered under another individual 
insurance plan. The Town is insured through private insurers . Post-retirement spouse and dependent coverage is 
allowed under the plan, provided the monthly cost is paid by the retiree, and is only provided to spouse and dependents 
covered at the time of the employee's retirement and continues until the earlier of the death of the retiree or the date the 
retiree reaches age 65 . Below are coverages based in creditable services under the Plan. 

Retired Employees' Years of Creditable Service 

Less than 15 years 

15 ~ 20 years 

20 ~ 24 years 

25+ years 

4. Contributions 

Coverage Offered 

Not eligible for coverage 

50% employee coverage 

75% employee coverage 

100% employee coverage 

The Town Council established the contribution requirements of plan members, which may be amended by the Council. 
Per a Town resolution, the Town is required to contribute the projected pay-as-you-go fmancing requirements , with an 
additional amount to pre-fund benefits as determined annually by the Council, effective October 21 , 2008 . For the 
current year, the Town made total contributions of$692,864 to the plan. The Fund is accounted for as a trust fund. 
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June 30, 2019 

Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

Retired Employees' Years of Creditable Service 

Less than 15 years 

15 - 20 years 

20 - 24 years 

25+ years 

2. Plan Membership 

Coverage 0 ffered 

Not eligible for coverage 

50% employee coverage 

75% employee coverage 

100% employee coverage 

At June 30, 2017, the date of the last actuarial valuation (used in these calculations), membership of the plan consisted 
of the following: 

Retirees and dependents rece iving benefits 
Tenninated plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 
Active plan members 

Total 

3. Benefits Provided 

General 
EmEloyees 

32 

360 
392 

Law 
Enforcement 

Officers 
4 

85 
89 

The HCB Plan provides healthcare benefits for retirees. The Town pays the full cost of post retirement health insurance 
for qualified retirees until the earlier of age 65, covered under Medicare coverage, or covered under another individual 
insurance plan. The Town is insured through private insurers. Post-retirement spouse and dependent coverage is 
allowed under the plan, provided the monthly cost is paid by the retiree, and is only provided to spouse and dependents 
covered at the time of the employee's retirement and continues until the earlier of the death of the retiree or the date the 
retiree reaches age 65 . Below are coverages based in creditable services under the Plan. 

Retired Employees' Years of Creditable Service 

Less than IS years 

IS - 20 years 

20 - 24 years 

25+ years 

4. Contributions 

Coverage Offered 

Not eligible for coverage 

50% employee coverage 

75% employee coverage 

100% employee coverage 

The Town Council established the contribution requirements of plan members, which may be amended by the Council. 
Per a Town resolution, the Town is required to contribute the projected pay-as-you-go fmancing requirements, with an 
additional amount to pre-fund benefits as determined annually by the Council, effective October 21,2008 . For the 
current year, the Town made tota l contributions of$692,864 to the plan. The Fund is accounted for as a trust fund. 
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Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

5. Investment Policy 

The HCB Plan' s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by the Town 
Council by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the Council to pursue an investment strategy that reduces 
risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset c lasses. The HCB 
Plan' s discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically 
shifting asset c lass allocations over short time spans. Inves tments are values at fair value. The following was the 
Council' s adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 20 19: 

Asset Class 
Bond Index Fund 
Equity Index Fund 

Total 

6. Rate of Return 

Target Allocation 
2019 
40.0% 
60.0% 
100.0% 

Long-Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return 
2019 

4.00% 
4.00% 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the annual money weighted rate ofretum on investments, net of investment expense, 
was 0.00 percent. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. Because the trust for the HCB Plan was established on June 30, 
2019, there was no return on the investments at fi scal year end. Investment return data for the notes and RSI will be 
available in future reports. 

The components of the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2019 were as follows: 

Total OPEB Liabili ty 
Plan fiduciary net position 
Town's net OPEB Liability 

Plan fiduciary nel position as a 
Percentage af the total OPEB liability 

$ 

$ 

33,954,558 
250,000 

33,704,558 

0.74% 

7. Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an ac tuarial valuation as of June 30, 20 17 using the following ac tuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 
Healthcare cost trend rates 

2.50 percent 
3.50 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity factor 
4 .00 percent, net a fOPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 
7.75 percent decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00% by 2022 

The total OPEB liability was rolled forward to June 30, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial 
assumptions. 

Mortality rates were based on the RP-20 14 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to the valuation date using MP-2015, 
projected forward generationally from the valuation date using MP-20 15. For general employees, rates are adjusted by 
115% (male) and 79% (female) for ages under 78 and by 135% (male) and 116% (female) for age 78 and older. For 
law enforcement officers, rates are adjusted by 104% far males and 100% for females. 
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Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

5. Investment Policy 

The HCB Plan' s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended by lbe Town 
Council by a majority vote of its members, It is the policy of the Council to pursue an investment strategy that reduces 
risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset c lasses. The HCB 
Plan's discourages the use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain fro m dramatically 
shifting asset class allocations over short time spans. Investments are values at fair value. The following was the 
Council 's adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 20 19: 

Asset Class 
Bond Index Fund 
Equity Index Fund 

Total 

6. Rate of Returu 

Target Allocation 
2019 
40.0% 
60.0% 
100.0% 

Long-Term Expected Real 
Rate of Return 
2019 

4.00% 
4.00% 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the annual money weighted rate ofretum on investments, net of investment expense, 
was 0.00 percent. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment perfonnance, net of investment expense, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. Because the trust for the RCB Plan was established on June 30, 
2019, there was no return on the investments at fi scal year end. Investment return data for the notes and RSI will be 
available in future reports. 

The components oflhe net OPEB liability oflhe Town at June 30, 20 19 were as follows: 

Total OPEB Liability 
Plan fiduciary net position 
Town's net OPEB Liability 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
Percentage of the total OPEB liability 

$ 

$ 

33,954,558 
250,000 

33,704,558 

0.74% 

7. Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an ac tuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017 using the following ac tuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 
Healthcare cost trend rates 

2.50 percent 
3.50 to 7.75 percent, including inflation and productivity factor 
4.00 percent, net ofOPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 
7.75 percent decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.00% by 2022 

The total OPEB liability was rolled forward to June 30, 20 19 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial 
assumptions. 

Mortality rates were based on lbe RP-201 4 Healthy Annuitant base rates projected to lbe valuation date using MP-2015, 
projected forward generationally from the valuation date using MP-20 15. For general employees, rates are adjusted by 
11 5% (male) and 79% (female) for ages under 78 and by 135% (male) and 116% (female) for age 78 and older. For 
law enforcement officers, rates are adjusted by 104% for males and 100% for females. 
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The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation was based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period 2010-2014. 

The long-tenn expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was detennined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset c lass. These ranges are combined to produce the long-tenn expected rate 
of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the major target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
target asset allocation as of June 30, are presented above. 

8. Discount Rate 
Tbe discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability June 30, 2019 was 3.50 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to detennine the discount rate assumed that the Town will contribute $350,000 annually to the plan. 

9. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2019, as well as what the Town's net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (4.50 percent) than the current discount rate: 

Net OPEB liability 

1% Decrease 

(2.50 percent) 
$ 41,547,949 

Discount Rate 

(3.50 percent) 
$ 33,704,558 

1 % Increase 

(4.50 percent) 
$ 27,725 ,557 

10. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

The following presents the net OPEB liability oftbe Town at June 30, 2019, as well as what the Town's net OPEB 
liability would be ifit were to calculate healthcare cost trend rates that are I-percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.75 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

Net OPEB liability 

I % Decrease (6.75 
percent 
decreasing to 4 
percent) 

$ 26,336,962 

II . Changes in Net OPEB Liability 

Healthcare cost 
Trend Rate (7.75 
Percent decreasing 
to 5 percent) 

$ 33,704,558 

I % Increase (8.75 
Percent decreasing to 6 
percent) 

$ 43 ,862,782 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB. At June 30, 
2019 the Town reported a net OPEB liability of$33,704,558. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 20 17. The total OPEB liability was then rolled forward 
to the measurement date of June 30, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. 
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Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation was based on the results of an actuarial experience study 
for the period 201O-2014. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was detennined using a building-block method in 
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and 
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate 
of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the major target asset allocation percentage and by 
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
target asset allocation as of June 30, are presented above. 

8. Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability June 30, 2019 was 3.50 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that the Town will contribute $350,000 annually to the plan. 

9. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2019, as well as what the Town's net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (4.50 percent) than the current discount rate: 

Net OPEB liability 

1% Decrease 

(2.50 percent) 
$ 41,547,949 

Discount Rate 

(3.50 percent) 
$ 33,704,558 

1 % Increase 

(4.50 percent) 
$ 27,725 ,557 

10. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2019, as well as what the Town's net OPEB 
liability would be ifit were to calculate healthcare cost trend rates that are I-percentage-point lower (6.75 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (8.75 percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

Net OPEB liability 

1 % Decrease (6.75 
percent 
decreasing to 4 
percent) 

$ 26,336,962 

11. Changes in Net OPEB Liability 

Healthcare cost 
Trend Rate (7.75 
Percent decreasing 
to 5 percent) 

$ 33,704,558 

1 % Increase (8.75 
Percent decreasing to 6 
percent) 

$ 43,862,782 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB. At June 30, 
2019 the Town reported a net OPEB liability of$33,704,558. The total OPEB liability used to calculate the net OPEB 
liability was detennined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017. The total OPEB liability was then rolled forward 
to the measurement date of June 30, 2019 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions. 
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June 30, 20 19 

Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

At June 30, 20 19, the components of the net OPEB liability of the City, measured as of June 30, 2019, were as follows: 

Increase (Decrease) 
TotalOPEB Plan Fiduciary NetOPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 
(a) (b) (a)-(b) 

Balances at June 30, 2018 adjusted for change in 
valuation date $ 28,787,250 $ $ 28,787,250 
Changes for the Year: 

Service cost 1,833,733 1,833,733 
Interest 1,111 ,292 1,111 ,292 
Differences between Expected 

and Actual experience 143,860 143,860 
Changes of assumptions 2,52 1,287 2,52 1,287 
Contributions 692,864 (692,864) 
Benefit Payments (442,864) (442,864) 

Net Changes 5,167,308 250,000 4,917,308 
Balances at June 30, 2019 $ 33,954,558 $ 250,000 $ 33 ,704,558 

12. Changes of Assumptions 
Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.89 percent in 20 18 to 3.50 percent 
in 2019. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Town recognized OPEB expense of$2,879, 154. AtJune 30, 2019, the Town 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan 

investments 

Total 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

204,839 
2,260,284 

3,961 

2,469,084 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

2,325,653 

2,325,653 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 

$ (60,920) 
(60,920) 
(60,920) 
(60,919) 
(61,910) 
449,020 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROUNA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

At June 30, 20 19, the components of the net OPEB liability of the City, measured as of June 30, 2019, were as foll ows: 

Increase (Decrease) 
TotalOPEB Plan Fiduciary NetOPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 
(a) (b) (a)-(b) 

Balances at June 30, 20 18 adjusted for change in 
valuation date $ 28 ,787,250 $ $ 28,787,250 
Changes for the Year: 

Service cost 1,833,733 1,833,733 
Interest 1,111,292 1,111 ,292 
Differences between Expected 

and Actual experience 143,860 143,860 
Changes of assumptions 2,521,287 2,521 ,287 
Contributions 692,864 (692,864) 
Benefit Payments (442,864) (442 ,864) 

Net Changes 5,167,308 250,000 4,917,308 
Balances at June 30, 20 19 $ 33 ,954,558 $ 250,000 $ 33 ,704,558 

12. Changes of Assumptions 
Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.89 percent in 20 18 to 3.50 percent 
in 2019. 

For the year ended June 30, 2019, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $2,879, 154. At June 30, 2019, the Town 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan 

investments 

Total 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

204,839 
2,260,284 

3,961 

2,469,084 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

2,325,653 

2,325,653 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources wi ll be recognized in OPEB 
expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 
Thereafter 

$ (60,920) 
(60,920) 
(60,920) 
(60,919) 
(61 ,910) 
449,020 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

(g) Other Employment Benefits 

The Town has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Deatb Benefit Plan for members of the Local 
Goverrunental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a mUltiple-employer State-administered cost sharing 
plan funded on a one year~term cost basis. Employees who die in active service after one year of contributing 
membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one 
year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum 
death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 higbest months' salary in a row during the 24 
months prior to his/her death, but tbe benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. Because all death benefit 
payments are made from the Deatb Benefi t Plan and not by the Town, the Towp does not determine the number of 
eligible participants. The Town has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the 
Death Trust Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit amount. 
Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates established annually by the State. 
Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. The Town 
considers these contributions to be immaterial. 

Note 7 - DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following: 

LGERS pension 
Contributions to pension plan in the current fiscal year 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions 

LEO pension 
Benefit payments made and administrative expenses 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 

OPEB 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual earrtings 
Changes of assumptions 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following: 

Prepaid taxes (General Fund) 
Taxes receivable (General Fund) 
Greenway credits (Recreation Capital Reserve) 
Differences between expected and actual experiences-LGERS 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions-LGERS 
Changes in assumptions-LEO 
Changes of assumptions-OPEB 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

$ 

$ 

$ 2,136,423 
1,552,262 
2,669,954 
1,38 1,155 

74,425 

73,580 
296,495 
10 1,139 

204,839 
3,96 1 

2,260,284 
$ __ ..;.10"",7;.;;5 .... 4,"'-5 ;.;.17 

Statement of General Fund 
Net Position Balance Sheet 

13,305 $ 13,305 
64,520 

77,665 77,665 
52,086 

77,503 
114,697 

2,325,653 
2,660,909 $ 155,490 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 6 - OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (continued) 

(g) Other Employment Benefits 

The Town has elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit Plan for members ofthe Local 
Govenmlental Employees' Retirement System (Death Benefit Plan), a mUltiple-employer State-administered cost sharing 
plan funded on a one year-term cost basis. Employees who die in active service after one year of contributing 
membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or termination of service and have at least one 
year of contributing membership service in the System at the time of death are eligible for death benefits. Lump sum 
death benefit payments to beneficiaries are equal to the employee's 12 highest months' salary in a row during the 24 
months prior to his/her death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than $25,000. Because all death benefit 
payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan and not by the Town, the Town does not determine the number of 
eligible participants. The Town has no liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions. The contributions to the 
Death Trust Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and tbe other benefit amount. 
Contributions are detemuned as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates establisbed annually by the State. 
Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law enforcement and for law enforcement officers. The Town 
considers these contributions to be immaterial. 

Note 7 - DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows of resources at year-end are comprised of the following: 

LGERS pension 
Contributions to pension plan in the current fiscal year 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Cbanges of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
Changes in proportion and differences between contributions 
and proportionate share of contributions 

LEO pension 
Benefit payments made and administrative expenses 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 

OPEB 
Differences between expected and actual experience 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
Changes of assumptions 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

Deferred inflows of resources at year-end are comprised of tbe following: 

Prepaid taxes (General Fund) 
Taxes receivable (General Fund) 
Greenway credits (Recreation Capital Reserve) 
Differences between expected and actual experiences-LGERS 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate sbare of contributions-LG ERS 
Changes in assumptions-LEO 
Changes of assumptions-OPEB 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

$ 

$ 

$ 2, 136,423 
1,552,262 
2,669,954 
1,38 1, 155 

74,425 

73,580 
296,495 
101,139 

204,839 
3,96 1 

2,260,284 
$--..,;_..:.;10:...,7:.,;;5..:,,4,.::..51:..:.7 

Statement of General Fund 
Net Position Balance Sbeet 

13 ,305 $ 13,305 
64,520 

77,665 77,665 
52,086 

77,503 
114,697 

2,325,653 
2,660,909 $ 155,490 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 8 - RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town does not carry flood insurance 
because flood plain maps show insignificant property values within flood plains. In accordance with G.S. 159-
29, the Town's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the Town's funds are 
performance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Director is individually bonded for 
$100,000. The payroll specialist is bonded for $10,000 and the remaining employees that have access to funds 
are bonded under a blanket bond for $50,000. Other risks are mitigated through various means as detailed 
below. 

Workers' Compensation - The Town is a participant in an insurance pool administered by the North Carolina 
League of Municipalities. This pool is self-sustaining through member premiums and has reinsured through 
commercial companies for claims in excess of the amounts covered through the pool. The Town retains a 
portion of the risk through deductibles up to $25,000. 

Property and general liability - The Town maintains commercial insurance with deductibles up to $25,000. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Health and Dental Claims - The Town self-funds health and dental coverage for all permanent employees. 
Employees can add dependents to this coverage by paying a portion of the premium. All claims are 
administered by a third party, BlueCross and BlueShield of North Carolina. As of June 30, 2019, a reserve of 
$27 1,000 for health and dental was calculated for claims incurred but not reported and items reported but not 
paid. This total liability is expected to be paid within the next fiscal year. Settlements have not exceeded 
coverages for the past three fiscal years. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past three 
years are as: 

Balance-June 3D, 2016 
Claims reported and changes in estitmtes for FY2017 
Claims paid in FY2017 

Balance-June 30, 20 17 
Claims reported and changes in estimates for FY2018 
Claims paid in FY2018 

Balance-June 30, 2018 
Claitns reported and changes in estimates for FY 20 19 
Claims paid in FY 2019 

Balance-June 30, 2019 $ 

Health 
Claitns 

$ 287,168 
3,563, 145 

(3,482,805) 
367,508 

4,673,079 
(4,479,74 1) 

560,846 
3,018,25 1 

(3,308,097) 
271,000 $ 

Note 9 - CLAIMS, JUDGEMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Dental 
Clairns Total 

$ 28,5 11 $ 315,679 
359,970 3,923,115 

(351,456) (3,834,261) 
37,025 404,533 

383,155 5,056,234 
(376,974) (4,856,715) 

43,206 604,052 
274,868 3,293,1 19 

(318,074) (3,626,17 1) 
- $ ==,,;2;,;7 .. 1 ,:;;,00;;,;0;., 

At June 30, 2019, the To\tVIl was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the Town's management and 
the To\tVIl's attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the 
To\tVIl'S financial position. 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Ca) General Obligation Bonds 

The To\V11's general obligation bonds serviced by the governmental funds were issued for the acquisition of 
parks and recreation facilities and construction of streets and sidewalks. Those general obligation bonds issued 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 8 - RJSK MANAGEMENT 

The Town is exposed to various risks ofloss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town does not carry flood insurance 
because flood plain maps show insignificant property values within flood plains. In accordance with G.S. 159-
29, the Town's employees that have access to $100 or more at any given time of the Town's funds are 
perfomlance bonded through a commercial surety bond. The Finance Director is individually bonded for 
$ 100,000. The payroll specialist is bonded for $10,000 and tile remaining employees that have access to funds 
are bonded under a blanket bond for $50,000. Other risks are mitigated through various means as detailed 
below. 

Workers' Compensation - The Town is a participant in an insurance pool administered by the North Carolina 
League of Municipalities. This pool is self-sustaining through member premiums and has reinsured through 
corrunercial companies for claims in excess of the amounts covered through the pool. The Town retains a 
portion of the risk through deductibles up to $25,000. 

Property and general liability - The Town maintains commercial insurance Witil deductibles up to $25,000. 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage in the prior year, and settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Health and Dental Claims - The Town self-funds health and dental coverage for all permanent employees. 
Employees can add dependents to this coverage by paying a portion of the premium. All claims are 
administered by a third party, B1ueCross and BlueShield of North Carolina. As of June 30, 2019, a reserve of 
$27 1,000 for health and dental was calculated for claims incurred but not reported and items reported but not 
paid. This total liability is expected to be paid within the next fiscal year. Settlements have not exceeded 
coverages for the past three fiscal years. Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past three 
years are as: 

Balance-June 3D, 2016 
Claim; reported and changes in estimates for FY2017 
Claims paid in FY2017 

Balance-Jun e 30, 20 17 
Claims reported and changes in estimates for FY2018 
Claims paid in FY2018 

Balance-June 30, 20 18 
Claims reported and changes in estimates for FY 20 19 
Claims pa id in FY 20 19 

Balance-June 30, 20 19 $ 

Hea lth 
ClauTlS 

$ 287, 168 
3,563, 145 

(3,482,805) 
367,508 

4,673,079 
(4,479,74 1) 

560,846 
3,018,25 1 

(3,308,097) 
27 1,000 $ 

Note 9 - CLNMS, JUDGEMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

Dental 
ClailTlS Tota l 

$ 28,5 11 $ 315,679 
359,970 3,923, 11 5 

(35 1,456) (3,834,261) 
37,025 404,533 

383, 155 5,056,234 
(376,974) (4,856,715) 

43,206 604,052 
274,868 3,293,1 19 

(318,074) (3,626,17 1) 
- $ ==,,;2;,;7 .. 1 ,~OO;;;O;., 

At June 30, 20 19, the Tovvn was a defendant to various lawsuits. In the opinion of the Town's management and 
the Tovvn's attorney, the ul timate effect of these legal matters will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Town's financial position. 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT 

Cal General Obligation Bonds 

The Town's general obligation bonds serviced by the governmental funds were issued for the acquisition of 
parks and recreation facilities and construction of streets and sidewalks. Those general obligation bonds issued 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

to fmance the construction of facilities utilized in the operations of the water and sewer systems and which are 
being retired by its resources are reported as long-tenn debt in the Water and Sewer Fund. All general 
obligation bonds are collateralized by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the Town. Principal and interest 
requirements are appropriated when due. 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2019 are comprised of the following individual issues: 

Serviced by the General Fund: 

$ 1, 105,000 April 17,2018 Parks and Recreational Facility refunding bonds 

due in annual in stallments of varying from $100,000 to $ 11 5,000 through 

June 1, 2028 plus interest at 5.0%. 

$23,000,000 Apri l 27, 2018 Public Improvement seria l bonds, due in annual 

installments of varying amounts from $540,000 to $1 ,905,000 through June 1, 

2038 interest at varying rates from 3.0-5.0%. 

$6,500,000 June 25, 2009 Street a nd Sidewalk Improvements seria l bonds, due 

in annual installments of varying amounts from $305,000 to $330,000 

through June 1,2029, interest at varying rates from 3.0-4.125%. 

$4,670,000 March 26, 2013 Parks and Recreation refunding bonds , due in 
annual installments of varying amounts from $15,000 to $5 15,000 through 

February 1, 2025, interest at varying rates from 2.0-3.0%. 

$6,000,000 March 26, 2013 Parks and Recreational serial bonds, due in annual 

i:nstaUments 0[$300,000 through February 1, 2033, interest at varying rates 

from 2.0-5.0%. 

Serviced by the JVater and Sewer Flint!: 

$35,000,000 June 19,2012 Wastewater System, Series 2012 due in 

annual installments of varying amounts from $685,000-$2,740,000 

through June 1,2037, interest at varying rates from 2.0-5.0%. 

At June 30, 20 19 the Town of Apex had a legal debt margin of$5 18,050,618. 

$ 1,005,000 

22,380,000 

3,250,000 

2,980,000 

4,200,000 

30,555,000 

$ 64,370,000 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

to fmance the construction of facilities utilized in the operations of the water and sewer systems and which are 
being retired by its resources are reported as long-term debt in the Water and Sewer Fund. All general 
obligation bonds are collateralized by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the Town. Principal and interest 
requirements are appropriated when due. 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2019 are comprised of the following individual issues: 

Serviced by the General Fund: 

$ 1, 105,000 April ! 7, 2018 Parks and Recreational Facility refunding bonds 

due in annual in sta llments of varying from $100,000 to $ 11 5,000 through 

June 1, 2028 plus in terest at 5.0%. 

$23,000,000 Apri l 27, 2018 Public Improvement serial bonds, due in annual 

installments of varyin g amoun ts from $540,000 to $1,905,000 through June 1, 

2038 inte rest at valying rates from 3.0-5.0%. 

$6,500,000 June 25, 2009 Street a nd Sidewalk Improvements seria l bonds , due 

in annual installme nts of varying amounts from $305,000 to $330,000 

through June 1,2029, interest at varying rates from 3.0-4.1 25%. 

$4,670,000 March 26,2013 Parks and Recreat ion refunding bonds , due in 
annual installments of varying amounts fro m $ \ 5,000 to $515,000 through 

February 1,2025, interest at vary in g rates from 2.0-3.0%. 

$6,000,000 March 26,2013 Parks and Recreational serial bonds, due in an nua l 

insta llments of $300,000 through February 1,2033, interest at varying rates 

from 2.0-5.0%. 

Serviced by the JVater and Sewer Flint!: 

$35,000,000 June 19,2012 Wastewater System, Series 20 12 due in 

annual installments of varying amo unts from $685,000-$2,740,000 

through June 1,2037, interes t at varying rates from 2.0-5.0%. 

At June 30, 20 19 the Town of Apex had a legal debt margin of$5 18,050,618. 

$ 1,005,000 

22,380,000 

3,250,000 

2,980,000 

4,200,000 

30,555,000 

$ 64,370,000 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obl igation bonds at June 30, 20 19 are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Bus iness-Type Act ivities 
Year End ing June 30: PrinciEai Interest Princieal Interes t 

2020 $ 1,775,000 $ 1,162,013 $ 915,000 $ 1,106,875 
2021 1,780,000 1,095,150 980,000 1,061,125 
2022 1,780,000 1,027,532 1,045,000 1,04 1,525 
2023 1,780,000 959,000 1,115,000 1,020,625 
2024 1,790,000 897,913 1,1 85,000 976,025 

2025-2029 8,305,000 3,517,525 7,260,000 4,078,825 
2030-2034 8,985,000 2,064,545 9,835,000 2,695,475 
2035-2038 7,620,000 61 1,982 8,220,000 582,250 

Total $ 33,815,000 $ 11 ,335,660 $ 30,555,000 $ 12,562,725 

(b) Installment Notes 

The Town's installment notes outstanding at June 30, 20 19 are as follows: 

Serviced by the Gelleral FUlld: 
$6,000,000 instalhnent obligation with BB&T due in semi-annual installments of $209,897 

principal plus interest at 2.51% through 2032 secured by land. $ 5,379,310 

$6,424,000 instalhnent obligation to the Bank of North Carolina due in annual installments 

of varying amounts from $410,800 to $661,219 through 2028 plus interest of2.7% secured 

by land and buildulgs. 

$4,500,000 installment obligation to the Bank of North Carolina due in annual installments 

of varying amounts from $125,000 to $340,000 through 2031 secured by land and buildings. 

Sen,iced by the Water alld Sewer FUlld: 

$1,159,825 instalhnent obligation to the Town of Cary for the Regional Wastewater 

Treatment Plant due in annual instalhnents of$57,991 through 2027 plus interest of 

2.205%, secured by land. 

$8,045,000 instalhnent obligation to the Bank of America for Water and Sewer Improvements 

due in annual installments of varying amounts from $410,800 to $661,219 through 2028 

plus ulterest of2.7%, secured by water nnprovements. 

$355,059 instalhnent obligation to the Town of Cary for the Regional 

Wastewater Treatment Plant due in annual installments of $17,753 through 2031. 

plus interest of 2.205%, secured by land. 

3,934,000 

4,080,000 

461,658 

5,506,000 

213,036 

$ 19,574,004 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds at June 30, 20 19 are as follows: 

Governmental Activities Bus iness-TYE,e Act ivities 
Year End ing June 30: Principal Interest Princ ieal Interes t 

2020 $ 1,775,000 $ 1,162,013 $ 915,000 $ 1,106,875 
2021 1,780,000 1,095,150 980,000 1,061,125 
2022 1,780,000 1,027,532 1,045,000 1,04 1,525 
2023 1,780,000 959,000 1,115,000 1,020,625 
2024 1,790,000 897,913 1,1 85,000 976,025 

2025-2029 8,305,000 3,517,525 7,260,000 4,078,825 
2030-2034 8,985,000 2,064,545 9,835,000 2,695,475 
2035-2038 7,620,000 611,982 8,220,000 582,250 

Total $ 33,815,000 $ 11,335,660 $ 30,555,000 $ 12,562,725 

(b) Installment Notes 

The Town's installment notes outstanding at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Serviced by the Gelleral Flilld: 

$6,000,000 instalhnent obligation with BB&T due in semi-annual instalhnents of $209,897 

principal plus interest at 2.51% through 2032 secured by land. $ 5,379,310 

$6,424,000 instalhnent obligation to the Baole of North Carolina due in annual installments 

of varying amounts from $410,800 to $661,219 through 2028 plus interest of2.7% secured 

by land and building;. 

$4,500,000 instalhnent obligation to the Baole of North Carolina due in annual installments 

of varying amounts from $125,000 to $340,000 through 2031 secured by land and building;. 

Sen1iced by the Water alJd Sewer Fund: 
$1,159,825 instalhnent obligation to the Town of Cary for the Regional Wastewater 

Treatment Plant due in annual instalhnents of$57,991 through 2027 plus interest of 

2.205%, secured by land. 

$8,045,000 installment obligation to the Baole of America for Water and Sewer Improvements 

due in annual instalhnents of varying amounts from $410,800 to $661,219 through 2028 

plus interest of2.7%, secured by water improvements. 

$355,059 instalhnent obligation to the Town of Cary for the Regional 

Wastewater Treatment Plant due in armual installments of$17,753 through 2031. 

plus interest of 2.205%, secured by land. 

3,934,000 

4,080,000 

461,658 

5,506,000 

213,036 

$ 19,574,004 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Armual debt service requirements to maturity for installment notes at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Governmental Activ ities Business-T~Ee Activ ities 
Year End ing June 30: PrinciEai Interest Principal Interest 

2020 $ 1,225,793 $ 349,618 $ 624,459 $ 163,538 
202 1 1,217,793 317,240 638,459 147,05 1 
2022 1,208,793 285,078 654,459 130,187 
2023 1,200,793 253,158 669,458 112,890 
2024 1,190,793 22 1,455 685,458 95,188 

2025-2029 5,427,965 640,477 2,872,880 195,998 
2030-2032 1,921,380 82,272 35,521 1,173 

Total $ 13,393,310 $ 2,149,298 $ 6,180,694 $ 846,025 

(c) Revolving Fund Loans 

The Town has a-promissory notes issued by the North Carolina Department of Environment, Health, and 
Natural Resources for the construction of a regional wastewater treatment plant and for water system 
improvements. Future revenues of the sanitary sewer system and the water system collateralize the notes. 
These debts are recorded as long-term debt in the water and sewer fund with principal and interest requirements 
appropriated when due. 

The Town's promissory notes outstanding at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Serviced by the Water and Sewer Fund: 
$17,500,000 promissory note issued for the construction of a regional 
wastewater treatment plant. Future revenues of the sanitary sewer system 
collateralize the note due in annual installments of$875,000 beginning May I , 
20 15 through May 1, 2034 plus interest at 2.22% $ 13,125,000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for promissory notes at June 30, 20 19 are as fo llow: 

Year Ending June 30: Principal Interest 

2020 $ 875,000 $ 291,375 
2021 875,000 271,950 
2022 875,000 252,525 
2023 875,000 233, I 00 
2024 875,000 213,675 

2025-2029 4,375,000 777,000 
2030-2034 4,375,000 291,375 

Total $ 13,125,000 $ 2,331,000 

(d) Revenue Bond 

$7,300,000 Electric Revenue Bond, Series 2009, issued for electrical system 
improvements, due in annual installments of varying amounts from $375,000 to 
$6 17,000 through 2024, interest at 3.62%. $ 2,877,000 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for installment notes at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Govemmental Activ ities Business-Ty~e Activit ies 
Year Ending June 30: PrinciEai Interest Principal Interest 

2020 $ 1,225,793 $ 349,618 $ 624,459 $ 163,538 
2021 1,217,793 317,240 638,459 147,05 1 
2022 1,208,793 285,078 654,459 130,187 
2023 1,200,793 253,158 669,458 112,890 
2024 1,190,793 22 1,455 685,458 95,188 

2025-2029 5,427,965 640,477 2,872,880 195,998 
2030-2032 1,921,380 82,272 35,521 1,173 

Total $ 13,393,310 $ 2,149,298 $ 6,180,694 $ 846,025 

(c) Revolving Fund Loans 

The Town has a-promissory notes issued by the North Carolina Department of Environment, Health, and 
Natural Resources for the construction of a regional wastewater treatment plant and for water system 
improvements. Future revenues of the sanitary sewer system and the water system collateralize the notes. 
These debts are recorded as long-tenn debt in the water and sewer fund with principal and interest requirements 
appropriated when due. 

The Town' s promissory notes outstanding at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Serviced by the Water and Sewer Fund: 
$17,500,000 promissory note issued for the construction of a regional 
wastewater treatment plant. Future revenues of the sanitary sewer system 
collateralize the note due in annual installments 0[$875,000 beginning May I, 
2015 through May 1,2034 plus interest at 2.22% $ 13,125,000 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for promissory notes at June 30, 2019 are as follow: 

Year Ending June 30: Principal Interest 

2020 $ 875,000 $ 291,375 

2021 875,000 271,950 

2022 875,000 252,525 

2023 875 ,000 233,100 
2024 875,000 213,675 

2025-2029 4,375 ,000 777,000 
2030-2034 4,375 ,000 291 ,375 

Total $ 13, 125 ,000 $ 2,331,000 

(d) Revenue Bond 

$7,300,000 Electric Revenue Bond, Series 2009, issued for electrical system 
improvements, due in annual installments of varying amounts from $375,000 to 
$6 17,000 through 2024, interest at 3.62%. $ 2,877,000 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

The Town has been in compliance with the covenants as to rates , fees, rentals and charges in Section 704 of the 
Bond Order, authorizing the issuance ofthe Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, since its adoption in 2009. 
Section 704(a) of the Bond Order requires that income available for debt service plus 15% of Electric Fund 
Unrestricted Net position as of the last day of the prior fiscal year will not be less than 120% of the long tenm 
debt service requirement for the current fiscal year. 

The debt service requirement coverage ratio calculation for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Current revenues $ 40,997,235 
Current expenses 34,094,385 

Subtotal 6,902,850 
15% of Unrestricted Net Position, 6-30-18 1,475,188 
Income available for debt service $ 8,378,038 
Debt service, principal and interest 

Paid (Revenue Bond only) $ 638,80 I 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1,312% 

Per rate covenants, current expenses do not include depreciation expense of $2,608,624, debt service interest of 
$ 120,453 and the increase in other post-employment benefits of$193 ,88 5. 

The Town has pledged future e lectric customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses , to repay 
$7,300,000 in electric system revenue bonds issued in May 2009. Proceeds from the bonds provided fmancing 
for electrical system improvements~ The bonds are payable solely from electric customer net revenues and are 
payable through 2024. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $3,196,825. 
Principal and interest paid for the current year and the income available for debt service was $638,801 and 
$8,322,435 respectively. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bond at June 30, 2019 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30: PrinciEal Interest 
2020 $ 535,000 $ 104,147 
202 1 555,000 84,780 
2022 575,000 64,689 
2023 595,000 43,874 
2024 617,000 22,335 
Total $ 2,877,000 $ 319,825 
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Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

The Town has been in compliance with the covenants as to rates , fees, rentals and charges in Section 704 of the 
Bond Order, authorizing the issuance of the Electric Revenue Bonds, Series 2009, since its adoption in 2009. 
Section 704(a) of the Bond Order requires that income available for debt service plus 15% of Electric Fund 
Unrestricted Net position as of the last day of the prior fiscal year will not be less than 120% of the long term 
debt service requirement for the current fiscal year. 

The debt service requirement coverage ratio calculation for the year ended June 30, 2019 is as follows: 

Current revenues 
Current expenses 

Subtotal 
15% of Unrestricted Net Position, 6-30-18 
Income available for debt service 
Debt service, principal and interest 

Paid (Revenue Bond only) 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio 

$ 40,997,235 
34,094,385 

6,902,850 
1,475,188 

$ 8,378,038 

$ 638,80 I 
1,312% 

Per rate covenants, current expenses do not include depreciation expense of $2,608,624, debt service interest of 
$120,453 and the increase in other post-employment benefits of$193 ,885. 

The Town has pledged future electric customer revenues, net of specified operating expenses , to repay 
$7,300,000 in electric system revenue bonds issued in May 2009. Proceeds from the bonds provided fmancing 
for electrical system improvements. The bonds are payable solely from electric customer net revenues and are 
payable through 2024. The total principal and interest remaining to be paid on the bonds is $3,196,825. 
Principal and interest paid for the current year and the income available for debt service was $638 ,801 and 
$8,322,435 respectively. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bond at June 30, 20 19 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30: PrinciEal Interest 
2020 $ 535,000 $ 104,147 
202 1 555,000 84,780 
2022 575,000 64,689 
2023 595,000 43,874 
2024 617,000 22,335 
Total $ 2,877,000 $ 319,825 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 20 19 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

(I) Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-tenn liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Beginn ing Ending Amounts Due 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance Within One Year 
GJvemmentai activities: 

General obligation bonds $ 35,675,000 $ $ 1,860,000 $ 33,815,000 $ 1,775,000 

Plus deferred premium 1,427,347 102,468 1,324,879 102,468 

Total bonds payable 37,102,347 1,962,468 35,139,879 1,877,468 

Installment notes 14,437,103 1,043,793 13,393,310 1,225,793 
Compensated absences 1,448,115 1,143,524 1,026,548 1,565,09 1 1,109,471 
Net pens ion liability (LGERS) 4,676,947 4,659,855 1,637,087 7,699,715 

Net pens ion liability (LEO) 2,248,394 424,545 11 2,197 2,560,742 

Net OPEB liability 24,224,759 4,688,286 561,090 28,351,955 

Governmental activity 
long-tenn liabilities '$ 84,137,665 $ 10,916,210 $ 6,343,183 $ 88,710,692 $ 4,212,732 

Business -type activ ities: 
General obligation bonds $ 31,410,000 $ $ 855,000 $ 30,555,000 $ 915,000 
Plus deferred premium 1,407,396 74,236 1,333,160 74,236 

Total bonds payable 32,817,396 929,236 31,888,160 989,236 

Installment notes 20,790,138 1,484,444 19,305,694 1,499,459 
Reven ue bond 3,393,000 516,000 2,877,000 535,000 

Compensated absences 387,062 276,474 239,734 423,802 262,813 

Net pension liability (LGERS) 1,454,875 1,406,324 499,338 2,361,861 

Net OPEB liability 4,562,491 921,886 131,774 5,352,603 
Business-type activ ity 

iong-telm liabilities '$ 63,404,962 $ 2,604,684 $ 3,800,526 $ 62,209,120 $ 3,286,508 

Compensated absences, other post-employment benefits and net pension obligation for governmental activities 
typically have been liquidated in the General Fund. 

Note 11 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental Bus ines s-type 

Capital assets $ 476,799,733 $ 277,973,964 

Les s : Long-tenn debt (30,296,036) (54,070,854) 

Net investment in capital assets $ 446,503,697 $ 223,903,110 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

June 30, 2019 

Note 10 - LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

(I) Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-tenn liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019, was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Amounts Due 

Balance Increases Decreases Balance Within One Year 
GJvemmentai activities: 

General obligation bonds $ 35,675,000 $ $ 1,860,000 $ 33,815,000 $ 1,775,000 
Plus deferred premium 1,427,347 102,468 1,324,879 102,468 

Total bonds payab le 37,102,347 1,962,468 35,139,879 1,877,468 

Installment notes 14,437,103 1,043,793 13,393,310 1,225,793 
Compensated absences 1,448,115 1,143,524 1,026,548 1,565,09 1 1,109,471 
Net pens ion liability (LGERS) 4,676,947 4,659,855 1,637,087 7,699,715 

Net pens ion liability (LEO) 2,248,394 424,545 11 2,197 2,560,742 

Net OPEB liability 24,224,759 4,688,286 561,090 28,351 ,955 

Governmental activ ity 
long-tenn liabilities '$ 84,137,665 $ 10,916,210 $ 6,343,183 $ 88,710,692 $ 4,212,732 

Business -type activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 31,410,000 $ $ 855,000 $ 30,555,000 $ 915,000 
Plus deferred premium 1,407,396 74,236 1,333,160 74,236 

Total bonds payable 32,817,396 929,236 31,888,160 989,236 

Installment notes 20,790,138 1,484,444 19,305,694 1,499,459 
Revenue bond 3,393,000 516,000 2,877,000 535,000 

Compensated absences 387,062 276,474 239,734 423,802 262,813 

Net pens ion liability (LGERS) 1,454,875 1,406,324 499,338 2,361,861 

Net OPEB liability 4,562,491 921,886 131,774 5,352,603 
Business-type activity 

long-telm liabilities '$ 63,404,962 $ 2,604,684 $ 3,800,526 $ 62,209,120 $ 3,286,508 

Compensated absences, other post-employment benefits and net pension obligation for governmental activities 
typically have been liquidated in the General Fund. 

Note 11 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental Business-type 

Capital assets $ 476,799,733 $ 277,973,964 

Less: Long-tenn debt (30,296,036) (54,070,854) 

Net investment in capital assets $ 446,503,697 $ 223,903,110 
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June 30, 2019 

Note 12 - FUND BALANCE 

The feHawing schedule provides management and citizens with infoffilation on the portion of General Fund 
balance that is available for appropriation: 

Total fund balance-General Fund 
Less: 

Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Restricted for Public Safety 
Restricted for Construction Management Inspections 
Committed for LEO pension obligation 
Assigned for subsequent year's expenditures 

Remaining fund balance 

$ 

$ 

39,833, 152 

(21 ,339) 
(141,576) 

(8,926,329) 
(294,254) 

(l ,209 ,881) 
(850,255) 

(2,327,200) 
26,062,3 18 

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and 
contracts that remain unperformed at year-end. 

Encumbrances - General Fund 
Encumbrances - Electric Fund 
Encumbrances - Water and Sewer Fund 

Note 13 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 

$ 3,608,386 
32 1,994 
359,146 

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2019, consist of the following: 

Due to General Fund by the Internal Service Fund $ 
Due to Electric Fund by the Internal Service Fund 
Due to Water and Sewer Fund by the Internal Service Fund 

66,792 
9,696 

16,576 

The Internal Service Fund balances are the result of health claims and administrative costs exceeding transfers 
into the Fund. 
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Note 12 - FUND BALANCE 

The feHawing schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of General Fund 
balance that is available for appropriation: 

Total fund balance-General Fund 
Less: 

Inventories 
Prepaid items 
Stabilization by State Statute 
Restricted for Public Safety 
Restricted for Construction Management Inspections 
Conunitted for LEO pension obligation 
Assigned for subsequent year's expenditures 

Remaining fund balance 

$ 

$ 

39,833 ,152 

(21 ,339) 
(141,576) 

(8,926,329) 
(294,254) 

(l ,209 ,881) 
(850,255) 

(2,327,200) 
26,062,318 

The outstanding encumbrances are amounts needed to pay any commitments related to purchase orders and 
contracts that remain unperformed at year-end. 

Encumbrances - General Fund 
Encumbrances ~ Electric Fund 
Encumbrances - Water and Sewer Fund 

Note 13 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY 

$ 3,608,386 
321,994 
359,146 

Balances due to/from other funds at June 30, 2019, consist of the following: 

Due to General Fund by the Internal Service Fund $ 
Due to Electtic Fund by the Internal Service Fund 
Due to Water and Sewer Fund by the Internal Service Fund 

66,792 
9,696 

16,576 

The Internal Service Fund balances are the result of health claims and administrative costs exceeding transfers 
into the Fund. 
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Note 13 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY (continued) 

General Fund 
General Fund 

A summary of interfund transfers follows: 

From Fund To Fund 
$ 

Amount Purpose 
174,400 Fund improvements 

1,969,500 Fund improvements 
Recreation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Recreation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Transportation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Transportation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Water/Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 

Street Improvements Project Fund 
General Capital Projects Fund 
General Fund 
Recreation Capital Projects Fund 
General Fund 
Street Improvements Project Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

1,872,408 Fund improvements 
3,251 ,000 Fund improvements 

293 ,574 Fund improvements 
555,522 Fund improvements 

15,597,073 Fund legal 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 
Water/Sewer HB463 Capital Reserve Fund 

Street Improvement Project Fund 
Recreation Capital Project Fund 
Electric Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

Water/Sewer Project Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 
Transportation Capital Project Fund­
Capital Reserve 
General Fund 
Electric Substation Capital Project 
Water/Sewer Project Fund 

Note 14 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION 

settlement 
1,3 14,750 Fund improvements 
4,197,850 Fund improvements 

2,150,191 Close capital project 
300,000 Close capital project 

1,200,000 Fund improvements 
2,315,225 Fund improvements 

The Town is a member of the North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency (the "Agency"). The Agency 
was fanned to enable municipalities that own electric distribution systems to finance, construct, own, operate, 
and maintain generation and transmission facilities through the Agency. The Town receives power from the 
Agency and is contractually allocated a .7056% interest in the Agency, with the balance being shared by the 
thirty-two (32) other local governments. Each participating government appoints one commissioner to the 
Agency's governing board. The Town is obligated to purchase all of its power supply requirements from the 
Agency. Except for the power sales purchase requirements, no local government participant has any obligation, 
entitlement, or residual interest. The Town's gross purchases of power for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 
were $25,984,245. 

On July 31,2015, the Agency completed the sale of most of its electricity generating assets to Duke Energy. 
These proceeds were used to defease the Agency's outstanding revenue bonds. The Agency entered into 
contractual arrangements with its member cities and Duke Energy. Under these arrangements, the Agency will 
supply wholesale power to its members and will purchase this power from Duke Energy. In addition to 
payments made for electric power, Agency members will make payments for their share of the debt service on 
the Agency's new revenue bonds. 

Note 15 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic audits of these grants are 
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures of grant monies by the 
grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys. 
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Note 13 - INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITY (continued) 

General Fund 
General Fund 

A summary of interfund transfers follows: 

From Fund To Fund 
$ 

Amount Purpose 
174,400 Fund improvements 

1,969,500 Fund improvements 
Recreation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Recreation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Transportation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Transportation Capital Project Fund-Capital Reserve 
Water/Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 

Street Improvements Project Fund 
General Capital Projects Fund 
General Fund 
Recreation Capital Projects Fund 
General Fund 
Street Improvements Project Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

1,872,408 Fund improvements 
3,251,000 Fund improvements 

293,574 Fund improvements 
555,522 Fund improvements 

15,597,073 Fund legal 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve Fund 
Water/Sewer HB463 Capital Reserve Fund 

Street Improvement Project Fund 
Recreation Capital Project Fund 
Electric Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

Water/Sewer Project Fund 
Wa ter/Sewer Fund 
Transportation Capital Project Fund­
Capital Reserve 
General Fund 
Electric Substation Capital Project 
Water/Sewer Project Fund 

Note 14 - JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION 

settlement 
1,3 14,750 Fund improvements 
4,197,850 Fund improvements 

2,150,191 Close capital project 
300,000 Close capital project 

1,200,000 Fund improvements 
2,315,225 Fund improvements 

The Town is a member of the North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency (the "Agency"). The Agency 
was formed to enable municipalities that own electric distribution systems to finance, construct, own, operate, 
and maintain generation and transmission facilities through the Agency. The Town receives power from the 
Agency and is contractually allocated a .7056% interest in the Agency, with the balance being shared by the 
thirty-two (32) other local governments. Each participating government appoints one commissioner to the 
Agency's governing board. The Town is obligated to purchase all of its power supply requirements from the 
Agency. Except for the power sales purchase requirements, no local government participant has any obligation, 
entitlement, or res idual interest. The Town's gross purchases of power for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 
were $25,984,245. 

On July 31, 20 I 5, the Agency completed the sale of most of its electricity generating assets to Duke Energy. 
These proceeds were used to defease the Agency's outstanding revenue bonds. The Agency entered into 
contractual arrangements with its member cities and Duke Energy. Under these arrangements, the Agency will 
supply wholesale power to its members and will purchase this power from Duke Energy. In addition to 
payments made for electric power, Agency members will make payments for their share of the debt service on 
the Agency's new revenue bonds. 

Note 15 - SUMMARY DISCLOSURE OF SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENCIES 

Federal and State Assisted Programs 

The Town has received proceeds from several federal and state grants. Periodic audits of these grants are 
required and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures of grant monies by the 
grantor agencies. Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial. No provision has been 
made in the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant moneys. 
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June 30, 2019 

Note 16 - JOINTLY OWNED FACILITIES 

The Towns of Apex and Cary jointly own and operate a water treatment plant. An advisory committee, 
consisting of the Mayors of Apex and Cary and the Town Managers of Apex and Cary, advise the Operating 
Agency on all policy matters and select the independent consultants for the project. The Town of Cary is the 
Operating Agency and operates the plant, hires employees, accounts for revenues and expenditures, and 
provides all administrative and executive management of the plant. The water treatment plant is not a separate 
legal entity and does not prepare separate financial statements. The Town's share of capital costs of the plant 
and its operating expenses are included in the Town of Apex's reporting entity. 

All costs associated with the construction and improvements to the plant are allocated to each party based on its 
share of the water treatment capacity of the plant. The Towns of Apex and Cary have a 23% and 77% share of 
the facility's capacity, respectively. Both parties make payments sufficient to amortize their share of the capital 
costs regardless of the amount of water actually used. Both parties meet their share of all other costs in 
proportion to their actual use of water from the facility. 

The Towns of Apex and Cary are jointly own and operate a wastewater treatment plant. The Town of Apex 
owns approximately from 29-31 % considering the enlire plant including outfall facilities. The plant has a total 
budgeted cost of $300,000,000 and the Town of Apex's portion of this is $83,369,781. Through June 30, 2019, 
the Town has capitalized the wastewater treatment plant and related land at a total cost of$82,264,122 and has 
construction in progress on outfall facilities of$154,591. At June 30, 2019, the Town has remaining 
construction commitments of $951 ,068 related to this project. 

Note 17 - SPECIAL ITEM 

The North Carolina Supreme Court issued a ruling in December 2016 holding that certain fees assessed on 
new development for prospective services are not authorized under N.C.G.S. § 160A-314. In June 2017 the NC 
General Assembly passed House Bill (HB) 436 which took effect on October 1, 2017. That law gives local 
governments clear authority to charge system development fees for prospective water and sewer services. The 
law also establishes procedures for the calculation of these fees and requires local government to adopt a fee 
calculated in accordance with these standards by July 1, 2018. HB 436 clarifies the statute of limitations for 
any claim for refunds of fees paid prior to the effective date of the law is three years. 

The Town has entered into a legal settlement for claims related to a class action lawsuit for refunds of certain 
development fees paid to the Town. This item is reflected on the government-wide statements as a special 
item because it is unusual in nature but under the control of management. The Town has recognized a liability 
for this class action settlement at June 30, 2019 of$698,574 in the General Fund and $14,588,099 in the Water 
and Sewer Fund. 
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Note 16 - JOINTLY OWNED FACILITIES 

The Towns of Apex and Cary jointly own and operate a water treatment plant. An advisory committee, 
consisting of the Mayors of Apex and Cary and the Town Managers of Apex and Cary, advise the Operating 
Agency on all policy matters and select the independent consultants for the project. The Town of Cary is the 
Operating Agency and operates the plant, hires employees , accounts for revenues and expenditures, and 
provides all administrative and executive management of the plant. The water treatment plant is not a separate 
legal entity and does not prepare separate financial statements. The Town's share of capital costs of the plant 
and its operating expenses are included in the Town of Apex's reporting entity. 

All costs associated with the construction and improvements to the plant are allocated to each party based on its 
share of the water treatment capacity of the plant. The Towns of Apex and Cary have a 23% and 77% share of 
the facility's capacity, respectively. Both parties make payments sufficient to amortize their share of the capital 
costs regardless of the amount of water actually used. Both parties meet their share of all other costs in 
proportion to their actual use of water from the facility. 

The Towns of Apex and Cary are jointly own and operate a wastewater treatment plant. The Town of Apex 
owns approximately from 29-31 % considering the entire plant including outfall facilities. The plant has a total 
budgeted cost of $300,000,000 and the Town of Apex's portion of this is $83,369 ,781. Through June 30, 2019, 
the Town has capitalized the wastewater treatment plant and related land at a total cost of $82,264, 122 and has 
construction in progress on outfall facilities 0[$154,591. At June 30, 2019, the Town has remaining 
construction commitments of $951 ,068 related to this project. 

Note 17 - SPECIAL ITEM 

The North Carolina Supreme Court issued a ruling in December 2016 holding that certain fees assessed on 
new development for prospective services are not authorized under N.C.G.S. § 160A-314. In June 2017 the NC 
General Assembly passed House Bill (HB) 436 which took effect on October I, 2017. That law gives local 
governments clear authority to charge system development fees for prospective water and sewer services. The 
law also establishes procedures for the calculation of these fees and requires local government to adopt a fee 
calculated in accordance with these standards by July 1,2018. HB 436 clarifies the statute of limitations for 
any claim for refunds of fees paid prior to the effective date of the law is three years. 

The Town has entered into a legal settlement for claims related to a class action lawsuit for refunds of certain 
development fees paid to the Town. This item is reflected on the government-wide statements as a special 
item because it is unusual in nature but under the control of management. The Town has recognized a liability 
for this class action settlement at June 30, 2019 of$698 ,574 in the General Fund and $14,588,099 in the Water 
and Sewer Fund. 
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Note 18 – CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE 
 

On May 21, 2019, the Council approved establishing a trust fund for the other post employment benefits 
(OPEB) liability.  Due to the creation of the Trust, the accounting principle of GASB 75 has changed.  In 
accordance with GASB 75 requirements, the Town changed the plan measurement date to align with the 
reporting date such that there is no lag between the measurement date and the reporting date.  As a result of 
this change in accounting principle, a prior period adjustment has been made to increase the OPEB liability 
and decrease the net position of the following activities and funds: 

   

Governmental Activities 624,411$               

Electric Fund 58,901                  
Water and Sewer Fund 63,881

Business Type Activities 122,782                  

Total 747,193$                

 
Note 19 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 

On September 17, 2019 the Town issued Combined Enterprise System Revenue Bonds, Series 2019 in the 
amount of $10 million for the construction of an electric operations center and warehouse.  The Bond, which 
was privately placed with Pinnacle Bank, matures 2039 and bears an annual interest rate of 2.00%.  Debt 
service payments will be approximately $610,000 annually.  Security for the bond is a pledge of the net 
receipts of the Electric Fund. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
For the year ended June 30, 2019* 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 2019 2018 

Service cost $ 1,833,733 $ 2,225,212 
Interest 1,111,292 854,654 
Differences between expected and actual experience 143,860 110,047 
Changes of assumptions 2,521,287 (3,373,245) 
Benefit payments (442,864) (338,332) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 5,167,308 (521,664) 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 28,787,250 28,561,721 

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 33,954,558 $ 28,040,057 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

Contributions - employer $ 692,864 $ 
Benefit payments (442,864) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 250,000 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 

Plan fiduciary net positi9ll - ending $ 250,000 $ 

Town's Net OPEB liability - ending $ 33,704,558 $ 28,040,057 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total OPEB liability 0 .74% 0.00% 

Notes to Schedule 

*The difference of$747,193 between the 2018 ending TOL and the 2019 beginning TOL is due to the change in 
accounting principle that was adopted for measurement period ending June 30, 2019. 

* Plan measurement date is the reporting date. 

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount 
rate of each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period: 

Fiscal Year 
2019 
2018 

Rate 
3.50% 
3.56% 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2027. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
For the year ended June 30, 2019* 

TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 2019 2018 

Service cost $ 1,833,733 $ 2,225,212 
Interest 1,111,292 854,654 
Differences between expected and actual experience 143,860 110,047 
Changes of assumptions 2,521,287 (3,373,245) 
Benefit payments (442,864) (338,332) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 5,167,308 (521,664) 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 28,787,250 28,561,721 

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 33,954,558 $ 28,040,057 

PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

Contributions - employer $ 692,864 $ 
Benefit payments (442,864) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 250,000 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 

Plan fiduciary net positi9D - ending $ 250,000 $ 

Town's Net OPEB liability - ending $ 33,704,558 $ 28,040,057 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of tota l OPEB liability 0 .74% 0.00% 

Notes to Schedule 

'The difference of$747,193 between the 2018 ending TOL and the 2019 beginning TOL is due to the change in 
accounting principle that was adopted for measurement period ending June 30, 2019. 

* Plan measurement date is the reporting date. 

Changes of assumptions: Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes in the discount 
rate of each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period: 

Fiscal Year 
2019 
2018 

Rate 
3.50% 
3.56% 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information unti l fiscal year 2027. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

HEAL THCARE BENEFITS PLAN 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Actuarially determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 
Annual contribution deficiency 

Covered payroll* 

Actual contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

$ 

• For years following the valuation date (when no valuation is performed), covered payroll 
has been set equal to the covered payroll from the most recent valuation. 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

Valuation date: 

2019 

3,077,653 
692,864 

2,384,789 

23,508,278 

2.95% 

Actuarially detennined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, prior to the above year end 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 

Amortization method 

Amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Retirement Age 

Mortality 

Level percentage of pay 

30 years 

Market value of assets 

2.50% 

7.75% decreasing to an ultimate of5.0% by 2028 

3.5% to 7.75% including inflation and productivity factor 

4.0% net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, assumed life expectancies were 
adjusted as a result of adopting the RP-20 14 Health Annuitant 
Mortality Table. 

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, assumed life expectancies were 
adjusted as a result of adopting the RP-2014 Health Annuitant 
Mortality Table. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

HEALTHCARE BENEFITS PLAN 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Actuarially determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially detennined contribution 
Annual contribution deficiency 

Covered payroll' 

Actual contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

$ 

• For years following the valuation date (when no valuation is perfonned), covered payroll 
has been set equal to the covered payroll from the most recent valuation. 

Notes to the Required Schedules: 

Valuation date: 

2019 

3,077,653 
692,864 

2,384,789 

23,508,278 

2.95% 

Actuarially detennined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30) prior to the above year end 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age nonnal 

Amortization method 

Amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Retirement Age 

Mortality 

Level percentage of pay 

30 years 

Market value of assets 

2.50% 

7.75% decreasing to an ultimate of5.0% by 2028 

3.5% to 7.75% including inflation and productivity factor 

4.0% net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation 

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, assumed life expectancies were 
adjusted as a result of adopting the RP-20 14 Health Annuitant 
Mortality Table. 

In the 2017 actuarial valuation, assumed life expectancies were 
adjusted as a result of adopting the RP-2014 Health Annuitant 
Mortality Table. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contribution $ 1,984,665 $ 1,771,996 $ 1,502,800 $ 1,468,206 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contributions 1,984,665 1,771,996 1,502,800 1,468,206 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ 

Town of Apex's covered payroll $ 25,826,440 $ 23,809,047 $22,065,857 $ 20,582,712 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 7.68% 7.44% 6.81% 7.13% 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2023. 

2014 

$ 1,380,271 

1,380,271 

$ 

$19,417,804 

7.11% 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S CONTRIBUTIONS 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

Contractually required contribution $ 1,984,665 $ 1,771,996 $ 1,502,800 $ 1,468,206 

Contributions in relation to the 
contractually required contributions 1,984,665 1,771,996 1,502,800 1,468,206 

Contribution deficiency (excess) $ $ $ $ 

Town of Apex's covered payroll $ 25,826,440 $ 23,809,047 $22,065 ,857 $ 20,582,712 

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 7.68% 7.44% 6.81% 7.13% 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of infonnation until fiscal year 2023 . 

2014 

$ 1,380,271 

1,380,271 

$ 

$19,417,804 

7.11% 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS* 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
Apex's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.42412% 0.40137% 0.39248% 0.39693% 0.38363% 0.37310% 

Apex's proportion of the net pension liability (asset)($) $10,061 ,577 $ 6,131 ,822 $ 8,329,740 $ 1,781 ,398 $ (2 ,262 ,443) $ 4,497,288 

Apex's covered payroll $25,826,440 $23 ,809 ,047 $ 22 ,065,857 $ 20,582 ,712 $ 19,417,804 $ 18,242,662 

Apex's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 38.96% 25.75% 37.75% 8.65% - 11.65% 24.65% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 92.00% 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35% 

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were detennined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30. 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth ofinfonnation until fiscal year 2023. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TOWN OF APEX'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET) 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS* 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
Apex's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) 0.424 12% 0.40137% 0.39248% 0.39693% 0.38363% 0.37310% 

Apex's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) $10,061 ,577 $ 6,131 ,822 $ 8,329,740 $ 1,781 ,398 $ (2 ,262 ,443) $ 4,497,288 

Apex's covered payroll $25,826,440 $23,809,047 $ 22 ,065,857 $ 20,582,712 $ 19,417,804 $ 18,242,662 

Apex's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
(asset) as a percentage of its covered payroll 38.96% 25.75% 37.75% 8.65% -11.65% 24.65% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 92.00% 94.18% 91.47% 98.09% 102.64% 94.35% 

* The amounts presented for each fiscal year were detennined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30. 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2023. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 

REQmRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2019 

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

2019 2018 
Beginning balance $ 2,248,394 $ 1,929,620 
Service cost 138,637 111 ,974 
Interest on total pension liability 69,277 73,484 
Difference between expected and actual experience 320,220 38,475 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (103,589) 146,595 
Benefit payments ( 112,197) (51,754) 

Ending balance of the total pension liability $ 2,560,742 $ 2,248,394 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were detennined as of the prior fiscal year ending 
December 31. 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth ofinfonnation until fiscal year 2026. 

2017 
$ 1,825,900 

114,548 
64,730 

(50,116) 
(25,442) 

$ 1,929,620 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES [N TOTAL PENSION LrABILITY 

REQillRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2019 

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

2019 2018 
Beginning balance $ 2,248,394 $ 1,929,620 
Service cost 138,637 111,974 
Interest on total pension liability 69,277 73,484 
Difference between expected and actual experience 320,220 38,475 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs (103,589) 146,595 
Benefit payments (1 12,197) (5 1,754) 

Ending balance of the total pension liability $ 2,560,742 $ 2,248,394 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were detennined as of the prior fiscal year ending 
December 31. 

Note that this schedule will not present 10 years' worth of in fan nation until fiscal year 2026. 

2017 
$ 1,825,900 

114,548 
64,730 

(50, 116) 
(25 ,442) 

$ 1,929,620 



73

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 
AS A PERCENTAGE OF COVERED PAYROLL 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2019 

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

Total pension liability 
Covered payroll 
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 

Notes to the schedules 

2019 
$ 2,560,742 $ 

5,069,978 
50.5 1% 

2018 
2,248,394 
4,760,797 

47.23% 

The Town of Apex bas no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragrapb 4 
of GASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits. 

Note that this scbedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2026. 

$ 
2017 
1,929,620 
4,527, 103 

42.62% 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SCHEDULE OF TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY 
AS A PERCENTAGE OF COVERED PAYROLL 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
JUNE 30, 2019 

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE 

Total pension liability 
Covered payroll 
Total pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll 

Notes to the schedules 

2019 
$ 2,560,742 $ 

5,069,978 
50.51% 

2018 
2,248,394 
4,760,797 

47.23% 

The Town of Apex bas no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragrapb 4 
of GASB Statement 73 to pay related benefits. 

Note tbat this scbedule will not present 10 years' worth of information until fiscal year 2026. 

$ 
2017 
1,929,620 
4,527, 103 

42.62% 
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TOWN O F APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDIT URES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Vear E nded June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

Schedule 1 
2019 2018 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Ne~ative) Actual 

REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 

Current year $ 28,950,400 $ 29,465,485 $ 515,085 $ 24,63 1,157 
Prior years 13 ,300 24,554 11,254 12,5 19 
Penalties and interest 25 ,000 35, 195 10,195 28,387 

Total 28,988 ,700 29,525,234 536,534 24,672,063 

Other taxes and licenses 
Local option sales tax 11 ,000,000 11 ,038,256 38,256 10,109,296 
Motor vehicle licenses 200,305 
Rental vehicles tax 75,000 82,208 7,208 73 ,883 

Total 11,075,000 11 ,120,464 45 ,464 10,383,484 

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 
Utility franchise tax 2,500,000 2,765,366 265,366 2,647,424 
Beer and wine tax 205,000 209,435 4,435 202,2 18 
Solid waste rebates - Wake County 240,000 283,669 43,669 176,907 
Payments in lieu of taxes 1,800 2,3 13 513 1,728 

Total 2,946,800 3,260,783 313,983 3,028,277 

Restricted intergovernmental 
Powell Bill 1,2 16,000 1,257,39 1 41,391 1,203,92 1 
EMS allocation - Wake County 1,636,2 16 
Fire district allocation - Wake County 1,261 ,500 1,276,536 15,036 1,114,825 

Federal grants 131,040 131 ,040 37,491 

State grants 55 ,172 55 ,172 44,557 

Wake County grant 96,600 145,183 48,583 238,809 
Total 2,574, 100 2,865,322 29 1,222 4 ,275,819 

Permits and rees 
Building permits and inspection rees 5,0 16,300 4 ,635 ,74 1 (3 80,559) 5,290,667 
Subdivision approval ree 220,000 237,665 17,665 176,474 

Application rees 12 1,900 194,745 72,845 158,470 

Vendor permits 10,000 11 ,875 1,875 9,6 10 
Fines and penalties 3,000 

Total 5,368,200 5,080,026 (288, 174) 5,638,221 

Sales and services 
Refuse collection fees 3,285 ,700 3,473,568 187,868 2,987,306 

Emergency services 12,000 (\2,000) 12,000 

Recreation fees 938,000 1,089,168 15 1,168 99 1,005 

Recycling revenue 677,000 719,476 42 ,476 647,817 

Plaruting documents 200 160 (40) 200 
Total 4,912,900 5,282,372 369,472 4,638,328 

Investment earnings 655 ,400 815,231 159,83 1 367,908 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 1 
2019 2018 

Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Negative) Actual 
REVENUES 
Ad valorem taxes 

Current year $ 28,950,400 $ 29,465,485 $ 515,085 $ 24,63 1,157 
Prior years 13,300 24,554 11 ,254 12,519 
Penalties and interest 25,000 35,195 10,195 28,387 

Total 28,988,700 29,525,234 536,534 24,672,063 

Other taxes and licenses 
Local option sales tax 11,000,000 11 ,038,256 38,256 10,109,296 
Motor vehicle licenses 200,305 
Rental vehicles tax 75,000 82,208 7,208 73,883 

Total 11 ,075,000 11,120,464 45,464 10,383,484 

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues 
Utility franchise tax 2,500,000 2,765,366 265,366 2,647,424 
Beer and wine tax 205,000 209,435 4,435 202,2 18 
Solid waste rebates - Wake County 240,000 283,669 43,669 176,907 
Payments in lieu of taxes 1,800 2,313 513 1,728 

Total 2,946,800 3,260,783 313,983 3,028,277 

Restricted intergovernmental 
Powell Bill 1,2 16,000 1,257,39 1 41 ,39 1 1,203,921 
EMS allocation - Wake County 1,636,216 
Fire district allocation - Wake County 1,261,500 1,276,536 15,036 1,114,825 
Federal grants 131,040 131,040 37,491 
State grants 55,172 55,172 44,557 
Wake County grant 96,600 145,1 83 48,583 238,809 

Total 2,574, 100 2,865,322 291,222 4,275,819 

Penllits and fees 
Building penllits and inspection fees 5,016,300 4,635,741 (380,559) 5,290,667 
Subdivision approval fee 220,000 237,665 17,665 176,474 
Application fees 121,900 194,745 72,845 158,470 
Vendor penllits 10,000 11,875 1,875 9,610 
Fines and penalties 3,000 

Total 5,368,200 5,080,026 (288, 174) 5,638,22 1 

Sales and services 
Refuse collection fees 3,285,700 3,473,568 187,868 2,987,306 
Emergency services 12,000 (12,000) 12,000 
Recreation fees 938,000 1,089,168 151,168 991 ,005 
Recycling revenue 677,000 719,476 42,476 647,8 17 
Planning documents 200 160 (40) 200 

Total 4,912,900 5,282,372 369,472 4,638,328 

Investment earnings 655,400 815,231 159,831 367,908 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Sched ule I 
2019 20 18 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 
Miscellaneous 

ABC revenue $ 230,000 $ 276,6 11 $ 46,6 11 $ 231,343 
Sale of fIxed assets 50,000 114,258 64,258 338,896 
Miscellaneous 72,800 68,100 (4,700) 2 15,74 1 

Donations 17,565 12,216 (5,349) 15,741 
Insurance Refund 22,049 103,998 8 1,949 25,944 
Court costs and officer fees 10,000 16,854 6,854 20,220 

Total 402,414 592,037 189,623 847,885 

Total revenues 56,923,514 58,541,469 1,617,955 53,85 1,985 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Governing body 
Personnel services 57,50 1 57,907 

Operations 89,640 140,526 

Total 165,900 147,141 18,759 198,433 

Administration 
Personnel services 2,900,817 2,414,882 

Operations 1,470,946 1,544,475 
Capital outlay 125,927 187,589 

Total 5,552,212 4,497,690 1,054,522 4,146,946 

Finance 
Personnel services 370,539 341,135 

Operations 37 1,714 310,560 

Total 828,454 742,253 86,201 651,695 

Facility Services 
Personnel services 230,246 278,82 1 

Operations 714,829 532,529 

Capital outlay 505,169 372,308 
Total 2,519,412 1,450,244 1,069, 168 1,183,658 

Planning 
Personnel services 1,65 1,398 1,53 1,767 

Operations 362,499 246,475 

Downtown Development 22,035 

Capital Outlay 31,540 

Total 2,247,809 2,045,437 202,372 1,800,277 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Sched ule 1 
2019 2018 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Miscellaneous 
ABC revenue $ 230,000 $ 276,611 $ 46,6 11 $ 231,343 
Sale of fixed assets 50,000 114,258 64,258 338,896 

Miscellaneous 72,800 68,100 (4,700) 215,74 1 

Donations 17,565 12,216 (5,349) 15,74 1 
Insurance Refund 22,049 103,998 81,949 25,944 
Court costs and officer fees 10,000 16,854 6,854 20,220 

Total 402,414 592,037 189,623 847,885 

Total revenues 56,923,514 58,541,469 1,617,955 53,851,985 

EXPENDITURES 
General government 

Governing body 
Personnel services 57,50 I 57,907 

Operations 89,640 140,526 

Total 165,900 147, 141 18,759 198,433 

Administration 
Personnel services 2,900,817 2,4 14,882 

Operations 1,470,946 1,544,475 
Capital outlay 125,927 187,589 

Total 5,552,212 4,497,690 1,054,522 4,146,946 

Finance 
Personnel services 370,539 341,135 

Operations 371,714 310,560 

Total 828,454 742,253 86,201 65 1,695 

Facility Services 
Personnel services 230,246 278,821 

Operations 714,829 532,529 

Capital outlay 505,169 372,308 
Total 2,5 19,412 1,450,244 1,069,168 1,183,658 

Planning 
Personnel services 1,651,398 1,531,767 

Operations 362,499 246,475 

Downtown Development 22,035 

Capital Outlay 31 ,540 

Total 2,247,809 2,045,437 202,372 1,800,277 
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Sched ule 1 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

2019 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 
Construction Management 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Special Appropriations 
Wake County Programs 
Chamber of Commerce 
Downtown Merchants 

Total 

Total general government 

Public safety 
Police 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Public Safety CornmU!llcations 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

F ire and Rescue 
PersOIUlel services 
Operations 
HAZMA T program 
Capital outlay 

Total 

EMS 
Personnel services 
Operations 

Total 

Total public safety 

Public Works 
Public Works & Transportation 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

$ $ 

2,831 ,505 

88,900 

14,234,192 

14,123,633 

1,295,771 

9,658,775 

25,078 ,179 

1,328,643 

1,9 19,886 $ 
165,474 
138,136 

2,223,496 

31,900 
1,99 1 

32,950 
66,841 

11,173, 102 

7,763,230 
1,823,540 
1,677,874 

11 ,264,644 

850,244 
130,3 14 
120,885 

1,10 1,443 

6,918,989 
935 ,073 

1,171,962 
9,026,024 

2 1,392,111 

855,278 
244,102 

18,201 
1,117,581 

608,009 

22,059 

3,061,090 

2,858,989 

194,328 

632,75 1 

3,686,068 

211,062 

$ 

2018 

Actual 

1,626,348 
163,798 
141,296 

1,931,442 

5,000 
2,113 

20,000 
27,113 

9,939,564 

8,325 ,308 
1,187,488 

9 11,854 
10,424,650 

6,331,296 
737,446 

19,732 
260,209 

7,348,683 

1,642,655 
235, 11 8 

1,877,773 

19,651,106 

818,905 
222,067 

1,040,972 

Schedule I 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXl'ENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

2019 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 
Construction Management 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Special Appropriations 
Wake County Programs 
Chamber of Commerce 
Downtown Merchants 

Total 

Total general government 

Public safety 
Police 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Public Safety Communications 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Fire and Rescue 
Personnel services 
Operations 
HAZMA T program 
Capital outlay 

Total 

EMS 
Personnel services 
Operations 

Total 

Total public safety 

Public Works 
Public Works & Transportation 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

$ 

2,831,505 

88,900 

14,234,192 

14,123,633 

1,295,771 

9,658,775 

25,078 ,179 

1,328,643 

$ 1,919,886 $ 
165,474 
138,136 

2,223,496 

31,900 
1,991 

32 ,950 
66,841 

11,173, 102 

7,763,230 
1,823,540 
1,677,874 

11,264,644 

850,244 
130,314 
120,885 

1,101,443 

6,918,989 
935 ,073 

1,171,962 
9,026,024 

21,392,111 

855,278 
244,102 

18,201 
1, 11 7,581 

608,009 

22,059 

3,061 ,090 

2,858,989 

194,328 

632,751 

3,686,068 

211,062 

$ 

2018 

Actual 

1,626,348 
163,798 
141 ,296 

1,93 1,442 

5,000 
2,113 

20,000 
27,113 

9,939,564 

8,325,308 
1,187,488 

911 ,854 
10,424,650 

6,331,296 
737,446 

19,732 
260,209 

7,348,683 

1,642,655 
235, 11 8 

1,877,773 

19,651,106 

818,905 
222,067 

1,040,972 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for tbe year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule I 

Utility Engineering & Water Resources 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital Outlay 

Total 

Streets 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Fleet Services 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Cemetery 
Operations 

Total public works 

Environmental Protection 
Sanitation 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total environmental protection 

Cultural and Recreational 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total cultural and recreation 

Debt service 
Principal 
Interest 
Bond issuance cost 

Total debt service 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Budget 

$ 

1,626,925 

5,320,725 

535,236 

30,300 

8,84 1,829 

4 ,2 17,055 

6, 142,296 

4,607, 100 

63, 120,651 

(6,197,137) 

$ 

2019 

Actual 

1,234,906 $ 
137,603 
87,962 

1,460,471 

1,067,68 1 
1,9 15,458 

429,379 
3,4 12,51 8 

317,742 
11 8,277 

8, 141 
444,160 

344 

6,435 ,074 

937,942 
2,959 ,805 

187,52 1 
4,085,268 

2,632 ,8 14 
1,75 1,175 
1,13 1,167 
5,515 ,156 

2,903 ,793 
1,666,072 

4,569 ,865 

53, 170,576 

5,370,893 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

166,454 

1,908 ,207 

9 1,076 

29,956 

2,406,755 

13 1,787 

627, 140 

37,235 

9,950,075 

11,568 ,030 

$ 

2018 

Actual 

1,139,509 
117,691 
56,993 

1,314,193 

794,357 
2, 166,316 

768,534 
3,729,207 

340,267 
97,064 
58,167 

495,498 

30,7 18 

6,6 10,588 

795,7 10 
2,620,866 

443 ,470 
3,860,046 

2,3 12,470 
1,571,546 

421 ,682 
4 ,305,698 

3,869,854 
778,397 
233 ,682 

4 ,88 1,933 

49,248,935 

4 ,603,050 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 201 9 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 1 

Uti lity Engineering & Water Resources 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital Outlay 

Total 

Streets 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Fleet Services 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total 

Cemetery 
Operations 

Total public works 

Environmental Protection 
Sanitation 

Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total environmental protection 

Cultural and Recreational 
Personnel services 
Operations 
Capital outlay 

Total cultural and recreation 

Debt service 
Principal 
Interest 
Bond issuance cost 

Total debt service 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

Budget 

$ 

1,626,925 

5,320,725 

535,236 

30,300 

8,841,829 

4,217,055 

6,142,296 

4,607, 100 

63,120,651 

(6,197, 137) 

$ 

2019 

Actual 

1,234,906 $ 
137,603 
87,962 

1,460,47 1 

1,067,681 
1,915,458 

429,379 
3,412,518 

3 17,742 
118,277 

8,14 1 
444,160 

344 

6,435,074 

937,942 
2,959,805 

187,521 
4 ,085,268 

2,632,814 
1,751 ,175 
1,131,167 
5,515,156 

2,903 ,793 
1,666,072 

4,569,865 

53, 170,576 

5,370,893 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

166,454 

1,908,207 

9 1,076 

29,956 

2,406,755 

13 1,787 

627,140 

37,235 

9,950,075 

11,568,030 

$ 

2018 

Actual 

1,139,509 
11 7,691 
56,993 

1,3 14,193 

794,357 
2,166,316 

768,534 
3,729,207 

340,267 
97,064 
58,167 

495,498 

30,718 

6,6 10,588 

795,7 10 
2,620,866 

443,470 
3,860,046 

2,312,470 
1,57 1,546 

421 ,682 
4,305,698 

3,869,854 
778,397 
233,682 

4 ,88 1,933 

49,248,935 

4 ,603,050 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 1 
2019 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Operating transfers out 
General Capital Project $ (2,282,445) $ (1 ,969,500) $ 312,945 

Street Project (174,400) (174 ,400) 
Operating transfers in 

Street Project Fund 
Recreation Proj ect Fund 300,000 300,000 
Recreation Reserve Fund 1,872,408 1,872,408 
Transportation Reserve Fund 293,574 293,574 

Bond issuance 
Bond premium 
Contingency (1 00,000) [00,000 
Fund balance appropriated 6,986,574 (6,986,574) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 6,895,7 11 322,082 (6,573,629) 

SPECIAL ITEM 
Legal settlement (698,574) (698,574) 

Net change in fund balance $ 4,994,401 $ 4,994,401 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning ofYe.r 34,730,391 

FUND BALANCE - End of Year $ 39,724,792 

2018 

Actual 

$ (367,400) 
(371,000) 

29,050 
194,328 
902,597 
742,400 

1,105,000 
160,106 

2,395,08 1 

6,998,131 

27,732,260 

$ 34,730,391 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the Year Ended J une 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 1 
2019 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Ne~ative) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers out 

General Capital Project $ (2,282,445) $ (1,969,500) $ 312,945 

Street Project (174,400) (174 ,400) 
Operating transfers in 

Street Proj ect Fund 
Recreation Proj ect Fund 300,000 300,000 
Recreation Reserve Fund \ ,872,408 1,872,408 
Transportation Reserve Fund 293,574 293,574 

Bond issuance 
Bond premium 
Contingency (100,000) 100,000 
Fund balance appropriated 6,986,574 (6,986,574) 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 6,895,7 11 322,082 (6,573,629) 

SPECIAL ITEM 
Legal settlement (698,574) (698,574) 

Net change in fund balance $ 4,994,401 $ 4,994,401 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of Year 34,730,391 

FUND BALANCE - End of Year $ 39,724,792 

2018 

Actual 

$ (367,400) 
(371,000) 

29,050 
194,328 
902,597 
742,400 

1,105,000 
160, 106 

2,395,08 \ 

6,998,13 1 

27,732,260 

$ 34,730,391 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
FIRE CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Sched ule 2 
20 19 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings $ 800 $ 2,040 $ 1,240 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Net change in fund balance $ 800 2,040 $ 1,240 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 106,320 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 108,360 

2018 

Actual 

$ 1,156 

1,156 

105, 164 

$ 106,320 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLUI/A 
FIRE CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
UI/ FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 2 
2019 

Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings $ 800 $ 2,040 $ 1,240 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Net change in fund balance $ 800 2,040 $ 1,240 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 106,320 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 108,360 

2018 

Actual 

$ 1,156 

1,156 

105, 164 

$ 106,320 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

RECREA nON FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

From inception to June 30, 2019 

Schedule 3 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Year Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings $ 419,500 $ 76,932 $ 502,612 $ 579,544 
Donations 300,000 40,000 40,000 
Intergovernmental 2,050,000 260,615 138,349 398,964 
Miscellaneous 6,200 6,287 6,287 

Total revenues 2,775,700 383,834 640,961 1,024,795 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 29,540,633 1,282,439 1,154,566 2,437,005 

Revenues under expendi tures (26,764,933) (898,605) (513 ,605) (1,412,210) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Recreation reserve 7,809,030 2,817,890 3,251,000 6,068 ,890 
General fund 400,000 400,000 400,000 
General fund (752,978) (194,328) (300,000) (494,328) 

Bonds issued 18,555,903 18,555,903 18,555,903 
Bond premium 752,978 752,978 752,978 

Total other fmancing sources (uses) 26,764,933 22,332,443 2,95 1,000 25,283 ,443 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 21 ,433 ,838 $ 2,437,395 $ 23,871 ,233 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 

RECREATION FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

From inception to June 30, 2019 

Schedule 3 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Year Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings $ 419,500 $ 76,932 $ 502,612 $ 579,544 
Donations 300,000 40,000 40,000 
Intergovernmental 2,050,000 260,615 138,349 398,964 
Miscellaneous 6,200 6,287 6,287 

Total revenues 2,775,700 383,834 640,961 1,024,795 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 29,540,633 1,282,439 1,154,566 2,437,005 

Revenues under expenditures (26,764,933) (898,605) (513,605) (1 ,412,210) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Recreation reserve 7,809,030 2,8 17,890 3,251,000 6,068 ,890 
General fund 400,000 400,000 400,000 
General fund (752,978) (194,328) (300,000) (494,328) 

Bonds issued 18,555,903 18,555,903 18,555,903 
Bond premium 752,978 752,978 752,978 

Total other fmaneing sources (uses) 26,764,933 22,332,443 2,95 1,000 25,283,443 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 21,433 ,838 $ 2,437,395 $ 23,871 ,233 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
COMBIi'lING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Statement 4 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 

Street 
Perry Improvements Recreation 

LibraIX Project ReselVe 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 119,675 $ 2,240,346 $ 4,381,359 
Restricted cash 923,993 
Wake County taxes receivable 

Total assets $ 11 9,675 $ 3,164,339 $ 4,381 ,359 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ $ 185,534 $ 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Greenway Credits $ $ $ 77,665 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 923,993 
Committed 11 9,675 2,054,812 
Assigned 4,303,694 

Total fund balance 119,675 2,978,805 4,303 ,694 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 119,675 $ 3,164,339 $ 4,381,359 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
June 30, 2019 

Statement 4 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 

Street 
Perry Improvements Recreation 

Libra!X Project Reserve 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 119,675 $ 2,240,346 $ 4,381,359 
Restricted cash 923,993 
Wake County taxes receivable 

Total assets $ 11 9,675 $ 3,164,339 $ 4,38 1,359 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ $ 185,534 $ 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Greenway Credits $ $ $ 77,665 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 923,993 
Committed 11 9,675 2,054,812 
Assigned 4,303,694 

Total fund balance 11 9,675 2,978,805 4,303,694 

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 119,675 $ 3,164,339 $ 4,381,359 
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Permanent 
Capital Projects Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Transportation General Cemetery Governmental 
Reserve Projects Total Fund Funds 

$ 2,823,575 $ 2,9 10,059 $ 12,355,339 $ 424,786 $ 12,899,800 
923,993 697,418 1,621,411 

76,291 76,29 1 76,29 1 

$ 2,899,866 $ 2,9 10,059 $ 13,355,623 $ 1,122,204 $ 14,597,502 

$ $ 35,302 $ 220,836 $ $ 220,836 

$ $ $ 77,665 $ $ 77,665 

923,993 697,4 18 1,621,411 
2,874,757 4,929,569 424,786 5,474,030 

2,899,866 7,203,560 7,203,560 
2,899,866 2,874,757 13,057,122 1,122,204 14,299,001 

$ 2,899,866 $ 2,9 10,059 $ 13,277,958 $ 1,122,204 $ 14,597,502 

Permanent 
Capital Projects Fund 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Transportation General Cemetery Governmental 
Reserve Proj ects Total Fund Funds 

$ 2,823,575 $ 2,9 10,059 $ 12,355,339 $ 424,786 $ 12 ,899,800 
923,993 697,418 1,62 1,411 

76,291 76,29 1 76,291 

$ 2,899,866 $ 2,910,059 $ 13 ,3 55 ,623 $ 1,122,204 $ 14,597,502 

$ $ 35,302 $ 220,836 $ $ 220,836 

$ $ $ 77,665 $ $ 77,665 

923,993 697,418 1,621,411 
2,874,757 4,929,569 424,786 5,474,030 

2,899,866 7,203,560 7,203,560 

2,899,866 2,874,757 13,057,122 1,122,204 14,299,001 

$ 2,899,866 $ 2,9 10,059 $ 13,277,958 $ 1,122,204 $ 14,597,502 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the year ended June 30, 20 19 

Sta tement 5 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 

Street 
Perry Improvements Recreation 

Libra~ Project Reserve 
REVENUES 

Other taxes and licenses 
Motor vehic le licenses $ $ $ 

Restricted Intergovernmental 10,910 
Permits and fees 

Subdivision recreation fees 3,449,496 
Transportation impact fees 
Payments in lieu of streets 165,849 
Payments in lieu of sidewalks 36,880 

Miscellaneous 4,323 
Investment earnings 2,253 103,066 120,182 

Total revenues 2,253 321,028 3,569,678 

EXPENDITURES 
Current-Public works 
Capital outlay-improvements 1,607,849 

Total expenditures 1,607,849 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,253 (1,286,821 ) 3,569,678 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 729,923 
Transfers out (2, 150, 191) (5,123,408) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,420,268) (5,123 ,408) 

Net change in fund balances 2,253 (2,707,089) (1,553,730) 

FUND BALANCES - Beginning of year 117,422 5,685,894 5,857,424 

FUND BALANCES - End of year $ 11 9,675 $ 2,978,805 $ 4,303 ,694 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

For the year ended J une 30, 2019 

Statement 5 

Special Revenue Capital Projects 

Street 
Perry Improvements Recreation 

Libra!X Project Reserve 
REVENUES 

Other taxes and licenses 
Motor vehicle licenses $ $ $ 

Restricted Intergovernmental 10,910 
Permits and fees 

Subdivision recreation fees 3,449,496 
Transportation impact fees 
Payments in lieu of streets 165,849 
Payments in lieu of sidewalks 36,880 

Miscellaneous 4,323 
Investment earnings 2,2 53 103,066 120,182 

Total revenues 2,253 321,028 3,569,678 

EXPENDITURES 
Current-Public works 
Capital outlay-improvements 1,607,849 

Total expenditures 1,607,849 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 2,253 (1,286,821 ) 3,569,678 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 729,923 
Transfers out (2, 150, 191) (5,123,408) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (1 ,420,268) (5,123,408) 

Net cbange in fund balances 2,253 (2,707,089) (1,553,730) 

FUND BALANCES - Beginning of year 117,422 5,685,894 5,857,424 

FUND BALANCES - End of year $ 119,675 $ 2,978,805 $ 4,303,694 
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Permanent 
Capital Proj ects Fund 

Total 
General Nonmajor 

Transportation Capital Cemetery Governmental 
Reserve Projects Total Fund Funds 

$ 790,883 $ $ 790,883 $ $ 790,883 
10,9 10 10,9 10 

3,449,496 3,449,496 
(590) (590) (590) 

16,503 182,352 182,352 
1,040 37,920 37,920 

4,323 4,323 
25,90 1 28, 140 277,289 2 1,157 300,699 

833,737 28,140 4,752,583 21,157 4,775,993 

2,550 2,550 
166,004 1,773,852 1,773,852 
166,004 1,773,852 2,550 1,776,402 

833,737 (137,864) 2,978,731 18,607 2,999 ,59 1 

2, 150, 191 1,969,500 4,849,6 14 (2,550) 4,847,064 
(849,096) (8,122,695) (8,122,695) 

1,301,095 1,969,500 (3,273,08 1) (3,275,631) 

2,134,832 1,831,636 (294,35 1) 18,607 (276,040) 

765,034 1,043, 121 13,35 1,473 1,103 ,597 14,572,492 

$ 2,899,866 $ 2,874,757 $ 13,057,122 $ 1,122 ,204 $ 14,299,00 1 

Permanent 
Capital Projects Fund 

Total 
General Nonmajor 

Transportation Capital Cemetery Governmental 
Reserve Projects Total Fund Funds 

$ 790,883 $ $ 790,883 $ $ 790,883 
10,9 10 10,910 

3,449,496 3,449,496 
(590) (590) (590) 

16,503 182,352 182,3 52 
1,040 37,920 37,920 

4,323 4,323 
25,90 1 28,140 277,289 21, 157 300,699 

833,737 28, 140 4,752,583 21,157 4,775,993 

2,550 2,550 
166,004 1,773,852 1,773,852 
166,004 1,773,852 2,550 1,776,402 

833,737 (137,864) 2,978,731 18,607 2,999,591 

2,150,191 1,969,500 4,849,6 14 (2,550) 4,847,064 
(849,096) (8,122,695) (8, 122,695) 

1,301,095 1,969,500 (3,273,08 1) (3,275,631) 

2,134,832 1,83 1,636 (294,35 1) 18 ,607 (276,040) 

765,034 1,043, 121 13,35 1,473 1,103,597 14,572,492 

$ 2,899,866 $ 2,874,757 $ 13,057,122 $ 1,122,204 $ 14,299,00 1 
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Schedule 6 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

PERRY LIBRARY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

2019 

Budget Actual 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

2018 

Actual 
REVENUES 

Investrnentearnings $ 900 $ 2,253 $ 1,353 $ 1,276 

EXPENDITURES 
Building maintenance and repair 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

General Fund 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - End of year 

580,900 
(580,000) 

580,000 

$ 

580,900 
2,253 582,253 1,276 

(580,000) 

2,253 $ ,,;$~=;o2,:;:;25;,;;3= 1,276 

11 7,422 11 6,146 

$ ==1;,;1="9 ,~67(,;;5;" $ ==1;,;1,;.7 ,:;;4 2~2;., 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
SPECw., REVENUE FUND 

PERRY LffiRARY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the year ended J une 30, 2019 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

Schedule 6 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings 

EXPENDITURES 
Building maintenance and repair 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

General Fund 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - End of year 

Budget 

$ 900 

580,900 
(580,000) 

580,000 

$ 

2019 

Variance 
Positive 

Actual (Negative) 

$ 2,253 $ 1,353 

580,900 
2,253 582,253 

(580,000) 

2,253 $ ,,;$~=,;;,2':;;:,2 5;;3;,. 

117,422 

$ ===1~1~9 ':;;,67;,;5;" 

2018 

Actual 

$ 1,276 

1,276 

1,276 

11 6, 146 

$ =~1~1~7 ,:;;;42;;,;2~ 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROL INA 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

STREET IMPROVEM ENTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF R EVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

From inception to June 30 t 20J9 

Schedule 7 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Year Year Date 

REVENUES 
Developer reimbursements $ $ 25,192 $ 4,323 $ 29,5 15 
Payments in li eu of streets 2,165,000 1,898,986 165,849 2,064,835 
Payments in lieu of sidewalks 170,000 113,476 36,880 150,356 
Intergovernmental 5,854,800 1,132,855 10,9 10 1,143,765 
Inveshnent earnings 174,000 202,798 103,066 305,864 

Total revenues 8,363,800 3,373,307 321,028 3,694,335 

EXPENDITURES 
Capita! outlay-improvements 12,785,082 2,382,55 1 1,607,849 3,990,400 
Less closed projects 224,794 200,079 200,079 

Total expenditures 12,560,288 2,182,472 1,607,849 3,790,321 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,196,488) 1,190,835 (1,286,821 ) (95,986) 

OTHER FINANC ING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

General Fund 2,865,9 14 1,890,934 174,400 2,065,334 
General fund (32,7 11) (29,050) (29,050) 
Transportation Capital Reserve 1,464,255 403,733 555,523 959,256 
Transportation Capital Reserve (2,270,000) (2, 150, 191) (2, 150,191) 

Bonds issued 2,219,908 2,255,605 2,255,605 
Bond premium 173,916 173,916 173,9 16 

Sub-total other financing sources (uses) 4,421,282 4,695,138 (1,420,268) 3,274,870 
Less closed projects 224,794 200,079 200,079 
Total other financing sources (uses) 4, 196,488 4,495,059 (1 ,420,268) 3,074,791 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 5,685,894 $ (2,707,089) $ 2,978,805 

TOWN OF APEX, NORT H CAROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

STREET IMPROVEMENTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

From inception to June 30 t 2019 

Schedule 7 
Project Actual 

Author· Prior CUlTent Total to 
ization Year Year Date 

REVENUES 
Developer reimbursements $ $ 25,192 $ 4,323 $ 29,5 15 
Payments in lieu of streets 2, 165,000 1,898,986 165,849 2,064,835 
Payments in lieu of sidewalks 170,000 113,476 36,880 150,356 
Intergovernmental 5,854,800 1, 132,855 10,910 1,143,765 
Inveshnent earnings 174,000 202,798 103,066 305 ,864 

Total revenues 8,363,800 3,373,307 32 1,028 3,694,335 

EXPEND[TURES 
Capita! outlay-improvements 12,785,082 2,382,55 1 1,607,849 3,990,400 
Less closed projects 224,794 200,079 200,079 

Total expenditures 12,560,288 2, 182,472 1,607,849 3,790,321 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (4,196,488) 1, 190,835 ( 1 ,286,821) (95,986) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

General Fund 2,865,914 1,890,934 174,400 2,065,334 
General Fund (32,711) (29,050) (29,050) 
Transportation Capital Reserve [ ,464,255 403,733 555,523 959,256 
Transportation Capital Reserve (2,270,000) (2, 150, 191) (2 ,150,191) 

Bonds issued 2,2[9,908 2,255,605 2,255,605 
Bond premium 173,916 173,9 16 173,916 

Sub-total other financing sources (uses) 4,421,282 4,695, 138 (1,420,268) 3,274,870 
Less closed projects 224,794 200,079 200,079 
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,196,488 4,495,059 (1 ,420,268) 3,074,791 

Net change in fund balance $ $ 5,685,894 $ (2,707,089) $ 2,978,805 
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Schedule 8 

REVENUES 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECREATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL RESERVE 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

2019 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 

Subdivision recreation fees 
Investment earnings 

$ 3,500,000 $ 3,449,496 $ (50,504) $ 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out 

General Fund 
Recreation Project 

Fund Balance Appropriated 
Total other [maocing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - End of year 

30,000 
3,530,000 

3,530,000 

(1,872,408) 
(3,25 1,000) 
1,593,408 

(3 ,530,000) 

$==== 

120, 182 90, 182 
3,569,678 39,678 

3,569,678 39,678 

(1,872,408) 
(3,25 1,000) 

1,593,408 
(5, 123,408) 1,593,408 

(1 ,553,730) $ (1,553,730) 

5,857,424 

$ 4,303,694 $ 

2018 

Actual 

4, 158,264 
57,035 

4,2 15,299 

4,215,299 

(902,597) 
(1 ,97 1,000) 

(2,873,597) 

1,341 ,702 

4,5 15,722 

5,857,424 

Schedule 8 

REVENUES 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RECREA nON CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL RESERVE 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

2019 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) 

Subdivision recreation fees 
lnvestment earnings 

$ 3,500,000 $ 3,449,496 $ (50,504) $ 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out 

General Fund 
Recreation Project 

Fund Balance Appropriated 
Total other fIDancing sources (uses) 

Net cbange in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - End of year 

30,000 
3,530,000 

3,530,000 

(1,872,408) 
(3,251,000) 
1,593,408 

(3,530,000) 

$==== 

120,1 82 90,182 
3,569,678 39,678 

3,569,678 39,678 

(1,872,408) 
(3,251,000) 

1,593,408 
(5,123,408) 1,593,408 

(1,553,730) $ (1,553,730) 

5,857,424 

$ 4,303,694 $ 

2018 

Actual 

4,158,264 
57,035 

4,215,299 

4,215,299 

(902,597) 
( 1,97 1,000) 

(2,873,597) 

1,341 ,702 

4,515 ,722 

5,857,424 
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TOWN O F APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL RESERVE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

Schedule 9 

REVENUES 
Motor vehicle licenses 
Transportation impact fees 
Payments in lieu of streets 
Payments in lieu of sidewalks 
lnvestment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in (out) 

General Fund 
Street Project Fund 
Street Project Fund 

Fund Balance Appropriated 
Total other financingsources (uses) 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

$ 

$ 

Budget 

675,000 $ 

6,000 
681,000 

681,000 

(293,574) 

(559,426) 
172,000 

(68 1,000) 

20 19 

Actual 

790,883 $ 
(590) 

16,503 
1,040 

25,90 I 
833,737 

833,737 

(293,574) 
2, 150,191 
(555,522) 

1,301,095 

2,134,832 

765,034 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

115,883 $ 
(590) 

16,503 
1,040 

19,901 
152,737 

152,737 

2,150,19 1 
3,904 

(172,000) 
1,982,095 

$ 2,134,832 

2018 

Actual 

345,058 
466,957 

9,356 
821,371 

82 1,37 1 

(742,400) 

(742,400) 

78,971 

686,063 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 2,899,866 $ =~7 6;;;5f;;,0,;;;34;" 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL RESERVE 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended J une 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Scbed ule 9 

REVENUES 
Motor vehicle licenses 
Transportation impact fees 
Payments in lieu of streets 
Payments in lieu of sidewalks 
lnvestment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 

Revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in (out) 

General Fund 
Street Project Fund 
Street Project Fund 

Fund Balance Appropriated 
Total other financingsources (uses) 

Net cbange in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

$ 

$ 

Budget 

675,000 $ 

6,000 
681,000 

681,000 

(293,574) 

(559,426) 
172,000 

(681,000) 

20 19 

Actual 

790,883 $ 
(590) 

16,503 
1,040 

25,90 I 
833,737 

833,737 

(293,574) 
2, 150,191 
(555,522) 

1,301,095 

2, 134,832 

765,034 

Variance 
Positive 

(Negative) 

11 5,883 $ 
(590) 

16,503 
1,040 

19,90 I 
152 ,737 

152,737 

2,150,19 1 
3,904 

(\72,000) 
1,982,095 

$ 2,134,832 

2018 

Actual 

345,058 
466,957 

9,356 
821,371 

82 1,37 1 

(742,400) 

(742,400) 

78,971 

686,063 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 2,899,866 $ =~76;;;5~,03~4= 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

GENERAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

From inception to June 30, 2019 

Schedule 10 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 

Revenues under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

General Fund 
Cemetery Fund 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

$ 

Project 
Author -
ization 

5,199,237 

(5, 199,237) 

4,599,237 
600,000 

5,199,237 

$ 

Actual 
Prior Current 

Year Year 

13 ,483 $ 28, 140 
13,483 28, 140 

166,004 

13,483 (137,864) 

1,029,638 1,969,500 

1,029,638 1,969,500 

Total to 
Date 

$ 41,623 
41,623 

166,004 

(124,381) 

2,999, 138 

2,999, 138 

Net change in fund balance $ ===-= $ 1,043, 121 $ I ,83 I ,636 $ =.",;:;2;;,8~7 4,;,!',;,;7 5:;,;7= 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL PROJECT FUND 

GENERAL PROJECTS FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

From inception to June 30, 2019 

Schedule 10 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay-improvements 

Revenues under expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

General Fund 
Cemetery Fund 

Total otiler fmancing sources (uses) 

$ 

Project 
Author -
ization 

5, 199,237 

(5, 199,237) 

4,599,237 
600,000 

5,199,237 

Actual 
Prior Current 

Year Vear 

$ 13,483 $ 28,140 
13,483 28,140 

166,004 

13,483 (137,864) 

1,029,638 1,969,500 

1,029,638 1,969,500 

Total to 
Date 

$ 41 ,623 
41 ,623 

166,004 

(124,381) 

2,999, 138 

2,999, 138 

Net change in fund balance $====- $ 1,043,12 1 $ 1,831 ,636 $ =~2~,8;;,74,;;';,;75:;,;7= 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PERMANENT FUND 

CEMETERY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 11 
2019 

Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Negative) 
REVENUES 

Investment earnings $ 9,000 $ 21,157 $ 12,157 $ 

Sale of plots (2,550) (2,550) 
Total revenues 9,000 18,607 9,607 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 9,000 9,000 

Net change in fund balance $ 18,607 $ 18,607 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 1,103,597 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 1,122,204 $ 

2018 

Actual 

12,019 
(9,300) 
2,7 19 

2,7 19 

1, 100,878 

1,103,597 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PERMANENT FUND 

CEMETERY FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

For the year ended J une 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule \1 
2019 

Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Negative) 
REVENUES 

Investment earnings $ 9,000 $ 21 ,157 $ 12,157 $ 

Sale of plots (2,550) (2,550) 
Total revenues 9,000 18,607 9,607 

EXPENDITURES 
Reserved for future expenditures 9,000 9,000 

Nel change in fund balance $ 18,607 $ 18,607 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 1,103,597 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 1,122,204 $ 

2018 

Actual 

12,019 
(9,300) 
2,719 

2,7 19 

1,100,878 

1,103 ,597 



PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds 
Enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated 

in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of the 
Town is that the costs of providing goods and services to the general public 
on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges. 

Electric Fund - used to account for the costs of providing electric service. 
The Town also maintains a subfund to account for the construction of 
an electric substation. 

Water and Sewer Fund - used to account for the costs of providing water 
treatment and distribution and wastewater collection and treatment. The 
Town also maintains subfunds to account for water and sewer capital 
projects and development fees restricted to use for system improvements. 

Internal Service Funds 
Internal service funds are used to account for providing goods and services 

to other funds or departments of the Town. This allows the Town to 
centralize certain services and then allocate them on a full cost­
reim bursement basis. 

Health and Dental Fund - the Town self insures routine health and dental 
claims and uses this fund to centralize costs and allocate them to 
various departments based on the number of employees. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRlC OPERATIONS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended JUlie 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 12 2019 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Nejlative) 

REVENUES 
Operating revenues: 

Charges for services 
Sale of electricity $ 34,976,700 $ 36,239,086 $ 1,262,386 $ 
Reconnection fees 47,500 43,589 (3,9 11) 
Service initiation fees 55,947 55,947 

Penalties 75,000 202,970 127,970 

Total 35,099,200 36,54 1,592 1,442,392 

Other operating revenues 
Sales tax revenues 2,445,300 2,525,171 79,871 
Underground charges 1,975,000 1,460,144 (514 ,856) 

Pole rental 10,000 (10,000) 
Sale of capital assets 30,000 (30,000) 

Miscellaneous 140,000 68,923 (7 1,077) 

Electric meters 180,000 211,100 3 1,100 
Total other operating revenues 4,780,300 4,265 ,338 (514,962) 

Total operating revenues 39,879,500 40,806,930 927,430 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Investrnentearnings 35,000 101 ,0 15 66,015 

Total revenues 39,9 14,500 40,907,945 993,445 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel services 4,009,100 3,930,761 78,339 

Operations and maintenance 1,775,700 1,531 ,829 243 ,871 

Purchases of electricity 25,988,200 25,984,245 3,955 

Electric sales tax 2,573,300 2,572,686 6 14 
Total 34,346,300 34,019,521 326,779 

Debt service 
Principal retirement 516,000 516,000 

Interest 122,900 122,80 I 99 

Total debt service 638,900 638,801 99 

Capital outlay 4,678,622 4 ,214,238 464,384 

Total expenditures 39,663,822 38,872,560 791,262 

Revenues over (under) expenses 250,678 2,035,385 1,784,707 

2018 

Actual 

33,801,097 
39,275 

74,547 
33,914,919 

2,358,578 
1,757,849 

145,997 
186,444 

4,448,868 

38,363,787 

52,509 
38,416,296 

3,480,198 
1,282,080 

24,260,452 
2,372,391 

3 1,395, 121 

498,000 
140,833 
638,833 

4,642,847 
36,676,801 

1,739,495 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended J Ulie 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for ti,e year ended June 30, 2018 

Sched ule 12 2019 
Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Nellalive) 
REVENUES 

Operating revenues: 
Charges for services 

Sale of electricity $ 34,976,700 $ 36,239,086 $ 1,262,386 $ 

Reconnection fees 47,500 43 ,589 (3,9 11) 
Service initiation fees 55,947 55 ,947 
Penalties 75,000 202,970 127,970 

Total 35,099,200 36,541,592 1,442,392 

Other operating revenues 
Sales tax revenues 2,445 ,300 2,525,171 79,871 
Underground charges 1,975,000 1,460,144 (514,856) 

Pole rental 10,000 (10,000) 
Sale of capital assets 30,000 (30,000) 
Miscellaneous 140,000 68,923 (71 ,077) 

Electric meters 180,000 211,100 31,100 
Total other operating revenues 4,780,300 4,265,338 (514,962) 

Total operating revenues 39,879,500 40,806,930 927,430 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Investrnentearnings 35,000 101,0 15 66,0 15 

Total revenues 39,914,500 40,907,945 993 ,445 

EXPENDITURES 
Personnel services 4,009,100 3,930,761 78,339 

Operations and maintenance 1,775,700 1,531,829 243,87 1 

Purchases of electricity 25,988,200 25,984,245 3,955 

Electric sales tax 2,573,300 2,572,686 614 
Total 34,346,300 34,019,521 326,779 

Debt service 
Principal retirement 516,000 516,000 

Interest 122,900 122,80 1 99 

Total debt service 638,900 638 ,80 1 99 

Capital outlay 4,678,622 4,214,238 464,384 

Total expenditures 39,663,822 38,872,560 79 1,262 

Revenues over (under) expenses 250,678 2,035,385 1,784,707 

2018 

Actual 

33 ,80 1,097 
39,275 

74,547 
33,9 14,919 

2,3 58,578 
1,757,849 

145 ,997 
186,444 

4,448,868 

38,363,787 

52,509 
38,416,296 

3,480,198 
1,282,080 

24,260,452 
2,372,391 

31,395, 121 

498 ,000 
140,833 
638,833 

4,642,847 
36,676,80 1 

1,739,495 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET EXPEN DITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 12 2019 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Ne~ative) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Electric Substation Project $ (1 ,200,000) $ (1,200,000) $ $ 

Contingency (85,000) 85,000 
Appropriated fund balance 1,034,322 (1,034,322) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (250,678) (1,200,000) (949,322) 
Revenues and other sources under 
expenditures and other uses $ 835,385 $ 835,385 

Reconciliation from budgetary basis 
(modified accrual) to full accrual: 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 4,2 14,238 
Depreciation (2,608,624) 
Payment of debt principal 516,000 
!ntrafund transfers 1,200,000 
[nerease in accrued vacation and compensatory pay (8,476) 
Decrease in accrued interest 2,348 
!ncrease/(decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions 318,958 
(lncrease)/decrease in net pension liability (402,800) 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 17,094 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources - OPES 136,949 
(!ncrease)/decrease in deferred inflows of resources - OPES 42,800 
(!ncrease)/decrease in net OPEB liability (373,334) 

Electric substation project 
Investment earnings 89,290 

Net income $ 3,979,828 $ 

2018 

Actual 

(2 ,394,419) 

(2,394,4 19) 

(654,924) 

4,642,847 
(2,530,444) 

498,000 
2,394,41 9 

(16, 127) 
2,266 

(227,236) 
207,941 

13,923 
57,687 

(226, 129) 
39,008 

41 ,279 
4,242,510 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC OPERATIONS 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (Non-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 12 2019 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Nei\ative) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers ill (out) 

Electric Substation Proj ect $ (1,200,000) $ (1,200,000) $ $ 

Contingency (85,000) 85,000 
Appropriated fund balance 1,034,322 (1,034,322) 

Total other financing sources (uses) (250,678) (1,200,000) (949,322) 
Revenues and other sources under 
expenditures and other uses $ 835,385 $ 835,385 

Reconciliation from budgetary basis 
(modified accrual) to full accrual: 

Reconciling items: 
Capital outlay 4,214,238 
Depreciation (2,608,624) 
Payment of debt princ ipal 516,000 
lntrafund transfers 1,200,000 
Increase in accrued vacation and compensatory pay (8,476) 
Decrease in accrued interest 2,348 
lncrease/(decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions 318,958 
(Increase)/decrease in net pension liability (402,800) 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 17,094 
Increase in deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 136,949 
(lnereasel/deerease in deferred inflows of resources - OPEB 42,800 
(lnerease)/deerease in net OPEB liabili ty (373 ,334) 

Electric substation project 
Investment earnings 89,290 

Net income $ 3,979,8 28 $ 

2018 

Actual 

(2,394,419) 

(2,394,4 19) 

(654,924) 

4,642,847 
(2,530,444) 

498 ,000 
2,394,41 9 

(16,127) 
2,266 

(227,236) 
207,941 

13,923 
57,687 

(226,129) 
39,008 

41,279 
4,242,510 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER AND SEWER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 13 2019 2018 
Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Ne~ative) Actual 

REVENUES 
Operating revenues 

Charges for services $ 16,671,300 $ 16,477,807 $ (193,493) $ 15 ,570,135 

Other operating revenues 
Water and sewer taps 330,000 507,825 177,825 481,590 
Water tank rentals 180,000 176,159 (3,841) 171,119 
Miscellaneous 52,500 245,618 193,118 37,554 

Total other operating revenues 562,500 929,602 367,102 690,263 
Total operating revenues 17,233,800 17,407,409 173,609 16,260,398 

Nonoperating revenues: 
Investment earnings 85,000 315,513 230,513 138,619 
Sale of capital assets 25,000 131,591 106,59 1 63,354 

Total nonoperating revenues 110,000 447, 104 337,104 201,973 
Total revenues 17,343,800 17,854,513 510,713 16,462,371 

EXPENDITURES 
Water & Sewer Administration 

Personnel services 1,897,400 1,899,681 (2,281 ) 143,062 
Operations and maintenance 627,352 463,261 164,09 1 207,126 

Total 2,524,752 2,362,942 161,810 350,188 

Sewer Treatment 
Personnel services 956,600 935,629 20,971 823,819 
Operations and maintenance 1,051,156 809,411 241,745 868,903 
Contracted treatment services 1,730,000 1,801,028 (71,028) 1,548,603 

Total 3,737,756 3,546,068 191 ,688 3,241,325 

Sewer Maintenance 
Personnel services 1,200,100 850,465 349,635 1,687,543 
Operations and maintenance 1,804,732 1,008,509 796,223 823,993 

Total 3,004,832 1,858,974 1,145,858 2,511,536 

\Vater Treatment 
Operations and maintenance 265,000 77,569 187,431 230,714 
Water purchases 2,045,500 1,710,932 334,568 1,806,314 

Total 2,310,500 1,788,50 1 521 ,999 2,037,028 

Water Maintenance 
Personnel services 1,40 1,400 1,271,918 129,482 1,973,435 
Operations and maintenance 1,412,565 1,097,260 315,305 763,463 

Total 2,813,965 2,369,178 444,787 2,736,898 

Debt service 
lnterest 1,614,500 1,614,294 206 1,665,416 
Principal retirement 2,339,500 2,339,444 56 2,379,869 

Total debt service 3,954,000 3,953,738 262 4,045,285 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER AND SEWER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the Year Ended J une 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 13 2019 2018 
Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Ne~ative) Actual 
REVENUES 

Operating revenues 
Charges for services $ 16,67 1,300 $ 16,477,807 $ (193,493) $ 15,570,135 

Other operating revenues 
Water and sewer taps 330,000 507,825 177,825 481,590 
Water tank rentals 180,000 176,159 (3,841) 171,119 
Miscellaneous 52,500 245,618 193,118 37,554 

Total other operating revenues 562,500 929,602 367,102 690,263 
Total operating revenues 17,233,800 17,407,409 173,609 16,260,398 

Nonoperating revenues: 
[nvestment earnings 85,000 315,513 230,513 138,619 
Sale of capital assets 25,000 131,591 106,591 63,354 

Total nonoperating revenues 110,000 447,104 337,104 201,973 
Total revenues 17,343,800 17,854,513 510,713 16,462,371 

EXPENDITURES 
Water & Sewer Administration 

Personnel services 1,897,400 1,899,681 (2,281 ) 143,062 
Operations and maintenance 627,352 463,261 164,091 207,126 

Total 2,524,752 2,362,942 161,8 10 350, 188 

Sewer Treatment 
Personnel services 956,600 935,629 20,971 823,819 
Operations and maintenance 1,051,156 809,411 241,745 868,903 
Contracted treatment services 1,730,000 1,801,028 (71,028) 1,548,603 

Total 3,737,756 3,546,068 191,688 3,241,325 

Sewer Maintenance 
Personnel services 1,200,100 850,465 349,635 1,687,543 
Operations and maintenance 1,804,732 1,008,509 796,223 823,993 

Total 3,004,832 1,858,974 1,145,858 2,511,536 

\Vater Treatment 
Operations and maintenance 265,000 77,569 187,43 1 230,714 
Water purchases 2,045,500 1,710,932 334,568 1,806,314 

Total 2,310,500 1,788,501 521,999 2,037,028 

Water Maintenance 
Personnel services 1,40 1,400 1,271,918 129,482 1,973,435 
Operations and maintenance 1,412,565 1,097,260 315,305 763,463 

Total 2,813,965 2,369,178 444,787 2,736,898 

Debt service 
lnterest 1,614,500 1,614,294 206 1,665,416 
Principal retirement 2,339,500 2,339,444 56 2,379,869 

Total debt service 3,954,000 3,953,738 262 4,045,285 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER AND SEWER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the Yea r Ended JUDe 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 13 2019 2018 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Capital outlay 
Water/Sewer admini stration $ 65,000 $ 62,498 $ 2,502 $ 
Sewer treatment 721,579 663,433 58,146 223,976 
Sewer maintenance 309,312 305,039 4,273 680,683 
Water maintenance 993,000 964,022 28,978 768,327 
Water treatment 389,920 396,366 (6,446) 30,804 

Total capital outlay 2,478,811 2,391,358 87,453 1,703,790 
Total expenditures 20,824,616 18,270,759 2,553,857 16,626,050 

Revenues over (under) expenditures (3,480,816) (416,246) 3,064,570 (163,679) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in I(out) 

Water/Sewer Reserves 19,794,923 19,794,923 2,347,652 
Water/Sewer Proj ect Fund (2,315,225) (2,315,225) (500,000) 

Fund balance appropriated 762,717 (762,717) 

Contingency (103,500) 103,500 
Total other fmancing sources (uses) 18,138,915 17,479,698 (659,217) 1,847,652 

SPECIAL ITEM 
Legal settlement ( 14,658,099) (14,658,099) 

Revenues and other sources (uses) over 
expenditures and special item $ 2,405,353 $ 2,405,353 1,683,973 

Reconciliation from budgetary basis (modifi ed accrual) 
to full accrual: 
Capital outlay 2,391,358 1,703,790 
Capital contributions 3,394,390 16,500,445 
Intrafund transfers (17,479,698) ( 1,847,652) 

Depreciation (10,648,851) (9,7 17,197) 
(Increase)/decrease in accrued interest (19,681) 4,490 
Amortization of premiums on bonds issued 74,237 74,237 
Payment of debt principal 2,339,444 2,379,869 
Increasel(decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions 399,242 (300,782) 
(Increase)/decrease in net pension liability (504,188) 275,241 
Decrease in deferred inflows of resources - pensions 21,397 18,430 
Disposition of capital assets (72,810) (24,627) 
Increase in accrued vacation pay (28,264) (1,462) 
Increase in deferred outflows - OPEB 146,633 64,460 
Increase/(decrease) in deferred inflows - OPEB 53,851 (252,682) 
(Increase)/decrease in net OPEB liabil ity (416,778) 43,589 
Water/Sewer Capital Project Fund 

Interest income 168,865 109,418 
Waste Water Treatment Plant Capital Project Fund 

Interest income 36,823 22,275 

Capital Reserve Funds 
Capacity fees 347,665 3,214,570 

Acreage fees 248,597 
Capital reimbursement fees 10,484,935 17,899,401 
Interest income 742,074 330,238 
Miscel laneous 4,212 

Net Income $ (6,159,791) $ 32,428,621 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER AND SEWER FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the Yenr Ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 3D, 2018 

Schedule 13 2019 2018 
Variance 
Positive 

Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Capital outlay 
Water/Sewer administration $ 65,000 $ 62,498 $ 2,502 $ 
Sewer treatment 72 1,579 663,433 58, 146 223,976 
Sewer maintenance 309,312 305,039 4,273 680,683 
Water maintenance 993,000 964,022 28,978 768,327 
Water treatment 389,920 396,366 (6,446) 30,804 

Total capital outlay 2,478,8 11 2,391,358 87,453 1,703,790 
Total expenditures 20,824,616 18,270,759 2,553,857 16,626,050 

Revenues over (under) ex.penditures (3,480,816) (416,246) 3,064,570 (163,679) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in I(out) 

Water/Sewer Reserves 19,794,923 19,794,923 2,347,652 
Water/Sewer Project Fund (2,315,225) (2,3 15,225) (500,000) 

Fund balance appropriated 762,717 (762,717) 

Contingency (103,500) 103,500 
Total other fmancing sources (uses) 18,138,915 17,479,698 (659,217) 1,847,652 

SPECIAL ITEM 
Legal sett lement ( 14,658,099) (14,658,099) 

Revenues and other sources (uses) over 
expenditures and special item $ 2,405,353 $ 2,405,353 1,683,973 

Reconcil iation from budgetary basis (modified accrual) 
to full accrual: 
Capital outlay 2,391,358 1,703,790 
Capital contributions 3,394,390 16,500,445 
Intrafund transfers (17,479,698) ( 1,847,652) 
Depreciation (10,648,851) (9,717, 197) 
(Increase)/decrease in accrued interest (19,681) 4,490 
Amortization of premiums on bonds issued 74,237 74,237 
Payment of debt principal 2,339,444 2,379,869 
Increasel( decrease) in deferred outflows of resources - pensions 399,242 (300,782) 
(Increase)/decrease in net pension liability (504,188) 275,241 
Decrease in deferred in flows of resources - pensions 21,397 18,430 
Disposi tion of capital assets (72,810) (24,627) 
Increase in accrued vacation pay (28,264) (1,462) 
Increase in deferred outfl ows - OPEB 146,633 64,460 
!ncreasel(decrease) in deferred inflows - OPES 53,851 (252,682) 
(!ncrease)/decrease in net OPES liab il ity (416,778) 43,589 
Water/Sewer Capital Project Fund 

Interest income 168,865 109,418 
Waste Water Treatment Plant Capital Project Fund 

Interest income 36,823 22,275 
Capital Reserve Funds 

Capacity fees 347,665 3,214,570 
Acreage fees 248,597 

Capital reimbursement fees 10,484,935 17,899,401 
Interest income 742,074 330,238 
Miscel laneous 4,212 

Net Income $ (6,159,791 ) $ 32,428,621 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC SUBSTATION PROJECT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to June 30, 2019 

Schedule 14 

REVENUES 
lnvestment earnings 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Electric Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

Total other financing sources 

Revenues and other frnancing sources 
over expenditures 

$ 

$ 

Project 
Author -
ization 

73,274 

6,606,000 
6,606,000 

(6,532,726) 

6,424,363 
108,363 

6,532,726 

-

$ 

$ 

Prior 
Years 

98,046 

42 ,7 15 
42,715 

55,331 

3,485,540 
108,363 

3,593,903 

3,649,234 

$ 

$ 

Actual 
Current 

Year 

89,290 

490,000 
490,000 

(400,710) 

1,200,000 

1,200,000 

799,290 

$ 

$ 

Total to 
Date 

187,336 

532,7 15 
532,715 

(345,379) 

4,685,540 
108,363 

4,793,903 

4,448,524 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ELECTRIC SUBSTATION PROJECT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to June 30, 2019 

Schedule 14 

REVENUES 
lnvestment earnings 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over (under) expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Electric Fund 
Water/Sewer Fund 

Total other fmancing sources 

Revenues and other fmancing sources 
over expenditures 

$ 

$ 

Project 
Author -
ization 

73,274 

6,606,000 
6,606,000 

(6,532,726) 

6,424,363 
108,363 

6,532,726 

-

$ 

$ 

Prior 
Years 

98,046 

42,7 15 
42,715 

55,331 

3,485,540 
108,363 

3,593,903 

3,649,234 

$ 

$ 

Actual 
Current 

Year 

89,290 

490,000 
490,000 

(400,710) 

1,200,000 

1,200,000 

799,290 

$ 

$ 

Total to 
Date 

187,336 

532,7 15 
532,715 

(345,379) 

4,685,540 
108,363 

4,793,903 

4,448 ,524 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER/SEWER PROJECT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to June 30, 2019 

Sched ule 15 
Proj ect Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Years Year Date 

REVENUES 
lnvestment earnings $ 260,336 $ 154,609 $ 168,865 $ 323,474 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 21 ,436,061 3,06 1,406 3,398,328 6,459,734 
Bond issuance costs 16,100 60,905 60,905 

Total expenditures 21 ,452,161 3,122,311 3,398,328 6,520,639 

Revenues under expenditures (21 ,19 1,825) (2,967,702) (3,229,463) (6,197, 165) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve 12,86 1,600 10,924,247 1,314,750 12,238,997 
Water/Sewer HE 463 Reserve 5,515,000 
Water/Sewer Fund 2,8 15,225 500,000 2,3 15,225 2,8 15,225 
Total other financing sources 21,191,825 11,424,247 3,629,975 15,054,222 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures $ - $ 8,456,545 $ 400,512 $ 8,857,057 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER/SEWER PROJECT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From lnception to J une 30, 2019 

Sched ule 15 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Years Year Date 

REVENUES 
[nvestment earnings $ 260,336 $ 154,609 $ 168,865 $ 323,474 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 21,436,061 3,06 1,406 3,398,328 6,459,734 
Bond issuance costs 16,100 60,905 60,905 

Total expenditures 21,452,161 3,122,311 3,398,328 6,520,639 

Revenues under expenditures (21,191,825) (2,967,702) (3,229,463) (6,197,165) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve 12,86 1,600 10,924,247 1,314,750 12,238,997 
Water/Sewer HE 463 Reserve 5,515,000 
Water/Sewer Fund 2,815,225 500,000 2,315,225 2,8 15,225 
Total other financing sources 21,191,825 11,424,247 3,629,975 15,054,222 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over expenditures $ - $ 8,456,545 $ 400,512 $ 8,857,057 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT PROJECT FUND 

SCHEDUL E OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACT UAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to June 30, 2019 

Scbedule 16 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Years Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings $ 150,000 $ 338,910 $ 36,823 $ 375,733 
Miscel laneous 404 404 

Total revenues 150,000 339,314 36,823 376,137 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 241,000 66, 152 88,440 154,592 

Revenues under expenditures (9 1,000) 273 ,1 62 (51,6 17) 22 1,545 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve 91,000 1,663,566 1,663,566 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over (under) expenditures $ - $ 1,936,728 $ (51 ,617) $ 1,885,111 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WASTEWATER T REATMENT PLANT PROJECT FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 
From Inception to June 30, 2019 

Scbedule 16 
Project Actual 

Author - Prior Current Total to 
ization Years Year Date 

REVENUES 
Investment earnings $ 150,000 $ 338,910 $ 36,823 $ 375,733 
Miscellaneous 404 404 

Total revenues 150,000 339,314 36,823 376,137 

EXPENDITURES 
Capital outlay - improvements 24 1,000 66, 152 88,440 154,592 

Revenues under expenditures (9 1,000) 273, 162 (51,617) 22 1,545 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 
Transfers in 

Water/Sewer Capital Reserve 91,000 1,663,566 1,663,566 

Revenues and other financing sources 
over (under) expenditures $ - $ 1,936,728 $ (5 1,6 17) $ 1,885, 111 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER/SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the year ended J une 30, 201 9 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 17 
2019 2018 

Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Negative) Actual 

REVENUES 
Capacity fees $ $ 347,665 $ 347,665 $ 3,2 14,570 

Capital reimbursement fees 6 12,000 1,301,8 14 689,8 14 17,899,401 

Acreage fees 248,597 

Miscellaneous 4,212 4,212 

Investment earnings 144,000 678,459 534,459 330,238 
Total revenues 756,000 2,33 2,150 1,576, 150 2 1,692,806 

EXPENDITURES 

Revenues over expendittues 756,000 2,332,150 1,576, 150 21,692,806 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Water/Sewer Fund (15,597,073) (15,597,073) (2,347,652) 

Water/Sewer Project Fund ( 1,639,750) (1,314,750) 325,000 (3,428,000) 
Fund Balance Appropriated 16,480,823 (16,480,823) 

Total other flnancing sources (uses) (756,000) (16,9 11,823) (16,155,823) (5,775,652) 

Net change in fund balance $ (14,579,673) $ (14,579,673) 15,917,154 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 35,657,607 19,740,453 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 21 ,077,934 $ 35,657,607 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER/SEWER CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the year ended June 30, 201 9 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Schedule 17 
2019 2018 

Variance 
Positive 

Bud~et Actual (Negative) Actual 

REVENUES 
Capacity fees $ $ 347,665 $ 347,665 $ 3,214,570 

Capital reimbursement fees 6 12,000 1,301,814 689,8 14 17,899,40 1 

Acreage fees 248,597 

Miscellaneous 4,212 4,212 

Investment earnings 144,000 678,459 534,459 330,238 
Total revenues 756,000 2,332,150 1,576, 150 21,692,806 

EXPENDITURES 

Revenues over expenditures 756,000 2,332,150 1,576, 150 21,692,806 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in (out) 

Water/Sewer Fund (15,597,073) ( 15,597,073) (2,347,652) 

Water/Sewer Project Fund (1,639,750) (1,314,750) 325,000 (3,428,000) 
Fund Balance Appropriated 16,480,823 ( 16,480,823) 

Total other flnancing sources (uses) (756,000) (16,911 ,823) (16, 155,823) (5,775,652) 

Net change in fund balance $ (14,579,673) $ (14,579,673) 15,917,154 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 35,657,607 19,740,453 

FUND BALANCE - End of year $ 21,077,934 $ 35,657,607 
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Schedule 18 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER/SEWER HB 463 CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

2019 
Variance 

REVENUES 
Capital reimbursement fees 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers out 

Water/Sewer Fund 
Water/Sewer Project Fund 
Total other financing uses 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - End of year 

$ 

Budget 

4,622,100 
36,000 

4,658, 100 

4,658, 100 

(4,197,850) 
(460,250) 

(4,658,100) 

$ ==== 

Positive 
Actual (Negative) 

$ 9,183,121 $ 4,56 1,021 
63,615 27,615 

9,246,736 4,588,636 

9,246,736 4,588,636 

(4, 197,850) 
460,250 

(4,197,850) 460,250 

5,048 ,886 $ =~5;f,0~4~8 ,~8;;;86::" 

$ =~5;f,0~4,;;:8,:;;;88~6;,. 

2018 

Actual 

$ 

$ ===..,;,. 

Schedule 18 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
WATER/SEWER HB 463 CAPITAL RESERVE FUND 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP) 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 
With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 

2019 
Variance 

REVENUES 
Capital reimbursement fees 
Investment earnings 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Revenues over expenditures 

OTHER FINANCING USES 
Transfers oU( 

Water/Sewer Fund 
Water/Sewer Project Fund 
Total other financing uses 

Net change in fund balance 

FUND BALANCE - Beginning of year 

FUND BALANCE - End of year 

$ 

Budget 

4,622,100 
36,000 

4,658 , I 00 

4,658, 100 

(4,197,850) 
(460,250) 

(4,658,100) 

$==== 

Positive 
Actual (Negative) 

$ 9,183 ,12 1 $ 4,561,021 
63,6 15 27,615 

9,246,736 4,588,636 

9,246,736 4,588,636 

(4,197,850) 
460,250 

(4,197,850) 460,250 

5,048,886 $ ===5:!;,0=4~8 ,!:8 8~6~ 

$ ===5;;l,,0;;,;4;;;8 ;;;,8~86~ 

2018 

Actual 

$ 

$ ===...;,. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

HEALTH AND DENTAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN NET POSITION - FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (Non - GAAP) 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

Schedule 19 
2019 2018 

Variance 
Financial Positive 

Plan Actual (Negative) Actual 

REVENUES 
Health premiums $ 3,958,166 $ 3,938,889 $ (19,277) $ 3,76 1,553 
Dental premiums 247,048 238,128 (8,920) 278,841 
Employee health contributions 939,965 884,450 (55,515) 877,656 
Employee dental contributions 178,660 142,545 (36,115) 165,373 
Employee vision contributions 56,188 60,804 4,616 

Retiree health contributions 78,839 78,839 

Total revenues 5,380,027 5,343,655 (36,372) 5,083,423 

EXPENDITURES 
Health claims-employees 3,652,643 3,213,945 438,698 3,700,763 
Dental claims-employees 332,731 339,513 (6,782) 366,116 
Administrative fees-employees 667,226 661,535 5,69 1 662,695 
Health claims-retiree 636,980 397,229 239,751 585,640 

Dental claims-retiree 3,375 8,536 (5,161) 4,677 
Administrative fees· retiree 30,884 65,462 (34,578) 82,478 
Administrative fees-vision 56, 188 54,801 1,387 

Total expenditures 5,380,027 4,741,021 639,006 5,402,369 

Revenues over expenditures $ 602,634 $ 602,634 (318,946) 

Reconciliation from financial plan basis 
(modified accr ual) to full accrual: 

Reconciling items: 
(Increase) decrease in reserve for incurred 

but not reported ("ffiNR") claims 333,052 (199,520) 

Change in net position $ 935,686 $ (518,466) 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND 

HEALTH AND DENTAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN NET POSITION - FINANCIAL PLAN AND ACTUAL (Non - GAAP) 
For the year ended June 30, 2019 

With comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 20 18 

Scbedule 19 
2019 2018 

Variance 
Financial Positive 

Plan Actual (Negative) Actual 
REVENUES 

Health premiums $ 3,958,166 $ 3,938,889 $ (19,277) $ 3,76 1,553 
Dental premiums 247,048 238, 128 (8,920) 278,84 1 
Employee health contributions 939,965 884,450 (55,5 15) 877,656 
Employee dental contributions 178,660 142,545 (36, 11 5) 165,373 
Employee vision contributions 56,188 60,804 4,6 16 
Retiree health contributions 78,839 78,839 

Total revenues 5,380,027 5,343,655 (36,372) 5,083,423 

EXPENDITURES 
Healtb claims-employees 3,652,643 3,213,945 438,698 3,700,763 
Dental claims-employees 332,73 1 339,513 (6,782) 366, 11 6 
Administrative fees-employees 667,226 661 ,535 5,69 1 662,695 
Health claims-retiree 636,980 397,229 239,75 1 585,640 
Dental claims-retiree 3,375 8,536 (5 ,161) 4,677 
Administrative fees-retiree 30,884 65,462 (34,578) 82,478 
Administrative fees-vision 56,188 54,801 1,387 

Total expenditures 5,380,027 4,741 ,02 1 639,006 5,402,369 

Revenues over expenditures $ 602,634 $ 602,634 (3 18,946) 

Reconciliation from frnanciai plan basis 
(modified accrual) to full accrual: 

Reconciling items: 
(Increase) decrease in reserve for incurred 

but not reported ("ffiNR") claims 333,052 (199,520) 

Change in net position $ 935,686 $ (518,466) 
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Schedule 20 

Fiscal Year 

20 18-20 19 $ 
20 17-20 18 
20 16-2017 
2015-2016 
20 14-20 15 
2013-20 14 
2012-2013 
20 11-20 12 
20 I 0-20 II 
2009-2010 
2008-2009 

$ 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE 
June 30, 2019 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 2018 Additions 

$ 29,496,802 
35,051 
15,489 
12,573 
10,635 
16,740 
10,053 
8,511 
9,926 

10,759 
18,385 

148, 122 $ 29,496,802 

Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts 

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net 

Reconciliation with revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 

Reconciling items: 
Less: Penalties and interest 
Add: Adjustments and releases 

Total collections and credits 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Collections, 
Adjustments 
and Releases 

29,465,485 
16,5 10 
6,054 
2,915 

130 
177 
34 1 

97 
II 

51 8 
18,385 

29,510,623 

29,525,234 

(35,195) 

20,584 

$ ==2",9,=51=0",,6;;;23= 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 2019 

$ 31,3 17 
18,54 1 
9,435 
9,658 

10,505 
16,563 
9,7 12 
8,4 14 
9,9 15 

10,241 

134,301 

103,475 

$ 30,826 

Schedule 20 

Fiscal Year 

20 18-20 19 $ 
20 17-20 18 
20 16-20 17 
20 15-20 16 
20 14-20 15 
20 13-20 14 
20 12-20 13 
20 11-20 12 
20 10-20 11 
2009-20 10 
2008-2009 

$ 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL FUND 

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE 
June 30, 2019 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 20 18 Additions 

$ 29,496,802 
35,05 1 
15,489 
12,573 
10,635 
16,740 
10,053 
8,511 
9,926 

10,759 
18,385 

148, 122 $ 29,496,802 

Less: Allowance fo r uncollectible accounts 

Ad valorem taxes receivable - net 

Reconci liation with revenues: 

Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 
Reconciling items: 

Less: Penalties and interest 
Add: Adjustments and releases 

Total collections and credits 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Collections, 
Adjustments 
and Releases 

29,465,485 
16,5 10 
6,054 
2,9 15 

130 
177 
34 1 

97 
II 

518 
18,385 

29,51 0,623 

29,525,234 

(35,195) 
20,584 

$ =,,;;2~9 'o;,5 1;,;;0~,6;;;2 3~ 

Uncollected 
Balance 

June 30, 20 19 

$ 31 ,3 17 
18,54 1 
9,435 
9,658 

10,505 
16,563 
9,7 12 
8,4 14 
9,9 15 

10,241 

134,30 1 

103,475 

$ 30,826 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ANALYS[S OF CURRENT TAX LEVY 

For the Year Ended J une 30, 2019 

Schedule 21 
Total Levy 

Property 
excluding 

Town- Wide Registered Registered 
Property Total Motor Motor 
Valuation Rate Le~ Vehicles Vehicles 

Original levy: 
Property taxed at current rate $ 7, 105,78 1,687 0.415 $ 29,488,994 27,031,583 $ 2,457,411 
Penalties 22,007 22,007 

Total 7, 105,781,687 29 ,5 11,00 1 27,053,590 2,457,41 1 

Discoveries: 
Prior year taxes 83,260 83 ,260 

Total 7,105,781,687 29,594,26 1 27,136,850 2,457,411 

Abatements (23 ,484,096) 0.4 15 (97,459) (97,459) 

Total property valuation $ 7,082,297,591 

Net levy 29,496,802 27,039,391 2,457,411 

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2019 3 1,317 19,095 12,222 

Current year's taxes collected $ 29,465,485 $ 27,020,296 $ 2,445,189 

Current levy collection percentage 99.9% 99.9% 99.5% 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ANALYS[S OF CURRENT TAX LEVY 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2019 

Schedule 21 
Total Levy 

Property 
excluding 

Town- Wide Registered Registered 
Property Total Motor Motor 
Valuation Rate Le::::l:: Vehicles Vehicles 

Original levy: 
Property taxed at current rate $ 7, 105,78 1,687 00415 $ 29,488,994 27,031,583 $ 2,457,4 11 

Penalties 22,007 22,007 

Total 7, 105,78 1,687 29,5 11 ,00 1 27,053,590 2,457,4 11 

Discoveries: 
Prior year taxes 83 ,260 83,260 

Total 7, 105,78 1,687 29,594,26 1 27,136,850 2,457,4 11 

Abatements (23 ,484,096) 004 15 (97,459) (97,459) 

Total property valuation $ 7,082,297,59 1 

Net levy 29,496,802 27,039,39 1 2,457,4 11 

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2019 3 1,3 17 19,095 12,222 

Current year's taxes collected $ 29,465,485 $ 27,020,296 $ 2,445, 189 

Current levy collection percentage 99.9% 99 .9% 99.5% 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

AND MATURITY SCHEDULE 
June 30, 2019 

Sched ule 22 

UTILITIES OTHER TOTAL 

Principal Principal Principal 
Fiscal and and and 
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2019-2020 9 15,000 2,021 ,875 1,775,000 2,937,013 2,690,000 4,958,888 
2020-202 1 980,000 2,04 1,125 1,780,000 2,875,150 2,760,000 4,9 16,275 
2021-2022 1,045,000 2,086,525 1,780,000 2,807,532 2,825,000 4,894,057 
2022-2023 1,115,000 2,135,625 1,780,000 2,739,000 2,895,000 4,874,625 
2023-2024 1,185,000 2,161,025 1,790,000 2,687,913 2,975,000 4,848,938 
2024-2025 1,260,000 2, 176,775 1,785,000 2,620,850 3,045,000 4,797,625 
2025-2026 1,340,000 2,193,775 1,580,000 2,353,250 2,920,000 4,547,025 
2026-2027 1,420,000 2,233,575 1,585,000 2,288,500 3,005,000 4,522,075 
2027-2028 1,575,000 2,345,975 1,590,000 2,223,500 3,165,000 4,569,475 
2028-2029 1,665,000 2,388 ,725 1,765,000 2,336,425 3,430,000 4,725,150 
2029-2030 1,760,000 2,433,775 1,620,000 2,134,8 19 3,380,000 4,568,594 
2030-203 1 1,855,000 2,475,975 1,620,000 2,086,219 3,475,000 4,562,194 
203 1-2032 1,955,000 2,50 1,775 1,805,000 2,222,619 3,760,000 4,724,394 
2032-2033 2,080,000 2,548,575 2,035,000 2,398,469 4,115,000 4,947,044 
2033-2034 2, 185,000 2,570,375 1,905,000 2,207,419 4,090,000 4,777,794 
2034-2035 2,740,000 3,037,975 1,905,000 2, 147,888 4,645,000 5,185,863 
2035-2036 2,740,000 2,928 ,375 1,905,000 2,088,356 4,645,000 5,016,73 1 
2036-2037 2,740,000 2,835 ,900 1,905,000 2,028,825 4,645,000 4,864,725 
2037-2038 1,905,000 1,966,913 1,905,000 1,966,913 

$ 30,555,000 $ 43,117,725 $ 33,815,000 $ 45,150,660 $ 64,370,000 $ 88,268,385 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS 

AND MATURITY SCHEDULE 
June 30, 20 19 

Schedule 22 

UTILITIES OTHER TOTAL 

Principal Principal Principal 
Fiscal and and and 
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest 

2019-2020 915,000 2,02 1,875 1,775,000 2,937,013 2,690,000 4,958,888 
2020-202 1 980,000 2,04 1,125 1,780,000 2,875,150 2,760,000 4,9 16,275 
202 1-2022 1,045 ,000 2,086,525 1,780,000 2,807,532 2,825,000 4,894,057 
2022-2023 1, 11 5,000 2,135,625 1,780,000 2,739,000 2,895,000 4,874,625 
2023-2024 1,185,000 2,16 1,025 1,790,000 2,687,9 13 2,975,000 4,848,938 
2024-2025 1,260,000 2, 176,775 1,785,000 2,620,850 3,045,000 4,797,625 
2025-2026 1,340,000 2, 193,775 1,580,000 2,353,250 2,920,000 4,547,025 
2026-2027 1,420,000 2,233,575 1,585,000 2,288,500 3,005,000 4,522,075 
2027-2028 1,575,000 2,345,975 1,590,000 2,223,500 3,165,000 4,569,475 
2028-2029 1,665,000 2,388 ,725 1,765,000 2,336,425 3,430,000 4,725, 150 
2029-2030 1,760,000 2,433,775 1,620,000 2, 134,819 3,380,000 4,568,594 
2030-203 1 1,855,000 2,475,975 1,620,000 2,086,219 3,475,000 4,562, 194 
203 1-2032 1,955,000 2,50 1,775 1,805,000 2,222,619 3,760,000 4,724,394 
2032-2033 2,080,000 2,548,575 2,035,000 2,398,469 4, 115,000 4,947,044 
2033-2034 2, 185,000 2,570,375 1,905,000 2,207,4 19 4,090,000 4,777,794 
2034-2035 2,740,000 3,037,975 1,905,000 2, 147,888 4,645,000 5,185,863 
2035-2036 2,740,000 2,928,375 1,905,000 2,088,356 4,645,000 5,0 16,73 1 
2036-2037 2,740,000 2,835,900 1,905,000 2,028,825 4,645,000 4,864,725 
2037-2038 1,905,000 1,966,9 13 1,905,000 1,966,9 13 

$ 30,555,000 $ 43, 11 7,725 $ 33,8 15,000 $ 45,150,660 $ 64,370,000 $ 88,268,385 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the Town of Apex's comprehensive annual financial report presents 
detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the 
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information 
says about the Town's overall financial health. 

Financial Trends - Tables 1 - 5 
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand 
how the Town's financial performance and well-being have changed 
over time. 

Revenue Capacity - Tables 6 - 9 
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the Town's 
most significant revenue sources, property taxes and electric sales. 

Debt Capacity - Tables 10 - 13 
These tables present" information to help the reader assess the afforda­
bility of the Town's current levels of outstanding debt and its ability to 
issue additional debt in the future. 

Demographic and Economic Information - Tables 14 - 15 
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 
reader understand the environment within which the Town's financial 
activities take place. 

Operating Information - Tables 16 - 18 
These tables contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader 
understand how the information in the Town's financial report relates 
to the services it provides and the activities it performs. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
Table 1 

20 10 20 11 20 12 20 13 2014 20 15 20 16 20 17 20 18 20 19 

Governmental activities 
Net investment in capi tal assets $ 139,181 $ 138,025 $ 145,697 $ 146,483 $ 150,821 $ 172,23 1 $ 208,352 $ 298,896 $ 383,833 $ 446,504 
Restricted 1,076 4,138 4,019 5,25 1 7,352 6,090 10,486 8,279 10,340 11,128 
Unrestri cted 18,11 8 15,810 14,16 1 15,473 14,699 14,2 16 13,406 17,797 13,270 14,30 1 

Total governmental activities net position $ 158,375 $ 157,973 $ 163,877 $ 167,207 $ 172,872 $ 192,537 $ 232,244 $ 324,972 $ 407,443 $ 471,933 

Business-type activities 
Net in vestment in capital assets $ 104,584 $ 104,380 $ 102,749 $ 104,939 $ 135,200 $ 147,820 $ 18 1,185 $ 202,626 $ 220,327 $ 225,236 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 48,354 53,767 62,759 65,281 46,298 46,393 44,345 49,435 66,894 59,682 

Total business-type activi ties net position $ 152,938 $ 158,147 $ 165,508 $ 170,220 $ 181,498 $ 194,213 $ 225,530 $ 252,06 1 $ 287,22 1 $ 284,918 

Primary government 

Net investment in capital assets $ 243,765 $ 242,405 $ 248,446 $ 25 1,422 $ 286,02 1 $ 320,05 1 $ 389,537 $ 501,522 $ 604,160 $ 671,740 
Restricted 1,076 4,138 4,019 5,25 1 7,352 6,090 10,486 8,279 10,340 11,128 
Unrestricted 66,472 69,577 76,920 80,754 60,997 60,609 57,751 67,232 80, 164 73,983 

Total primary government net position $ 3 11 ,3 13 $ 316, 120 $ 329,385 $ 337,427 $ 354,370 $ 386,750 $ 457,774 $ 577,033 $ 694,664 $ 756,85 1 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

Last Ten Fiscal Yean 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
Table 1 

20 10 20 11 20 12 20 13 2014 20 15 20 16 20 17 20 18 20 19 

Governmental activities 
Net investment in capi tal assets $ 139,18 1 $ 138,025 $ 145,697 $ 146,483 $ 150,821 $ 172,23 1 $ 208,352 $ 298,896 $ 383,833 $ 446,504 
Restricted 1,076 4,138 4,019 5,25 1 7,352 6,090 10,486 8,279 10,340 11,128 
Unrestricted 18, 11 8 15,810 14,16 1 15,473 14,699 14,2 16 13,406 17,797 13,270 14,301 

Total governmental activities net position $ 158,375 $ 157,973 $ 163,877 $ 167,207 $ 172,872 $ 192,537 $ 232,244 $ 324,972 $ 407,443 $ 471,933 

Business-type activities 
Net investment in capital assets $ 104,584 $ 104,380 $ 102,749 $ 104,939 $ 135,200 $ 147,820 $ 18 1,185 $ 202,626 $ 220,327 $ 225,236 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 48,354 53,767 62,759 65,28 1 46,298 46,393 44,345 49,435 66,894 59,682 

Total business-type activiti es net position $ 152,938 $ 158,147 $ 165,508 $ 170,220 $ 181,498 $ 194,213 $ 225,530 $ 252,06 1 $ 287,22 1 $ 284,918 

Primary government 

Net investment in cap ital assets $ 243,765 $ 242,405 $ 248,446 $ 25 1,422 $ 286,021 $ 320,05 1 $ 389,537 $ 501,522 $ 604,160 $ 671,740 
Restricted 1,076 4,138 4,019 5,25 1 7,352 6,090 10,486 8,279 10,340 11,128 
Unrestricted 66,472 69,577 76,920 80,754 60,997 60,609 57,751 67,232 80, 164 73,983 

Total primary government net position $ 3 11 ,3 13 $ 316, 120 $ 329,385 $ 337,427 $ 354,370 $ 386,750 $ 457,774 $ 577,033 $ 694,664 $ 756,85 1 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
Table 2 

2010 2011 2012 20 13 2014 20 15 20 16 20 17 20 18 20 19 
Expenses 
Governmental activities 

General government $ 7,042 $ 7,380 $ 7,987 $ 7,941 $ 8,76 1 5 9,235 $ 9,851 $ 10,069 $ 10,584 $ 11 ,746 
Public Safety 10,97 1 11,994 12,878 13,836 14,692 15,491 16,623 19,644 2 1,076 21,019 
Public Works 5,9 17 6,427 7,023 7,350 6,644 8,854 8,697 13,24 1 16,523 18,984 
Environmental Protection 3,097 3,163 3,304 3,270 3,532 3,794 4,006 3,394 3,642 4,147 
Culture and recreation 3,551 3,786 3,963 4,272 4,3 81 4,811 5,336 5,519 5,750 6,395 
Interest on long-tenn debt 1,083 935 862 9 17 974 944 822 764 1,073 1,510 

Total governmental activities expenses 3 1,66 1 33,685 36,017 37,586 38,984 43,129 45,335 52,631 58,648 63,80 1 
Business-type activities 

Water and Sewer 11 ,462 11 ,124 11,473 13,304 14,196 15,498 18,485 20, 140 22,334 24,462 
Electric 26,702 27,223 28,330 28,335 29,530 31,674 31, 179 34,154 34,215 37,018 

Total business-type activities expenses 38, 164 38,347 39,803 41,639 43,726 47,172 49,664 54,294 56,549 61,480 
Total primary government expenses $ 69,825 $ 72,032 $ 75,820 $ 79,225 $ 82,710 $ 90,301 $ 94,999 $ 106,925 $ 115, 197 $ 125,281 

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities 

Charges for services: 
General government $ 559 $ 9 18 5 89 1 $ 1,218 $ 1,840 $ 2,557 $ 3,501 $ 4,960 $ 5,638 $ 5,080 

Public Safety ( I ) 275 1,020 51 14 14 II 15 17 12 
Culture and recreation 616 858 1,097 1,706 1,553 2,324 323 4,892 5,149 4,539 
Public Works 30 1 169 299 228 398 636 2,953 1,487 1,152 220 
Environmental Protection 2,340 2,389 2,465 2,574 2,683 2,814 3,029 3,351 3,629 4,193 

Operating grants and contributions 1,276 1,168 2,315 3,189 2,897 3,008 3,073 3,773 4,276 2,865 

Capital grants and contributions 4,555 4,277 10,174 5,074 6,472 23,058 38,469 92,297 98,076 65,952 

Total governmental activities program revenues 9,922 10,799 17,292 14,003 15,857 34,408 51,363 110,777 117,932 82,849 

Business-type activities 
Charges for services: 

Water and Sewer 11 ,106 12,964 28,901 15,797 16,448 12,949 13,374 14,457 16,260 17,408 

Electric 27,5 14 29,686 13 ,809 29,069 31,599 32,646 33,299 36,224 38,364 40,807 

Capital grants and contributions 2,825 805 4,362 2,603 6,478 14,977 34, 12 1 29,850 37,863 14,231 

Total business-type activities program revenues 41 ,445 43,455 47,072 47,469 54,525 60,572 80,794 80,531 92,487 72,446 

Total primary government program revenues $ 51,367 $ 54,254 $ 64,364 $ 61,472 $ 70,382 $ 94,980 $ 132,157 $ 191,308 $ 210,4 19 $ 155,295 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
Table 2 

2010 20 11 20 12 20 13 2014 20 15 20 16 20 17 20 18 20 19 
Expenses 
Governmental activities 

Genera l government $ 7,042 $ 7,380 $ 7,987 $ 7,94 1 $ 8,76 1 $ 9,235 $ 9,85 1 $ 10,069 $ 10,584 $ 11,746 
Public Safety 10,971 11,994 12,878 13,836 14,692 15,491 16,623 19,644 2 1,076 2 1,019 
Public Works 5,9 17 6,427 7,023 7,350 6,644 8,854 8,697 13,24 1 16,523 18,984 
Environmental Protection 3,097 3, 163 3,304 3,270 3,532 3,794 4,006 3,394 3,642 4,147 
Cul ture and recreation 3,55 1 3,786 3,963 4,272 4,381 4,8 11 5,336 5,519 5,750 6,395 
Interest on long-tenn debt 1,083 935 862 9 17 974 944 822 764 1,073 1,510 

Total governmental acti viti es expenses 31,66 1 33,685 36,0 17 37,586 38,984 43, 129 45,335 52,631 58,648 63,801 
Business-type activities 

Water and Sewer 11 ,462 11 , 124 11 ,473 13,304 14,1 96 15,498 18,485 20, 140 22,334 24,462 
Electric 26,702 27,223 28,330 28,335 29,530 3 1,674 31, 179 34, 154 34,215 37,018 

Total business-type activities expenses 38, 164 38,347 39,803 41,639 43,726 47, 172 49,664 54,294 56,549 61,480 
Total primary government expenses $ 69,825 $ 72,032 $ 75,820 $ 79,225 $ 82,7 10 $ 90,30 1 $ 94,999 $ 106,925 $ 11 5,197 $ 125,781 

Program Revenues 

Governmental activiti es 
Charges for services: 

General government $ 559 $ 918 $ 89 1 $ 1,2 18 $ 1,840 $ 2,557 $ 3,501 $ 4,960 $ 5,638 $ 5,080 

Public Safety ( I ) 275 1,020 51 14 14 II 15 17 12 
Culture and recreation 6 16 858 1,097 1,706 1,553 2,324 323 4,892 5,149 4,539 
Public Works 30 1 169 299 228 398 636 2,953 1,487 1, 152 220 
Environmental Protection 2,340 2,389 2,465 2,574 2,683 2,8 14 3,029 3,35 1 3,629 4,193 

Operating grants and contributions 1,276 1,168 2,3 15 3,189 2,897 3,008 3,073 3,773 4,276 2,865 

Capital grants and contributions 4,555 4,277 10, 174 5,074 6,472 23,058 38,469 92,297 98,076 65,952 

Total governmental activities program revenues 9,922 10,799 17,292 14,003 15,857 34,408 5 1,363 11 0,777 117,932 82,849 

Business-type activities 
Charges for services: 

Water and Sewer 11 , 106 12,964 28,90 1 15,797 16,448 12,949 13,374 14,457 16,260 17,408 

Electric 27,5 14 29,686 13 ,809 29,069 3 1,599 32,646 33,299 36,224 38,364 40,807 

Capital grants and contributions 2,825 805 4,362 2,603 6,478 14,977 34, 12 1 29,850 37,863 14,231 

Total business-type activities program revenues 41 ,445 43,455 47,072 47,469 54,525 60,572 80,794 80,53 1 92,487 72,446 

Total primary government program revenues $ 5 1,367 $ 54,254 $ 64,364 $ 61,472 $ 70,382 $ 94,980 $ 132, 157 $ 19 1,308 $ 2 10,4 19 $ 155,295 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLI NA 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

20 10 20 11 20 12 20 13 2014 2015 2016 20 17 2018 2019 

Net (expense)/revenue 

Governmental activities $ (21,739) $ (22,886) $ (18,726) $ (23,583) $ (23,127) $ (8,721) $ 6,028 $ 58, 146 $ 59,293 $ 19,048 
Business-type activiti es 3,28 1 5, 108 7,269 5,830 10,799 13,400 3 1,130 26,237 35,938 10,966 
Total primary government nct expenses $ (18,458) $ (17,778) $ ( 11 ,457) $ (17,753) $ (1 2,328) $ 4,679 $ 37, 158 $ 84,383 $ 95,23 1 $ 30,0 14 

General Revenues and Other Cbanges in 
Net Position 

Governmental activities 
Taxes 

Property taxes 14,475 14,722 15,063 17,837 18,969 19,547 20,676 22,987 24,665 29,498 
Sales taxes 4,843 5,189 6,293 6,665 7,2 19 7,959 8,753 9,407 10, 109 11 ,038 
Motor vehicle licenses 136 136 143 148 202 168 176 329 345 79 1 
Miscellaneous taxes 28 35 36 42 47 5 1 56 65 27 1 82 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 1,996 2,104 2,4 15 2, 122 2, 176 2,859 2,97 1 2,971 3,028 3,26 1 
Investment earnings 89 83 48 53 25 24 95 202 562 1,62 1 
Miscel laneous 1,398 2 14 63 1 375 553 398 364 475 536 475 

Transfers (400) 

Total governmental activities 22,965 22,483 24,629 27,242 28,79 1 3 1,006 33,09 1 36,436 39,5 16 46,766 
Business-type activities 

Investment earnings 187 177 93 11 5 51 7 1 133 264 694 1,453 
Miscellaneous 5 28 10 54 30 39 59 
Transfers 400 

Total business-type activities 187 177 93 120 479 8 1 187 294 733 1,512 
Total primary government $ 23 ,1 52 $ 22,660 $ 24,722 $ 27,362 $ 29 ,270 $ 31,087 $ 33,278 $ 36,730 $ 40,249 $ 48,278 

Special Item: Legal Settlement 

Total governmental activities (699) 

Total business· type activities (14,658) 

Total primary government $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ ( 15,357) 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental activities $ 1,226 $ (403) $ 5,903 $ 3,659 $ 5,664 $ 22,285 $ 39, 11 9 $ 94,582 $ 98,809 $ 65,115 

Business.type activities 3,468 5,285 7,362 5,950 11,278 13,481 31,317 26,53 1 36,67 1 (2, 180) 

Total primary government $ 4,694 $ 4,882 $ 13,265 $ 9,609 $ 16,942 $ 35,766 $ 70,436 $ 121, 11 3 $ 135,480 $ 62,935 

Notes 

( I ) Merger with Apex EMS completed March 20 10. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLI NA 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

20 10 20 11 20 12 20 13 2014 20 15 2016 20 17 2018 201 9 

Net (expense)/revenue 

Governmental activities $ (2 1,739) $ (22,886) $ ( 18,726) $ (23,583) $ (23, 127) $ (8,72 1) $ 6,028 $ 58,146 $ 59,293 $ 19,048 
Business-type acti viti es 3,28 1 5, 108 7,269 5,830 10,799 13,400 3 1,130 26,237 35,938 10,966 
Total primary government nct expenses $ (18,458) $ (17 ,778) $ ( 11 ,457) $ (17,753) $ (1 2,328) $ 4,679 $ 37, 158 $ 84,383 $ 95,231 $ 30,0 14 

Genera l Revenues and Other Cbanges in 
Net Position 

Governmental activities 
Taxes 

Property taxes 14,475 14,722 15,063 17,837 18,969 19,547 20,676 22,987 24,665 29,498 
Sales taxes 4,843 5,189 6,293 6,665 7,2 19 7,959 8,753 9,407 10, 109 11 ,038 
Motor vehicle licenses 136 136 143 148 202 168 176 329 345 79 1 
Miscellaneous taxes 28 35 36 42 47 5 1 56 65 27 1 82 

Unrestricted grants and contributions 1,996 2,104 2,4 15 2, 122 2, 176 2,859 2,97 1 2,971 3,028 3,26 1 
Investment earnings 89 83 48 53 25 24 95 202 562 1,62 1 
Miscellaneous 1,398 2 14 63 1 375 553 398 364 475 536 475 

Transfers (400) 
Total governmental activities 22,965 22,483 24,629 27,242 28,79 1 3 1,006 33,09 1 36,436 39,516 46,766 
Business-type acti vities 

Investment earnings 187 177 93 115 51 7 1 133 264 694 1,453 
Miscell aneous 5 28 10 54 30 39 59 
Transfers 400 

Total business-type activities 187 177 93 120 479 8 1 187 294 733 1,512 
Total primary government $ 23 ,1 52 $ 22,660 $ 24,722 $ 27,362 $ 29,270 $ 3 1,087 $ 33,278 $ 36,730 $ 40,249 $ 48,278 

Special Item: Legal Settlement 

Total governmental activities (699) 

Total business~type activities ( 14,658) 

Total primary government $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ ( 15,357) 

Change in Net Position 
Governmental activities $ 1,226 $ (403) $ 5,903 $ 3,659 $ 5,664 $ 22,285 $ 39,1 19 $ 94,582 $ 98,809 $ 65,115 

Business-type activities 3,468 5,285 7,362 5,950 11 ,278 13,48 1 31,3 17 26,53 1 36,671 (2, 180) 

Total primary government $ 4,694 $ 4,882 $ 13,265 $ 9,609 $ 16,942 $ 35,766 $ 70,436 $ 121,11 3 $ 135,480 $ 62,935 

Notes 

(I ) Merger with Apex EMS completed March 2010. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Table 3 

Property Sales Franchise Motor Vehicle Beer & Wine Rental Vehicle 
Fiscal Year Tax Tax Tax Licenses Tax Tax Total 

20 10 14,484,023 4,842,500 1,886,159 134,137 44,581 27,850 21,419,250 

2011 14,728,071 5,189,227 1,682,919 136,292 142,249 32,452 21,9 11,210 

2012 15,094,213 6,292,886 1,962,575 143,276 163,556 36,518 23,693,024 

2013 17,8 18,627 6,664,708 1,8 11,003 147,239 156,234 42,333 26,640, 144 

20 14 19,041,293 7,218,75 1 1,839,5 12 210,725 173,957 46,94 1 28,531,179 

20 15 19,577,741 7,959,043 2,47 1,056 176,038 195,186 51,335 30,430,399 

2016 20,708,708 8,752,692 2,567,708 179,814 187,787 56,331 32,453,040 

2017 22,995,117 9,406,835 2,529,054 333,116 202,523 65,499 35,532,144 

2018 24,672,063 10,109,296 2,647,424 545,363 202,218 73,883 38,250,247 

2019 29,525,234 11,038,256 2,765,367 790,883 209,435 82,207 44,411,382 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

Last Teo Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Table 3 

Property Sales Franchise Motor Vehicle Beer & Wine Rental Vehicle 
Fiscal Year Tax Tax Tax Licenses Tax Tax Total 

20 10 14,484,023 4,842,500 1,886,159 134,137 44,58 1 27,850 2 1,4 19,250 

2011 14,728,07 1 5,189,227 1,682,9 19 136,292 142,249 32,452 21,9 11 ,2 10 

20 12 15,094,2 13 6,292,886 1,962,575 143,276 163,556 36,5 18 23,693,024 

2013 17,818,627 6,664,708 1,8 11 ,003 147,239 156,234 42,333 26,640,144 

20 14 19,041,293 7,2 18,75 1 1,839,5 12 210,725 173,957 46,941 28,53 1,179 

20 15 19,577,741 7,959,043 2,47 1,056 176,038 195,186 51,335 30,430,399 

20 16 20,708,708 8,752,692 2,567,708 179,8 14 187,787 56,33 1 32,453,040 

2017 22,995,1 17 9,406,835 2,529,054 333, 116 202,523 65,499 35,532, 144 

20 18 24,672,063 10,109,296 2,647,424 545,363 202,218 73,883 38,250,247 

2019 29,525,234 11 ,038,256 2,765,367 790,883 209,435 82,207 44,411 ,382 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 

Table 4 

2010 2011 (I) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

General Fund 
Reserved $ 2,959 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Unreserved 12,2 13 
NonspendabJe 80 80 I I I 101 142 166 115 114 163 
Restricted 3,046 4,379 4,154 5,877 5,377 7,179 7,569 9,640 10,431 
Committed 677 776 842 850 
Assigned 620 1,533 1,538 1,500 1,012 1,826 2,358 2,327 
Unassigned 12,623 11,608 13,983 14,299 15,190 15,467 19,377 21,883 26,062 

Total General Fund $ 15,172 $ 16,369 $ 17,600 $ 19,786 $ 21,777 $ 21,721 $ 25,315 $ 27,837 $ 34,837 $ 39,833 

All other governmental funds 

Reserved $ 702 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Unreserved, reported in; 

Special revenue funds 552 
Capital project funds 6,790 
Pennanent funds 374 
NonspendabJe 714 718 716 717 713 712 709 700 697 
Restricted 759 2,595 20,177 18,237 
Committed 4,068 2,205 5,727 1,920 3,509 3,999 5,476 8,507 12,032 
Assigned 696 1,114 2,749 3,138 2,934 2,833 5,202 6,622 7,204 
Unassigned P i ) 

Total all other governmental funds $ 8,418 $ 5,478 $ 4,006 $ 9,192 $ 6,534 $ 7,156 $ 10,139 $ 11,387 $ 36,006 $ 38, 170 

Notes: 

(I) Beginning fiscal year 2011, fund balance has been reclassified based on GASB 54 guidel ines. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 

Table 4 

2010 2011 (I) 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

General Fund 
Reserved $ 2,959 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
Unreserved 12,213 
NonspendabJe 80 80 111 101 142 166 115 114 163 
Restricted 3,046 4,379 4,154 5,877 5,377 7,179 7,569 9,640 10,431 
Committed 677 776 842 850 
Assigned 620 1,533 1,538 1,500 1,0 12 1,826 2,358 2,327 
Unassigned 12,623 11,608 13,983 14,299 15,190 15,467 19,377 21,883 26,062 

Total General Fund $ 15,172 $ 16,369 $ 17,600 $ 19,786 $ 21,777 $ 21,721 $ 25,315 $ 27,837 $ 34,837 $ 39,833 

All other governmental funds 

Reserved $ 702 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Unreserved, reported in; 

Special revenue funds 552 
Capital project funds 6,790 
Permanent funds 374 
NonspendabJe 714 718 716 717 713 7 12 709 700 697 
Restricted 759 2,595 20,177 18,237 

Committed 4,068 2,205 5,727 1,920 3,509 3,999 5,476 8,507 12,032 

Assigned 696 1,114 2,749 3,138 2,934 2,833 5,202 6,622 7,204 

Unassigned PI) 
Total all other governmental funds $ 8,4 18 $ 5,478 $ 4,006 $ 9,192 $ 6,534 $ 7,156 $ 10, 139 $ 11 ,387 $ 36,006 $ 38, 170 

Notes: 

( I ) Beginning fiscal year 2011, fund balance has been reclassified based on GASB 54 guidel ines. 
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TO W N OF A PEX, NORT H CAROLINA 
C HANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accr ual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO's omitted) 
T able 5 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 20 19 
Revenu es 

Ad valorem taxes $ 14,484 $ 14,728 $ 15,094 $ 17,8 19 $ 19,04 1 $ 19,577 $ 20,709 $ 22,995 $ 24,672 $ 29,525 
Other taxes and licenses 5,004 5,358 6,473 6,854 7,477 8, 186 8,989 9,672 10,729 11,12 1 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 1,996 2, 104 2,41 5 2, 122 2, 176 2,859 2,97 1 2,97 1 3,028 3,26 1 
Restricted intergovernmental 2, 141 2,22 1 3,667 4,280 3,285 4 ,34 1 3,555 4,306 5,6 17 2,865 
Pennits and fees 886 1,4 10 1,746 2,5 15 3,078 4,652 5,945 10,46 1 10,948 5,080 
Sales and services 3, 192 3,957 3,055 3,2 11 3,410 3,69 1 3,874 4 ,380 4,629 5,282 
Investment earnings 89 73 38 32 25 24 95 20 1 562 815 
Miscellaneous 1,568 22 1 648 425 585 4 13 397 560 848 592 
Total revenues $ 29,360 $ 30,072 $ 33 ,1 36 $ 37,258 $ 39,077 $ 43,743 $ 46,535 $ 55,546 $ 6 1,033 $ 58,54 1 

Expenditures 
General government $ 6,55 1 $ 6,5 10 $ 6,892 $ 6,945 $ 7,636 $ 8,25 1 $ 8,864 $ 8,688 $ 9,238 $ 11,173 
Public safety 10, 156 11 ,202 11 ,676 12,757 13,462 14,487 15,534 17,173 18,479 2 1,392 
Public works 1,569 1,872 2,255 2,460 1,692 3,578 2,593 5, 124 5,727 6,435 
Environmental protection 2,933 2,987 3,137 3, 177 3,426 3,680 3,887 3,208 3,4 17 4,085 
Cultural and recreation 2,7 16 2,675 2,792 2,999 3,323 3,555 3,682 3,674 3,884 5,5 15 
Capital projects 6,602 3,989 4,636 5,532 6,855 8,7 18 6,928 9,994 14,9 18 

Debt Service 
Principal 1,635 1,652 1,655 1,809 2, 134 2,134 2,667 3,028 3,870 2,904 
Interest 1,087 1,040 835 882 816 732 817 886 1,0 12 1,666 
Bond issuance costs 139 

Total expend itures $ 33,249 $ 3 1,927 $ 33,878 $ 36,700 $ 39,344 $ 45,135 $ 44,972 $ 51,775 $ 60,545 $ 53, 170 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expend itures (3 ,889) (1 ,855) (742) 558 (267) (1,392) 1,563 3,77 1 488 5,37 1 

Other financing sou r ces (uses) 
Issuance of debt 8,302 502 5,000 2,226 4,500 6,000 
Payment to refund debt (2,900) (8, 190) (4,903) (6,42 1) 

Bonds issued 6,000 6,424 24,105 

Premium on bond issuance 267 1,026 

Bond issuance costs 
Transfers in 2, 163 33 1 780 548 3,729 3,932 4,578 2,466 

Transfers out (2, 163 ) (33 I) (780) (548) (400) (3,804) (3,932) (4,578) (2,144) 

Total other fi nancing 
sources (uses) (2,900) 112 502 6,364 (400) 2,229 4,425 3 1,l 31 322 

Special Item 
Legal Settlement (699) 

Net change in fund balances $ (6,789) $ (1 ,743) $ (240) $ 6,922 $ (667) $ 837 $ 5,988 $ 3,77 1 $ 3 1,6 19 $ 4,994 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 10.2% 9.6% 8.5% 9. 1% 9.1 % 7.9% 9.2% 9.4% 10.7% 8.6% 

expendi tures 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(OOO 's omitted) 
Table 5 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 
Revenues 

Ad valorem taxes $ 14,484 $ 14,728 $ 15,094 $ 17,819 $ 19,041 $ 19,577 $ 20,709 $ 22,995 $ 24,672 $ 29,525 
Other taxes and licenses 5,004 5,358 6,473 6,854 7,477 8,186 8,989 9,672 10,729 11,121 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 1,996 2, 104 2,415 2,122 2, 176 2,859 2,97 1 2,97 1 3,028 3,261 
Restricted intergovernmental 2,141 2,22 1 3,667 4,280 3,285 4,341 3,555 4,306 5,617 2,865 
Pennits and fees 886 1,410 1,746 2,5 15 3,078 4,652 5,945 10,461 10,948 5,080 
Sales and serv ices 3, 192 3,957 3,055 3,2 11 3,410 3,691 3,874 4,380 4,629 5,282 
Investment earnings 89 73 38 32 25 24 95 20 1 562 815 
Miscellaneous 1,568 22 1 648 425 585 413 397 560 848 592 
Total revenues $ 29,360 $ 30,072 $ 33,136 $ 37,258 $ 39,077 $ 43,743 $ 46,535 $ 55,546 $ 61,033 $ 58,54 1 

Expenditures 
General government $ 6,551 $ 6,510 $ 6,892 $ 6,945 $ 7,636 $ 8,251 $ 8,864 $ 8,688 $ 9,238 $ 11.173 
Public safety 10,156 11,202 11,676 12,757 13,462 14,487 15,534 17,173 18,479 21,392 
Public works 1,569 1,872 2,255 2,460 1,692 3,578 2,593 5,124 5,727 6,435 
Environmental protection 2,933 2,987 3,137 3,177 3,426 3,680 3,887 3,208 3,417 4,085 
Cultural and recreation 2,7 16 2,675 2,792 2,999 3,323 3,555 3,682 3,674 3,884 5,5 15 
Capital projects 6,602 3,989 4,636 5,532 6,855 8,718 6,928 9,994 14,9 18 

Debt Service 
Principal 1,635 1,652 1,655 1,809 2, 134 2,134 2,667 3,028 3,870 2,904 
Interest 1,087 1,040 835 882 816 732 817 886 1,012 1,666 
Bond issuance costs 139 

Total expenditures $ 33,249 $ 31,927 $ 33,878 $ 36,700 $ 39,344 $ 45,135 $ 44,972 $ 51,775 $ 60,545 $ 53, 170 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expenditures (3,889) (1,855) (742) 558 (267) (1,392) 1,563 3,771 488 5,371 

Other financing sources (uses) 
Issuance of debt 8,302 502 5,000 2,226 4,500 6,000 
Payment to refund debt (2,900) (8, 190) (4,903) (6,421) 
Bonds issued 6,000 6,424 24,105 
Premium on bond issuance 267 1,026 
Bond issuance costs 
Transfers in 2,163 331 780 548 3,729 3,932 4,578 2,466 

Transfers out (2,163) (331) (780) (548) (400) (3 ,804) (3 ,932) (4,578) (2,144) 

Total other financing 
sources (uses) (2,900) 11 2 502 6,364 (400) 2,229 4,425 31,13 1 322 

Special Item 
Legal Settlement (699) 

Net change in fund balances $ (6,789) $ (1,743) $ (240) $ 6,922 $ (667) $ 837 $ 5,988 $ 3,771 $ 31,619 $ 4,994 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital 10.2% 9.6% 8.5% 9.1% 9.1% 7.9% 9.2% 9.4% 10.7% 8.6% 

expenditures 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 6 

Fiscal Tax Rate 
Year per $100 Assessed Value as 

Ended Public Service Other Personal Total Taxable Assessed Estimated Actual a Percentage of 
June 30 Real Property Property Motor Vehicles Property Assessed Value Value Taxable Value Actual Value 

2010 3,753,659,201 28,803,053 289,511,177 156,402,45 1 4,228,375,882 .34 4,153,302,698 101.8% 

2011 3,822,880,479 28,566,184 293,770,882 169,973,631 4,315,191 ,176 .34 4,146,984,435 104.1% 

2012 3,895,366,651 28,331,495 314,564,526 176,398,505 4,4 14,661,177 .34 4,194,168,725 105.3% 

2013 3,993,835,605 28,357,179 351,764,850 197,998,753 4,571,956,387 .39 4,345,890,221 105.2% 

2014 4,134,621,000 27,413,463 484,815,641 193,348,102 4,840,198,206 .39 4,621,102,309 104.7% 

2015 4,373,11 0,0 17 27,4 14,807 418,989,744 174,630,304 4,994,144,872 .39 5,176,357,789 96.5% 

2016 4,587,815,785 35,243,115 462,157,692 196,820,588 5,282,037,180 .39 5,330,064,454 99.1% 

2017 5,290,258,644 34,099,710 500,589,928 193,783,561 6,018,731,843 .38 6,478,754,334 92.9% 

2018 5,733,300,011 37,843,842 535,295,790 153 ,617,463 6,460,057,106 .38 6,958,604,933 92.8% 

2019 6,282,148,101 39,532,810 535,295,790 225,320,890 7,082,297,591 .38 7,628,571,339 92.8% 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 6 

Fiscal Tax Rate 
Year per $100 Assessed Value as 

Ended Public Service Other Personal Total Taxable Assessed Estimated Actual a Percentage of 
June 30 Real Property Property Motor Vehicles Property Assessed Value Value Taxable Value Actual Value 

2010 3,753,659,201 28,803,053 289,5ll,l77 156,402,451 4,228,375,882 .34 4,153,302,698 101.8% 

20ll 3,822,880,479 28,566,184 293,770,882 169,973,63 I 4,3 15,191,176 .34 4,146,984,435 104.1% 

20 12 3,895,366,65 I 28,33 1,495 3 14,564,526 176,398,505 4,414,661,177 .34 4, I 94, I 68, 725 105.3% 

2013 3,993,835,605 28,357,179 35 1,764,850 197,998,753 4,571,956,387 .39 4,345,890,221 105.2% 

2014 4, 134,621,000 27,413,463 484,815,641 193,348,102 4,840, I 98,206 .39 4,62 1,102,309 104.7% 

2015 4,373,1 10,017 27,414,807 418,989,744 174,630,304 4,994,144,872 .39 5,176,357,789 96.5% 

2016 4,587,8 I 5,785 35,243, ll5 462,157,692 196,820,588 5,282,037,180 .39 5,330,064,454 99.1 % 

2017 5,290,258,644 34,099,710 500,589,928 193,783,561 6,018,731,843 .38 6,478,754,334 92.9% 

2018 5,733 ,300,011 37,843,842 535,295,790 153,617,463 6,460,057,106 .38 6,958,604,933 92.8% 

2019 6,282,148,101 39,532,8 10 535,295,790 225,320,890 7,082,297,591 .38 7,628,571,339 92.8% 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
June 30, 2019 

Table 7 
Combined Tax 

Fiscal Town of Wake Rate Per $100 
Year Apex County of Assessed Value 

2010 .34 .534 .874 

20 11 .34 .534 .874 

20 12 .34 .534 .874 

2013 .39 .534 .924 

20 14 .39 .578 .968 

20 15 .39 .578 .968 

2016 .39 .6 145 1.0045 

20 17 .38 .6005 .9805 

20 18 .38 .615 .995 

2019 .4 15 .6544 1.069 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PROPERTY TAX RATES - DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
June 30, 2019 

Table 7 
Combined Tax 

Fiscal Town of Wake Rate Per $ 1 00 
Year Apex County of Assessed Value 

2010 .34 .534 .874 

20 11 .34 .534 .874 

2012 .34 .534 .874 

20 13 .39 .534 .924 

20 14 .39 .578 .968 

20 15 .39 .578 .968 

20 16 .39 .6 145 1.0045 

2017 .38 .6005 .9805 

20 18 .38 .6 15 .995 

2019 .415 .6544 1.069 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Fisca l Years 
June 30, 2019 

Table 8 

Taxes Levied Collected within th e 
Fiscal Year for the Fiscal Total Fiscal Year of the Le~ 

Ended Year Adjusted Percentage of Collections in Total Collections to Date 

June30 (Original Levy) Adjustments Levy Amount Original Levy Subsequent Years Amount Percentage of Levy 

2010 14,471,733 (11,067) 14,460,666 14,349,613 99.2 100,8 10 14,450,423 99.9 

201 1 14,724,826 (6,227) 14,7 18,599 14,598,65 1 99.2 110,030 14,708,681 99.9 

20 12 15,080,217 (4,167) 15,076,050 14,946,582 99. 1 94,696 15,04 1,278 99.8 

20 13 17,8 19,954 (5,341) 17,8 14,613 17,681,02 1 99.3 123,879 17,804,900 99.9 

20 14 18,937,765 ( I, I 07) 18,936,658 18,869,293 99.6 50,803 18,920,096 99.9 

2015 19,525,453 (5,777) 19,51 9,676 19,482,708 99.8 26,463 19,509, 171 99.9 

2016 20,668,145 (7,038) 20,661,107 20,645,326 99.9 6, 124 20,651,450 100.0 

20 17 22,979,651 (4,339) 22,975,312 22,953,997 99.9 15,442 22,969,439 100.0 

20 18 24,666,208 (1,383) 24,664,825 24,631,157 99.9 15,126 24,646,283 99.9 

20 19 29,496,802 29,496,802 29,465,485 99.9 29,465,485 99.9 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
June 30, 2019 

Table 8 

Taxes Levied Collected within the 
Fiscal Year for the Fiscal Total Fiscal Year ofthe Le~ 

Ended Yea, Adjusted Percentage of Collections in Total Colleetions to Date 

lune30 (Original Levy) Adjustments Levy Amount Original Levy Subsequent Years Amount Percentage of Levy 

2010 14,471,733 (11,067) 14,460,666 14,349,6 13 99.2 100,810 14,450,423 99.9 

2011 14,724,826 (6,227) 14,7 18,599 14,598,65 1 99.2 110,030 14,708,681 99.9 

2012 15,080,217 (4,167) 15,076,050 14,946,582 99. 1 94,696 15,04 1,278 99.8 

2013 17,8 19,954 (5,34 1) 17,8 14,613 17,681,02 1 99.3 123,879 17,804,900 99.9 

2014 18,937,765 (I , I 07) 18,936,658 18,869,293 99.6 50,803 18,920,096 99.9 

20 15 19,525,453 (5,777) 19,5 19,676 19,482,708 99.8 26,463 19,509, 17 1 99.9 

2016 20,668,145 (7,038) 20,661,107 20,645,326 99.9 6, 124 20,651 ,450 100.0 

20 17 22,979,651 (4,339) 22,975,312 22,953,997 99.9 15,442 22,969,439 100.0 

20 18 24,666,208 (1,383) 24,664,825 24,631 , 157 99.9 15, 126 24,646,283 99.9 

2019 29,496,802 29,496,802 29,465,485 99.9 29,465,485 99.9 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS AND ELECTRIC RATEPAYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Table 9 2019 2010 

Percentage of Percentage of 

Taxable Assessed Total Taxable Taxable Assessed Total Taxable 

TaxE3:rer Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value 
CSP Community Owner LLC $ 94,209,277 I 1.33% $ 63,317,954 2 0.89% 
DDR I st Carolina 60,247,793 2 0.85 73 ,519,711 I 1.74 
Meritage Homes of the Carolinas 35,718,892 3 0.50 
CRLP Creekside Hills Drive LLC 34,856,268 4 0.49 
Village at Broadstone Station LLC 34,856,268 5 0.49 
CFK Apex Land Co LLC 33,740,578 6 0.48 19,651,943 8 0.46 
TRT DDR Beaver Creek 32,58 1,866 7 0.46 35,149,211 4 0.83 
DPF Beaver Creek 31,275,269 5 0.44 
G&I IX Lake Cameron LLC 30,025,246 6 0.42 23 ,755,976 7 0.56 
BELL HNW Exchange Apex LLC 29,993,340 10 0.42 
EMC Corporation 35,443,268 3 0.84 
HH Trinity Apex Investments LLC 29,403,539 5 0.70 
Metropolitan Development @Apex LLC 28,747,424 6 0.68 
Target Corporation 17,338,768 9 0.41 
Beaver Creek Assoc, LLC 14,595,898 10 0.35 

Totals $ 417,504,797 $ 340,923,692 

Total Assessed Valuation = $ 7,082,297,591 $ 4,228,375,882 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS AND ELECTRIC RATEPAYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Table 9 2019 2010 

Percentage of Percentage of 
Taxable Assessed Total Taxable Taxable Assessed Total Taxable 

TaxEai:er Value Rank Assessed Value Value Rank Assessed Value 
CSP Couununity Owner LLC $ 94,209,277 I 1.33% $ 63,317,954 2 0.89% 
DDR I st Carolina 60,247,793 2 0.85 73 ,519,711 I 1.74 
Meritage Homes of the Carolinas 35,718,892 3 0.50 
CRLP Creekside Hills Drive LLC 34,856,268 4 0.49 
Village at Broadstone Station LLC 34,856,268 5 0.49 
CFK Apex Land Co LLC 33,740,578 6 0.48 19,651,943 8 0.46 
TRT DDR Beaver Creek 32,58 1,866 7 0.46 35,149,211 4 0.83 
DPF Beaver Creek 31,275,269 5 0.44 
G&I IX Lake Cameron LLC 30,025,246 6 0.42 23 ,755,976 7 0.56 
BELL HNW Exchange Apex LLC 29,993,340 10 0.42 
EMC Corporation 35,443,268 3 0.84 
HH Trinity Apex Investments LLC 29,403,539 5 0.70 
Metropolitan Development @Apex LLC 28,747,424 6 0.68 
Target Corporation 17,338,768 9 0.41 
Beaver Creek Assoc, LLC 14,595,898 10 0.35 

Totals $ 417,504,797 $ 340,923,692 

Total Assessed Valuation = $ 7,082,297,591 $ 4,228 ,375,882 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS AND ELECTRIC RATEPAYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2019 2010 
Percentage of Percentage of 

Consumption Annual Electric Total Electric Consumption Annual Electric Total Electric 
Electric Rate~al::er kWh Charges Rank Charges kWh Charges Rank Charges 
Town of Cary 14,591 ,800 $ 699,318 1 2.06% 
Wake County Public Schools 10,275,720 694,941 2 1.92 6,538,280 $ 717,005 1 2.72% 
Food Lion 3,249,000 178,850 3 0.49 2,916,520 202,008 6 0.56 
Cambridge Village of Apex 2,003,279 162,578 4 0.45 
Wake Med Property Services 2,343,360 146,453 5 0.40 2,017,360 130,768 9 0.36 
Lowes Foods 2,378,240 146,255 6 0.40 2,603,040 204,189 5 0 .56 
Time Warner Cable 1,869,240 142,108 7 0.39 
Harris Teeter 2,302,264 141,6 16 8 0.39 2,823,840 226,655 2 0 .63 
Target Corporation 2,640,120 127,497 9 0.35 3,960,360 224,554 3 0.62 
Lowe's Home Improvement 2,014,480 125,954 10 0.35 2,55 1,440 166,659 8 0.46 
Kroger 2,574,400 209,527 4 0.58 
Home Depot 2,270,080 187,094 7 0.52 
Kohl's 1,206,880 106,763 10 0.29 

Totals $ 2,565,570 $ 2,375,222 

Total Sales of Electricity ~ $ 36,239,086 $ 26,367,3 16 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY T AXP A YERS AND ELECTRIC RATEPAYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

2019 2010 
Percentage of Percentage of 

Consumption Annual Electric Total Electric Consu mption Annual Electric Total Electric 
Electric Rate~a~er kWh Charges Rank Charges kWh Charges Rank Charges 
Town of Cary 14,591 ,800 $ 699,318 1 2.06% 
Wake County Public Schools 10,275,720 694,941 2 1.92 6,538,280 $ 717,005 1 2.72% 
Food Lion 3,249,000 178,850 3 0.49 2,916,520 202,008 6 0 .56 
Cambridge V illage of Apex 2,003,279 162,578 4 0.45 
Wake Med Property Services 2,343,360 146,453 5 0.40 2,017,360 130,768 9 0.36 
Lowes Foods 2,378,240 146,255 6 0.40 2,603,040 204,189 5 0 .56 
Time Warner Cable 1,869,240 142,108 7 0.39 
Harri s Teeter 2,302,264 141 ,616 8 0.39 2,823,840 226,655 2 0.63 
Target Corporation 2,640,120 127,497 9 0.35 3,960,360 224,554 3 0.62 
Lowe's Home Improvement 2,014,480 125,954 10 0.35 2,55 1,440 166,659 8 0.46 
Kroger 2,574,400 209,527 4 0.58 
Home Depot 2,270,080 187,094 7 0.52 
Kohl's 1,206,880 106,763 10 0.29 

Totals $ 2,565,570 $ 2,375,222 

Total Sales of Electricity ~ $ 36,239,086 $ 26,367,3 16 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BYTVPE 

Last TeD Fisca l Years 

Table 10 
Governmental Acti vi ties Business·T:a;!e Activities 
General General Total Percentage 

Fiscal Obligation Installment Obligation Instal lment Revenue Primary of Personal Per 

Year Bonds Financings Bonds Financings Bonds Government lneome (1) Capita 

2010 17,061,476 8, 190,000 486,315 980,904 6,925,000 33,643 ,695 2.4 953 

2011 15,903,785 7,815,000 30,000 1,278,264 6,442,250 31,469,299 2.5 824 

2012 14,761,094 7,811,652 35,6 14,283 12, 109,01 1 6,133,000 76,429,040 5.8 1,939 

2013 20,5 18,562 7,143, 146 36,778,577 18,417,633 5,716,000 88,573,918 6.2 2,162 

2014 19,002,695 6,474,495 36,0 19,342 18,1 8 1,189 5,284,000 84,96 1,721 5.4 2,074 

2015 17,5 16,827 8,122,600 35,260,105 24,628,745 4,836,000 90,364,277 5.4 1,994 

201 6 16,030,960 11,390,520 34,500,869 23,945 ,875 4,372,000 90,240,224 5.1 1,899 

20 17 14,560,093 9,781 ,958 33,686,633 22,375,007 3,891,000 84,294,691 4.4 1,702 

2018 37, 102,347 14,437,103 32,817,396 20,790,138 3,393,000 108,539,984 5.2 2,0 15 

2019 35,139,879 13,393,3 10 31,888,160 19,305,694 2,877,000 102,604,043 4.5 1,765 

Notes: 
(1) See Tab le \4 for personal income data 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTfI CAROLI NA 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DE BT BY TYPE 

Last Ten Fisca l Years 

Table 10 
Governmental Activities Bu~ine~~-Tme Activities 
General General Total Percentage 

Fiscal Obligation lnstallment Obligation lnstallment Revenue Primary of Personal Per 

Year Bonds Financin~s Bonds Financinss Bonds Government Income (11 Ca2ita 

20 10 17,061,476 8, 190,000 4 86,315 980,904 6,925,000 33,643 ,695 2.4 953 

20 11 15 ,903 ,785 7,8 15,000 30,000 1,278,264 6,442,250 3 I ,469,299 2.5 824 

2012 14,76 1,094 7,811 ,652 35,6 14,283 12, 109,0 11 6,133,000 76,429,040 5.8 1,939 

2013 20,5 18,562 7,143, 146 36,778,577 18,4 17,633 5,716,000 88,573,918 6.2 2, 162 

2014 19,002,695 6,474,495 36,019,342 18,181,189 5,284,000 84,96 1,721 5.4 2,074 

2015 17,516,827 8,122,600 35,260, 105 24,628,745 4,836,000 90,364,277 5.4 1,994 

20 16 16,030,960 11,390,520 34,500,869 23,945,875 4,372,000 90,240,224 5.1 1,899 

2017 14,560,093 9,781,958 33,686,633 22,375,007 3,89 1,000 84,294,69 1 4.4 1,702 

2018 37,102,347 14,437,103 32,8 17,396 20,790, 138 3,393,000 108,539,984 5.2 2,0 15 

2019 35,139,879 13 ,393 ,3 10 3 1,888, 160 19,305,694 2,877,000 102,604,043 4.5 1,765 

Notes: 
(\) See Table 14 for personal income data 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 11 
Percentage of 

Estimated 
General Actual Taxable 

Fiscal ObUgation Value of 

Year Bonds Property (I) 

2010 17,547,79 1 0.43% 

20 11 15,933,785 0.37% 

2012 50,375,377 1.20% 

2013 57,297, 139 1.32% 

201 4 55,Q22,037 1.19% 

20 15 52,776,932 1.02% 

20 16 50,53 1,829 0.95% 

2017 48,246,726 0.74% 

2018 69,9 19,743 1.08% 

20 19 67,028,039 0.88% 

Notes: 

tl) See Table 6 for estimated taxable values of property. 

t2) See Table 14 for estimated population data. 

Per 

Capita (2) 

497 

417 

1,278 

1,399 

1,282 

1,165 

1,063 

974 

1,298 

1,153 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 11 
Percentage of 

Estimated 
General Actual Taxable 

Fiscal Obligation Value of 

Year Bonds Property (I) 

20 10 17,547,79 1 0.43% 

20 11 15,933,785 0.37% 

2012 50,375,377 1.20% 

2013 57,297,139 1.32% 

2014 55,022,037 1.19% 

2015 52,776,932 1.02% 

2016 50,53 1,829 0.95% 

20 17 48,246,726 0.74% 

20 18 69,9 19,743 1.08% 

20 19 67,028,039 0.88% 

Notes: 

( I ) See Table 6 for estimated taxable values of property. 

(2) See Table 14 for estimated population data. 

Per 

Capita (2) 

497 

417 

1,278 

1,399 

1,282 

1,165 

1,063 

974 

1,298 

1,153 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BONDED DEBT 

As of J une 30, 2018 

Table 12 

Govenmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes: County 
Wake County General Obligation Bonds 

Town of Apex goverrunental activities debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Notes: 

(I ) Percentage based on total assessed property values. 

(2) Excl udes bonded debt for business-type activities. 

$ 

Estimated 
Debt Percentage 

Outstanding Applicable ( I) 

1,709,028 ,235 4.48% 

Estimated 
Share of 

Overlapping 
Debt 

$ 76,564,465 

48,533 ,189 

$ 125,097,654 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BONDED DEBT 

As of June 30,2018 

Table 12 

Govenmental Unit 

Debt repaid with property taxes: County 
Wake County General Obligation Bonds 

Town of Apex govenunental activities debt 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

Notes: 

(I ) Percentage based on total assessed property values. 

(2) Excludes bonded debt for business-type activities. 

$ 

Estimated 
Debt Percentage 

Outstanding Applicable ( I) 

1,709,028,235 4.48% 

Estimated 
Share of 

Overlapping 

Debt 

$ 76,564,465 

48,533,189 

$ 125,097,654 
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Table 13 

2010 20 11 

Debt Limit $ 338,270 $ 345,2 15 

Total net debt appli cable to limit $ 25,400 $ 23,860 

Legal debt margin $ 312,870 $ 32 1,355 

Total net debt applicable to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 7.5 1% 6.91% 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLI NA 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

Last Ten Fiscal Yean 
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Current Year Calculation) 

2012 N!1 2014 Wi WQ 

$ 353,173 $ 365,756 $ 387,216 $ 399,53 1 $ 422,562 

$ 22,7 10 $ 26,993 $ 25,477 $ 25,639 $ 27,42 1 

$ 330,463 $ 338,763 $ 361,739 $ 373,892 $ 395, 141 

6.43% 7.38% 6.58% 6.42% 6.49% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2019 

Assessed value 

Debt limit - 8% of assessed value 
Total debt applicable to limit 
Legal debt margin 

20 17 

$ 481,498 $ 

$ 24,342 $ 

$ 457,156 $ 

5.06% 

20 18 

516,805 

51,540 

465,265 

9.97% 

20 19 

$ 566,584 

$ 51,540 

$ 5 15,044 

9. 10% 

$ 7,082,297,59 1 

566,583,807 
48,533, 189 

$ 518,050,6 18 

Table 13 

20 10 20 11 

Debt Limit $ 338,270 $ 345,2 15 

Total net debt appli cable to limit $ 25,400 $ 23,860 

Legal debt margin $ 312,870 $ 32 1,355 

Total net debt app li cab le to the limit 
as a percentage of debt limit 7.5 1% 6.91% 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLI NA 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

Last Ten Fiscal Yean 
(Amounts in Thousands, Except Current Year Calculation) 

2012 Nil 2014 NU WQ 

$ 353,173 $ 365,756 $ 387,2 16 $ 399,531 $ 422,562 

$ 22,7 10 $ 26,993 $ 25,477 $ 25,639 $ 27,42 1 

$ 330,463 $ 338,763 $ 36 1,739 $ 373,892 $ 395, 141 

6.43% 7.38% 6.58% 6.42% 6.49% 

Legal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2019 

Assessed value 

Debt limit - 8% of assessed value 
Total debt applicable to li mit 
Legal debt margin 

20 17 

$ 481,498 $ 

$ 24,342 $ 

$ 457,156 $ 

5.06% 

20 18 

516,805 

51,540 

465,265 

9.97% 

20 19 

$ 566,584 

$ 5 1,540 

$ 5 15,044 

9. 10% 

$ 7,082,297,59 1 

566,583,807 
48,533, 189 

$ 518,050,6 18 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 14 
Personal Per Capita 

Fiscal Income Personal Unemployment 
Year Population (I) (OOO's) Income (I) (2) Rate (3) 

2010 35,288 1,41 6,659 38,931 6.8 

20 11 38,180 1,266,507 33,172 6.3 

2012 39,4 12 1,321,445 33,529 5.8 

2013 40,970 1,465,538 35,771 5.4 

2014 42,920 1,570,597 36,594 5.1 

2015 45,317 1,676,820 37,002 4.0 

2016 47,525 1,848,057 38,886 3.5 

2017 49,541 1,926,451 38,886 3.2 

2018 53,862 2,094,478 38,886 2.9 

2019 58,135 2,260,638 38,886 3.3 

Notes: 
(I) Town of Apex Planning Department. 
(2) Apex Chamber of Commerce demographics, Bureau of Econornic Analysis Apex and US Census Bureau. Infonnation 

for 2017-2019 not available. 
(3) North Carolina Department of Commerce - Department of Employment Security. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMlC STATISTICS 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Table 14 
Personal Per Capita 

Fiscal Income Personal Unemployment 
Year Population ( I) (OOO's) income (I) (2) Rate (3) 

20 10 35,288 1,41 6,659 38,93 1 6.8 

2011 38,1 80 1,266,507 33,172 6.3 

2012 39,412 1,321,445 33,529 5.8 

2013 40,970 1,465,538 35,771 5.4 

2014 42,920 1,570,597 36,594 5.1 

201 5 45 ,3 17 1,676,820 37,002 4.0 

2016 47,525 1,848,057 38,886 3.5 

2017 49,541 1,926,45 1 38,886 3.2 

2018 53,862 2,094,478 38,886 2.9 

2019 58, 135 2,260,638 38,886 3.3 

Notes: 
(l) Town of Apex Planning Department. 
(2) Apex Chamber of Commerce demographics, Bureau of Econornic Analysis Apex and US Census Bureau. Infonnation 

for 2017-2019 not available. 
(3) North Carolina Department of Commerce - Department of Employment Security. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Table 15 
2019 2010 

Percentage 
Estimated of Total Estimated Percentage of 

Number of Town Number of Total Town 

TaxEa~er EmElo~ees ( I) Rank EmElo~ent EmEloyees (I) Rank EmElo~ent 
Wake County Public Schools 1763 I 6.4 1% 900 1 5.67% 
Apex Tool Group 526 2 1.91% 363 2 2.28% 
Town of Apex 504 3 1.83% 315 5 1.98% 
Dell Inc. (EMC) 500 4 1.82% 345 3 2. 17% 
A TI Industrial Automation 355 5 1.29% 
Super Target 250 6 0.91% 337 4 
Costco 239 7 0.87% 
Bland Landscaping 138 9 0.50% 163 7 1.03% 
Tipper Tie, Inc. 13 1 8 0.48% 135 9 0.85% 
Polyzen 125 10 0.45% 
NC Department of Corrections 130 8 0.82% 
WalMart 225 6 1.42% 
Hare Pipeline 61 10 0.38% 

Totals 4,53 1 2,974 

Total Employed in Apex (2) 27,511 15,887 

Notes: 
(l) Estimated employees by taxpayer based on Town of Apex, Economic Development and employer verification ­

Town's Finance Department. 
(2) Total employed in Apex from Employment Security Commission "Local Area Unemployment Statistics" or LAUS. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
PRINCrPAL EMPLOYERS 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Table 15 
2019 2010 

Percentage 
Estimated of Total Estimated Percentage of 
Number of Town Number of Total Town 

Tax2a~er EmElo~ees (1) Rank Em210;t!!!ent Em210~ees (I) Rank Em210;t!!!ent 
Wake County Public Scbools 1763 I 6.41 % 900 I 5.67% 
Apex Tool Group 526 2 l.91% 363 2 2.28% 
Town of Apex 504 3 l. 83% 315 5 1.98% 
Dell Inc. (EMC) 500 4 l. 82% 345 3 2. 17% 
A TI Industrial Automation 355 5 1.29% 
Super Target 250 6 0.9 1% 337 4 
Costco 239 7 0.87% 
Bland Landscaping 138 9 0.50% 163 7 l.03% 
Tipper Tie, Inc. 131 8 0.48% 135 9 0.85% 
Polyzen 125 10 0.45% 
NC Department of Corrections 130 8 0.82% 
WalMart 225 6 1.42% 
Hare Pipeline 61 \0 0.38% 

Totals 4,53 1 2,974 

Total Employed in Apex (2) 27,5 11 15,887 

Notes: 
(I) Estimated employees by taxpayer based on Town of Apex, Economic Development and employer verification­

Town's Finance Department. 
(2) Total employed in Apex from Employment Security Commission "Local Area Unemployment Statistics" or LAUS. 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

EMPLOYEE POSITION AUTHORIZATION BY DEPARTMENT ,')(2, 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

June 30, 2019 
Table 16 

Fiscal Admin- Public 

Year istration Planning Safety (3) 

2010 36 12 136 

20 11 37 12 136 

2012 37 12 140 

2013 38 12 148 

2014 39 15 .!47 

20 15 40 16 156 

2016 41 16 158 

2017 47 17 188 

2018 45 17 195 

2019 49 18 193 

Notes: 

{Il Pennanent employees only, does not include temporary or seasonal employees. 

(2) Authorized employee positions provided by HR and Budgets. 

(3) Effective July I, 2018 Apex EMS transferred to Wake County. 

Streets 

8 

8 

9 

10 

10 

II 

11 

13 

18 

19 

Public Parks & 

Works Recreation 

4 19 

4 20 

2 20 

2 21 

2 24 

5 24 

5 24 

7 27 

8 28 

8 35 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 

EMPLOYE E POSITION AUTHORIZATION BY DEPARTM ENT (1}{2' 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
June 30, 20 19 

Table 16 

Fiscal Adm in- Pub lic 

Year istration Planning Safety (3) 

20 10 36 12 136 

20 11 37 12 136 

20 12 37 12 140 

20 13 38 12 148 

20 14 39 15 .147 

20 15 40 16 156 

2016 41 16 158 

2017 47 17 188 

201 8 45 17 195 

2019 49 18 193 

Notes: 
( I ) Pennanent employees only, does not include temporary or seasonal employees. 

(2) Authorized employee positions provided by HR and Budgets. 

(3) Effective July I, 20 18 Apex EMS transferred to Wake County. 

Streets 

8 

8 

9 

10 

10 

II 

II 

13 

18 

19 

Public Parks & 

Works Recreation 

4 19 

4 20 

2 20 

2 21 

2 24 

5 24 

5 24 

7 27 

8 28 

8 35 
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Fleet & Environmental Water! Construction Year 

Facilities Protection Sewer Electric Management Total 

7 16 32 24 21 315 

7 16 31 25 20 316 

7 16 32 27 21 323 

7 16 34 29 22 339 

8 16 35 29 23 348 

8 17 34 28 24 363 

8 17 34 28 24 366 

10 17 34 32 19 411 

11 31 37 34 19 443 

10 35 44 35 21 467 

Fleet & Environmental Water! Construction Year 

Facilities Protection Sewer Electric Management Total 

7 16 32 24 21 315 

7 16 31 25 20 316 

7 16 32 27 21 323 

7 16 34 29 22 339 

8 16 35 29 23 348 

8 17 34 28 24 363 

8 17 34 28 24 366 

10 17 34 32 19 411 

I I 31 37 34 19 443 

10 35 44 35 21 467 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 17 

Fiscal Year 
Function NI.Q llil :lli1 20 13 20 14 2Q!i ~ 20 17 2018 2019 

Police 
Physical arrests 925 746 639 758 516 504 464 484 484 682 
Parking violations 77 124 2 16 193 2 15 235 256 426 394 529 
Traffic violations 8,137 8,004 5,882 5,787 7,074 6,047 6,904 8, 169 7,4 14 7,051 

Fire 
Number of calls answered 2,2 11 . 2,433 2,2 14 2,567 2,635 2,88 1 2,822 3,009 3,034 3,972 

Highways and streets 
Street resurfac ing (miles) 0 0.9 3.8 8.6 0 9 .9 0.0 20. 1 22.2 2.6 

Environmental Protection 
Number of households selVed II ,254 11 ,432 11 ,7 17 12,036 12,476 13,689 14,604 15,445 16,257 17,838 
Solid waste collected (tons/day) 34.77 3 1.73 28.7 1 29.77 27.06 30.62 32.68 34.89 37.71 41.58 
RecyciabJes collected (tons/day) 8.03 9.98 7.47 7.62 8.53 9.9 1 11.03 10.82 10.89 11.62 
Mulching and composting (tons/day) 14.19 13.55 15. 16 17.0 1 15.71 16.80 17.92 17.89 16.7 1 2 1.54 

Cultural and recreation 
Number of program/acti vity participants 39,691 40,9 19 42,731 45,709 49,022 59,808 63,396 60,958 63,978 62,896 

Water 
Number of customers 13,058 13,25 1 13,587 14,042 14,103 14,770 15,459 17,209 18,697 20,423 

Average daily consumption 2.98 2.86 2.95 2.8 1 3.08 3.3 3.37 3.58 3.79 3.75 
(mill ions of gallons) 

Wastewater 
Number of customers 12,6 16 12,77 1 13,07 1 13,240 13,840 14,485 15,207 16,949 18,43 1 20, 156 

Average daily sewage treatment 2.49 2.26 2.32 2.72 2.78 2.68 2.79 2.85 3.38 3.86 

(millions of gallons) 

Electric 
Number of customers 13,952 14,109 14,540 15,389 16,0 16 16,682 17,3 14 18,936 20,363 22,269 

Average da ily consumption 773,6 13 7 10,423 765,975 744,098 780,6 14 833,966 846,098 877,824 939, 159 969,098 

(kilowatt-hours) 

Source: Town or Apex - Finance, Police, Fire, Parks & Recreation, and Public Works deparrments 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

Last Tcn Fiscal Years 
Table 17 

Fiscal Year 
Function :NI.Q 2lill 20 12 20 13 20 14 2Qli N!2 20 17 2018 2019 

Police 
Physical arrests 925 746 639 758 5 16 504 464 484 484 682 
Parking violations 77 124 216 193 2 15 235 256 426 394 529 
Tra ffic violations 8, 137 8,004 5,882 5,787 7,074 6,047 6,904 8, 169 7,4 14 7,051 

Fire 
Number of calls answered 2,2 11 . 2,433 2,2 14 2,567 2,635 2,88 1 2,822 3,009 3,034 3,972 

Highways and streets 
Street resurfacing (miles) 0 0.9 3.8 8.6 0 9.9 0.0 20. 1 22.2 2.6 

Environmental Protection 
Number of households served 11 ,254 11 ,432 11 ,7 17 12,036 12,476 13,689 14,604 15,445 16,257 17,838 
So lid waste collected (tons/day) 34.77 31.73 28.7 1 29.77 27.06 30.62 32.68 34.89 37.71 41.58 
Recyclables collected (tons/day) 8.03 9.98 7.47 7.62 8.53 9.9 1 11.03 10.82 10.89 11.62 
Mulching and composting (tons/day) 14.19 13.55 15.16 17.0 1 15.7 1 16.80 17.92 17.89 16.7 1 21.54 

Cultural and recrealion 
Number of pro graml acti vity participants 39,691 40,9 19 42,731 45,709 49,022 59,808 63,396 60,958 63,978 62,896 

Water 
Number of customers 13,058 13,25 1 13,587 14,042 14,103 14,770 15,459 17,209 18,697 20,423 

Average daily consumption 2.98 2.86 2.95 2.81 3.08 3.3 3.37 3.58 3.79 3.75 
(millions o f gallons) 

Wastewater 
Number of customers 12,6 16 12,77 1 13,071 13,240 13,840 14,485 15,207 16,949 18,43 1 20, 156 

Average daily sewage treatment 2.49 2.26 2.32 2.72 2.78 2.68 2.79 2.85 3.38 3.86 

(millions of gallons) 

Electric 
Number of customers 13,952 14,109 14,540 15,389 16,0 16 16,682 17,3 14 18,936 20,363 22,269 

Average daily consumption 773,613 7 10,423 765,975 744,098 780,6 14 833,966 846,098 877,824 939,159 969,098 

(ki lowatt-hours) 

Source: Town or Apex - Finance, Police, Fire, Parks & Recreation, and Public Works departments 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 18 

Fiscal Year 
2010 20 11 2012 2013 2014 2!l.li 2016 201 7 2018 20 19 

FunctiQn 

Public safety 

Police 

Stations I I I I I 2 2 

Patro l Units 40 45 47 50 49 80 80 81 82 88 

K-9 Units 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 

Fire stations 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 

Streets 

Streets (miles) 120.69 122.29 127. 12 129. 15 132.37 140.04 151.04 171.14 193. 14 207. 17 

StTeetlighlS 2,325 2,465 2,582 2,582 2,7 13 2,775 2,846 3,391 3,479 3,914 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks acreage 452.5 1 452.51 452.51 452.51 452.5 1 544.51 544.5 1 544.51 558 618.28 

Parks 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 10 II II 

Tennis courts (Adult & Youth ) 8 8 8 8 8 20 20 20 20 20 

Community centers 

Cultural Arts Center 

Lakes 

Water 

Water lin es (miles) 165 170 170 182 194 207 2 15 269 293 310 

Maximum dai ly treatment capacity 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 

(mill ions of gallons) 

Electric 

Number of delivery points (substations) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Miles of service lines (I) 279 315 355 355 537 554 569 569 68 1 764 

Sewer 

Sanitary sewer lines (miles) 175 186.5 189 189 189 207 239 249 280 296 

Maximum daily treatment capacity 4.6 4.6 3.8 4.8 5.9 4.7 5.3 5.3 6.0 6.0 

(mi ll ions of gallons) 

Sources: 
Town of Apex - Finance, Police, Fire, Parks and Recreation, and Public Works departments. 

Notes: 

(1) Begin ning 20 14, information based on current GIS records. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CAROLINA 
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
Table 18 

Fiscal Year 
2010 201/ 2012 20/3 20 14 2!l.li 20 16 201 7 lli.8. 20 19 

FunctiQn 

Public safety 

Police 

Stations I I 2 2 

Patrol Units 40 45 47 50 49 80 80 81 82 88 

K-9 Units 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 

Fire stations 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 5 5 

Streets 

Streets (miles) 120.69 122.29 127. 12 129.15 132.37 140.04 151.04 171. 14 193. 14 207. 17 

Streetligh[S 2,325' 2,465 2,582 2,582 2,7/3 2,775 2,846 3,39 1 3,479 3,9 t4 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks acreage 452.5 1 452.51 452.51 452.51 452.5 1 544.5 1 544.5 1 544.51 558 618.28 

Parks 9 9 9 9 9 10 10 10 /I /I 

Tennis couns (Adult & Youth) 8 8 8 8 8 20 20 20 20 20 

Community centers 

Cultural Arts Center 

Lakes 

Water 

Water lines (miles) 165 170 170 182 194 207 2 15 269 293 310 

Maximum daily treatment capacity 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 9.2 

(millions of gallons) 

Electric 

Number of delivery points (substations) 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Miles of service lines{l} 279 3 15 355 355 537 554 569 569 68 1 764 

Sewer 

Sanitary sewer lines (miles) 175 186.5 189 189 189 207 239 249 280 296 

Maximum daily treatment capacity 4.6 4.6 3.8 4.8 5.9 4.7 5.3 5.3 6.0 6.0 

(millions of gallons) 

Sources: 
Town of Apex - Finance, Po lice, Fire, Parks and Recreation , and Public Works departments. 

Notes: 

(1) Beginning 20 14, information based on current GIS records. 
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J 
] oyce and 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Brady COllrt , Cary, NOlth Carolina 27 511 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 9 19-466-094 7 

Certified Public Accountants 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Apex, NOIth Carolina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the Town of Apex's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November I, 2019, 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Apex's 
internal control over financial repOiting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Apex's internal control, 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town 's intemal control, 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in tile normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis, A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be a significant deficiency . 
(Item 2019-1) 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As palt of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Apex's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
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J 
] oyce and 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Brady Court , Cary, NOl1h Caro lina 275 11 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 9 19-466-094 7 

Certi fied Public Accountants 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters 
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members ofthe Town Council 
Town of Apex, NOIth Carolina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to the financial audits contained in Governll1ent Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the Town of Apex, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019 and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprises the Town of Apex's basic financial 
statements and have issued our report thereon dated November I, 2019, 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Apex's 
internal control over financial repOiting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Apex's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis, A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described 
in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses that we consider to be a significant deficiency . 
(Item 2019-1) 

Compliance and Other Matters 
As palt of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Apex's financial statements are free 
of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
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effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opi nion on 
comp li ance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
sllch an opi nion. The results of Ollr tests disclosed no instances of noncompl iance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of this report is so lely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opin ion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
contro l or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intel11al contro l and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

November I, 2019 

JO CE AND COMPANY, CPA 
Cary, North Carolina 

effect on the determination of financial statement amollnts. However, providing an op inion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opi nion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncom pI iance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 
The purpose of th is report is so lely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intel11al contro l and compliance . 
Accordingly, this comm unication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

November I, 2019 

JO CE AND COMPANY, CPA 
Cary, North Carolina 
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J 
Joyce and 

Company, 
CPA 

104 Bracly Court, Cary, North Caro lina 27S II 
Phone 919-466-0946 Fax 9 19-466-0947 

Report on Compliance for the Major State Program; 

Certi li ed Public Accoun ta nts 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Uniform Gnidance 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 

To th e Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Apex, NOith Carolina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on Compliance for the Major State Program 
We have audi ted the Town of Apex, North Caro lina, compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Audit Manualfor Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, iss ued by the 
Loca l Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on the Town of Apex's major 
state program for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Town of Apex's major state program is identified in 
th e summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its state program. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our respons ibili ty is to express an opinion on compliance for the Town of Apex's major state program 
based on our audit ofthe types of compliance requirements referred to above . We conducted our audit of 
compli ance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards appli cable to financial aud its contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptro ll er General of the Un ited States; and applicab le sections ofOMB Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) as described in the Audit Manual for Governmental Auditors in 
North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, 
and the State Single Aud it Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refen'ed to 
above that cou ld have a direct and material effect on a major state program occlllTed. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Apex's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such oti1er procedures, as we cons idered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our aud it provides a reasonable basis for our opi nion on compliance for the major state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town of Apex's compliance. 

Opinion on the Major State Program 
In our opinion, the Town of Apex complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its maj or state program for 
the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management ofthe Town of Apex is responsible for establishing and mainta ining effective internal 
contro l over comp liance with the types of compliance requirements refe rred to above. In planning and 
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104 Bracly Court, Cary, North Cam lina 275 11 
Phone 91 ~-466 -0946 Fax 9 19-466-0947 

Report on Compliance for the Major State Program; 

Ce rtifi ed Publ ic Accoun ta nts 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Un iform Gnidance 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Apex, Not1h Carol ina 

Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on Compliance for the Major State Program 
We have audited the Town of Apex, North Carol ina, compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the Audit Manualfor Governmental Auditors in North Carolina, issued by the 
Local Government Commission, that could have a direct and material effect on the Town of Apex's major 
state program for the year ended June 30, 2019. The Town of Apex's major state program is identified in 
the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its state program. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Town of Apex's major state program 
based on our audit ofthe types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
comp li ance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Un ited States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial aud its contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptro ll er General of the United States; and applicable sections ofOMB Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor 
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) as described in the Audit Manualfor Governmental Auditors in 
North Carolina, and the State Single Audit Implementation Act. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance, 
and the State Single Audit Implementation Act require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements refen'ed to 
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program occlltTed. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town of Apex's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such od,er procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compl iance for the major state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination ofthe Town of Apex's compliance. 

Opinion on the Major State Program 
In ou r opinion, the Town of Apex complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major state program for 
the year ended June 30, 2019. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Management ofthe Town of Apex is responsible for establish ing and maintaining effective internal 
contro l over compliance with the types of compliance requ irements referred to above. In planning and 
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performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Town of Apex's internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test and report on internal control over 
comp liance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not fo r the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Town's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over comp liance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in tile normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over comp liance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement ofa state program will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
contro l over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compl iance that might be sign ificant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this repOlt on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compl iance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Uniform Gu idance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

J CE AND COMPA , PA 
Cary, North Carolina 

November 1, 2019 

performing our audit of comp li ance, we considered the Town of Apex's internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major state program to 
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing 
our opinion on comp li ance for each major state program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Town's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over comp liance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not all ow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compl iance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program wi ll not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a 
type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal 
contro l over compliance, yet impOliant enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compl iance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this repOli on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Uni form Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitab le for any other purpose. 

J CE AND COMPA , PA 
Cary, North Carolina 

November 1, 2019 



129

Town of Apex, North Carolina 
Sched ule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the year ended June 30, 2019 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 
Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statement noted 

Federal Awards 

The Town of Apex has no major federal programs. 

State Awards 
Internal control over major state program: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

x 

Unmodified 

yes x 

yes 

yes x 

yes x 

yes x 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major state program: Unmodified 

Identification of major state program: Powell Bill 

Section n. Financial Statement Findings 
Significant Deficiency (Item 20 19-1) 

no 

none reported 

no 

no 

none reported 

Town has a system to review financial statements and associated items on an ongoing basis to 
verify that all amounts are properly stated. 

Condition There were instances where invoices were not recorded in a timely manner, where 
miscellaneous adjustments were posted in error or just to reconcile an account until the 
discrepancy was investigated in greater detail and accounts that were not fully reconciled. 

Financial statements could be materially misstated and not be detected and corrected. 

Lack of complete review of monthly and year-end financial statements by staff. 

Recommendation We recommend that management complete a thorough review of all financial statement 
accounts on a monthly basis and that any corrections, journal entries, etc. be posted at that time to accurately 
state the financial position and operations of the Town. 

Name of Contact Person Vance Holloman, Finance Officer 

Corrective Action Finance staff will work with department heads to be certain invoices are submitted to 
Finance for payment promptly. Procedures for all account reconciliations will be reviewed to be certain that the 
reconciliation process result in adjustments and corrections that are posted promptly and correctly and that all 
transactions are recorded in the appropriate reporting period. 

Town of Apex, North Carolina 
Scbed ule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the year ended June 3D, 20 19 

Section I . Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 
Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency (s) identified that are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statement noted 

Federal Awards 

The Town of Apex has no major federal programs. 

State Awards 
Internal control over major state program: 

• Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency (s) identified tbat are not 
considered to be material weaknesses? 

x 

Unmodified 

yes x 

yes 

yes x 

yes x 

yes x 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major state program: Unmodified 

Identification of major state program: Powell Bill 

Section n. Financial Statement Findings 
Significant Deficiency ([tem 20 19-1) 

no 

none reported 

no 

no 

none reported 

Town has a system to review financial statements and associated items on an ongoing basis to 
verify that all amounts are properly stated. 

Condition There were instances where invoices were not recorded in a timely manner, where 
miscellaneous adjustments were posted in error or just to reconcile an account until the 
discrepancy was investigated in greater detail and accounts that were not fully reconciled. 

Financial statements could be materially misstated and not be detected and corrected. 

Lack of complete review of monthly and year-end financial statements by staff. 

Recommendation We recommend that management complete a thorough review of all financial statement 
accounts on a monthly basis and that any corrections, journal entries, etc. be posted at that time to accurately 
state the financial position and operatiom; of the Town. 

Name of Contact Person Vance Holloman, Finance Officer 

Corrective Action Finance staff will work with department heads to be certain invoices are submitted to 
Finance for payment promptly. Procedures for all account reconciliations will be reviewed to be certain that the 
reconciliation process result in adjustments and corrections that are posted promptly and correctly and that all 
transactions are recorded in the appropriate reporting period. 
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Proposed Completion Date December 31 , 201 9 

Section ID. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
None reported 

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
None reported 

Proposed Completion Date December 31 , 20 19 

Section m. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
None reported 

Section IV. State Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
None reported 
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TOWN OF APEX, NORTH CARO LI NA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 

Sc hedule 23 

Federal Grantor/Pass- Federal Pass - Through! Federal (Direct Pass-Through 
Through Grantor/Program CFDA Slate Grantor's and Pass-Through; Stale to Local 
ProS!:am Title Number Number EXEenditures Ex~ndilures SubreciEients Ex~nditures 

FEDERAL GRAi\'TS: 
US DeQartment ofTransI!Qrtation 

Passed through NC Department of Transportat ion 
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 WBS Element 42379. 1.FDJO $ 10,910 $ $ $ 61,605 
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 WBS Element 44527.1.21 4,413 22,173 11,394 

Total Highway Planlling and ConstructiOll 15,323 22,173 72,999 

US Degartment ofTransQQrtatiQn 
Passed through NC Department of Transportation 
Govel'llo/,'s Highway Safety Program 20.600 WBS Elemen! 22018.3.4 25,035 8,345 

US Degartment of Homeland Securit:t: 
Passed through NC Department of Public Safety FEMA4293-0R-NC 

Disaster Grants-Public Assistallce 97.036 Mission No. 190685 
(Presidentially Declared Disasters) 98,995 32,999 

US Department of Justice 
Direct Program 

Bureau of Justice Assistance 
Bullet Proo/Vest Partllership Program 16.607 2,597 2,597 

Total assistance-federal programs 141 ,950 55,In 83,941 

STATE GRANT: 
NC Degartment QfTransgQrtatiQn 

Powell Bill Fund NlA 1,257,391 

Total assistance $ 141,950 $ 1,312,563 $ $ 83,941 

Notes \0 the Schedule of Expend itures of Federal and Slate Financial Awards 

Basis 0/ Presentation - The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards includes the federal and slate grant activity of the T own of 
Apex under the programs of the federal government and the Slate of North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifonn Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audit Requirements for federal Awards and the Slate Single Audit Implementation Act. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the 

operations of the Town of Apex, il is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net positio n, or cash flows of the Town of 

Apex. 

SummalY a/Significant Accounting Policies - The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented on the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures are recognized foUowing the cost principles contained in Unifonn Gu idance, wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Indirect Cost Rate· The Town of Apex has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as aUowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

TOWN OF APEX, NORT H CARO LI NA 
SCHEDULE OF EXP EN DITURES OF FE DE RAL At'J D STATE AWARDS 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 

Schedule 23 

Federal Grantor/Pass- Federal Pass - Throughl Federal (Direct Pass-Through 
Through Grantor/Program CFDA Slate Grantor's and Pass-Through: State to Local 
Pro![am Title Number Number EXEenditures Ex~nditures Subrec iEients Ex~nditures 

FEDERAL GRAi'.'TS: 
US DeQanment ofTransI!Qrtation 

Passed through NC Depanment of Transportation 
High way Planning Gild Cons/ruction 20.205 WBS Element 42379. I.FD30 $ 10,910 $ $ $ 61,605 
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 was Element 44527.1.21 4,4 13 22,173 11,394 

Total Highway Planlling and COllstrllc/ion 15,323 22,173 72,999 

US DeQartmenl ofTransQQnatiQ" 
Passed through NC Depanment of Transportation 
GovernOr's Highway Safety Program 20.600 WBS Element 22018.3.4 25,035 8,345 

US DeQartmem of Homeland Securit:"l 
Passed through NC Department of Public Safety FEMA-4293-DR-NC 

Disaster Grants-Public Assistallce 97.036 Mission No. 190685 
(Presidelllially Declared Disasters) 98,995 32,999 

US Department of Justice 
Direct Program 

Bureau of Justice Assistaoce 
Bullet Proof Vest Parmership Program 16.607 2,597 2,597 

Total assistance-federal programs 141 ,950 55,172 83,941 

STATE GRANT: 
NC DSlanment QfTranspQ!:latjQo 

Powell Bill Fund NiA 1,257,391 

Total assistance S 141,950 S 1,312,563 S S 83,941 

Notes to the Schedule of EXQend itures of Federal and State Financial Awards 

Basis a/Preselltation - The accompanying schedule o f expend itures of federal and stale awards includes the federal and s tate grant activity of the Town of 
Apex under the programs of tbe federal government and the State of North Carolina for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in this schedule is 
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 US Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Unifonn Adminis trative Requirements, Cost Principles, 
and Audi t Requirements for Federal Awards and the State Single Audit linplementation Act. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the 

operations of the Town of Apex. it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the Town o f 

Apex. 

Summary a/Significant Accoullting Policies - The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal and state awards is presented on the modi fied 
accrual basis o f accounting. Such expenditures are recognized fo lJowing the cost principles contained in Uniform Guidance. wherein certain types of 
expenditures are not allowab le or are limited as to reimbursement. 

Indirect Cost Rate - The Town o f Apex has elected not to use the 10 percent de minimis indirec t cost rate as aUowed under the Uniform Guidance. 




